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VISION AND MISSION
THE THAI CREDIT RETAIL BANK
PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
Vision
To be the best Small Bank focusing on Small Business and Micro segments
in Thailand
• Providing the right products and services to the small and micro
segments
• With stable and unique business models and innovative services
• Helping our customers to grow their businesses and improve their life
standard
Mission
To accelerate the growth in the core business
• Asset growth to 60 Billion Baht
• Profitability target of more than 15% ROE
• Solid financial position
• Recognized by the target segment and general public as the bank of
choice (brand reputation and franchise value)
• Nationwide expansion

Core Values
T
C
R
B
L
I

>
>
>
>
>
>

Team Spirit
Credibility
Result Oriented
Best Service
Leadership
Integrity
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Financial Highlight

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited

FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHT
2015
Bank

2014
Bank

Total Assets

32,663

28,256

Loans

27,834

23,051

1,024

857

Financial Position (Million Baht)

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Non-Performing Loans (Net)

570

362

1,028

826

Liabilities

29,024

25,741

Deposits

26,565

24,152

3,639

2,515

2,452

2,029

782

790

1,670

1,239

Non-Performing Loans (Gross)

Equity

Statement of Profit and Loss (Million Baht)
Interest Income
Interest Expenses
Net Interest Income
Fee & Services Income, net
Others Operating Income
Others Operating Expenses

113

95

77

89

1,308

1,077

Bad Debt, Doubtful Account and Impairment Loss

409

316

Income Tax

(31)

12

Net Profit

111

42

Return on Average Assets (ROAA) (%)

0.36

0.16

Return on Average Equity (ROAE) (%)

3.60

1.69

Financial Ratio

Profit per Share (Baht)

0.32

0.14

Non-Interest Expenses to Total Income

70.39

75.67

Total Capital Fund to Risk Assets

16.42

13.78

Total Tier I Capital Fund to Risk Assets

15.32

12.98

9.10

8.38

104.78

92.32

2.05

1.57

Book Value (Baht)
Loans to Deposits (%)
Net NPLs to Total Loans (%)
Gross NPLs to Total Loans (%)
LLR to NPLs (%)

3.69

3.58

98.60

102.11

Number of Branches*

74

46

Number of Employees

1,174

990

*including Lending Branch
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Loans (Million Baht)

Non-Performing Loans (Million Baht)
LLR/NPLs (%)
1,200

23,051

25,000

200

2013

2014

2015

Total Capital Fund to Risk Assets (%)
Tier I

2014

2015

6.00%

3.00%

6.00%

4.58%

4.14%

4.00%

3.73%

12.98%

8.00%

15.32%

15.17%

5.00%

13.78%

5.48%

16.42%

15.94%

15.86%

14.74%

10.00%

2013

Tier II

16.00%

12.00%

2012

Net Interest Margin (NIMs)

18.00%

14.00%

3.7%

5,000

3.6%

400

3.1%

410

600

630

826

800

10,000

2012

99%

81%

2.3%

17,917

15,000

20,112

20,000

102%

97%

1,000

1,028

27,834

30,000

2.00%

4.00%
1.00%
2.00%
0.00%

0.00%

2012

2013

2014

2015

2012

Net Profit (Million Baht)

2015

(110)

2014

42

2013

12

2012

(128)
(160)

111

(60)

(10)

40

90

140

2013

2014

2015
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Our History

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited

Our History

For over the past four decades, The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited first began its path
of financial and banking services as Krungthep Sin Thawee Co. Ltd., on October 6, 1970. Later, it was
periodically renamed and registered as Krungthep Sin Thawee Credit Foncier Co., Ltd. on March 28, 1980
and as Piboon Keha Credit Foncier Co., Ltd. on July 2, 1981. To operate loan services, it had re-registered
as Thai Keha Credit Foncier Co., Ltd. on December 27, 1983 and pledged the collateral following the credit
foncier business regulations by the Bank of Thailand (BOT).
On July 28, 2004, Thai Keha Credit Foncier Co., Ltd. applied for the authorization to establish a retail
bank and was qualified by the Ministry of Finance, Thailand, announcement no. kor khor 1004/364 dated
December 24, 2004. On December 22, 2006, the company obtained licenses from the Ministry of Finance
of Thailand to operate as a commercial bank and foreign exchange business . The Bank has conducted its
business under the name of “The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited” on January 18, 2007.
Although The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited is the newcomer but it has progressed its
growth quickly, firmly and steadily. We develop our financial products to serve our small business customers
who are the crucial sector of Thailand economy especially the loan products such as small business loans
with a friendly, flexible and sincere service.
We determine to be the alternative player to banking products and loan services for small business
operators across Thailand by expanding new full service branches in Bangkok Metropolitan Region as well as
expanding Lending branch model to upcountry under the committed vision and mission for over four decades.
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Milestones

MILESTONES

2007 The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited had been officially authorized to operate as a

retail bank on January 18, 2007.
2009 The Bank acquired Thanaban Co., Ltd., the motorcycle financing and loans business whose market

share was the fourth largest in Bangkok Metropolitan Region at that time, to emphasize our goal on
being the trustworthy retail bank.
2012 Northstar Group, the private equity firm which managed the investment portfolio of 36,700 Million

Baht for over 20 corporate groups in Southeast Asia, had owned the 25-percentage share of
the Bank. The firm had also restructured the Bank’s management team in order to manage the
organization professionally and focus on the sustainable growth
2013 The bank changed its vision to be “The Best Small Bank in Thailand” focusing on small business

and micro segments in Thailand
2014 The bank had sold Thanaban Co., Ltd. to Group Lease PCL. as it’s no longer the focus business of

the bank in order to focus on small businesses per bank’s policy and operation plan
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SMALL
BRINGS STRENGTH
Small…and Excellent
Our core competence is the devoted
attitude of our staff, with an example
being our Relationship Managers (RM)
who strive to provide you the ultimate
satisfaction.

SMALL
BRINGS UNIQUENESS
Small…is Identity
We are small but unique as we provide
loans via lending branches that effectively
meet all customers’ needs conveniently
and flexibly.

SMALL
BRINGS POWER
Small…but Powerful
In addition to fulfilling customers’ needs,
we also emphasise the importance
of growth by increasing opportunities
to help business excel.

SMALL
BRINGS
GREATNESS
Through the course of business challenges and restructurings,
one small player has become a powerful financial phenomenon;
The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited’s success
is evidence of its stellar provision of financial services,
and its small but powerful nature.
Small…but devoted to assisting and serving customers whilst maintaining
the highest standards.
Small…with distinctive lending branches that genuinely approach to customers.
Small…and unique, thinking differently to achieve success for its customers
We, TCRB, are very proud of our small identity, which helps to create a business
foundation for you that leads to success and for you to become one of the great
units that powers the current and future success of the Thai nation.
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Message from the Chairman

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited

MEssAGE
FrOM tHE CHAirMAN

Annual Report 2015

Message from the Chairman

the Bank applies the principles of
good governance and commits to quickly
and effectively serve our customers
with the unstoppable progress.
In the year 2015, The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited has successfully accomplished
a great deal in every business unit; loans, deposits, and capital funds including productively making its
net profits that are higher than target. We increased the Bank’s reserves to promote financial stability
and prepare for future growth, also introduced several new products. For instance, Nano Finance was
launched in order to respond to the Government and the BOT’s policies as well as to serve the needs
of customers who have limited access to financial services.
The Bank applies the principles of good governance and commits to quickly and effectively serve our
customers with the unstoppable progress. We aim to grow steadily in order to be the trustworthy bank
as the customers’ confidence and satisfaction are our priority.
We’re thankful for your confidence on every of The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited
services. We also look forward to the opportunity of being part of your future success. The Bank
would like to thank all shareholders for their tremendous support on our Board of Directors. The Bank
appreciates all the contributions and dedications of the Board of Directors, the Management, and
employees delivering to the Bank as it helped us accomplishing the above-target performance and
growth last year and for the future to come.

Samart Buranawattanachoke
Chaiman
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Message from Management

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited

Message
from Management
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Message from Management

we see many potential for growth and
we work hard to develop our business
and we are excited with the future.
Our bank continued to deliver high growth! Despite the weak economy and the slowdown in the global
market, our bank asset grew by 16%, among the highest in the market and our bottom line net income
improved by 163% to 111 Million Baht.
We maintain our focus on our vision and we strive to be the best. We have grown our small business
portfolio by 53% and we double our lending branches from 27 to 55 branches. We also reached a
significant milestone with our new launch of Nano finance, a small size loan less than one hundred
thousand baht targeted to the nano business owners, which received a wide acceptance from the customers
who have difficulties in accessing formal financial institutions. We are very excited with the potential of our
new nano financing product that we launched in Q4, 2015. We are empowering these very small business
owners and giving them access to real banking product with transparency.
Our portfolio is also in good quality although we see many of our customers are impacted with the economic
slowdown. The key is in our strong risk management and proactive approach in working together with our
customers keep our customers businesses in good health in balance with our credit policy.
This is only the beginning and we are still like child after standing up then learning to run. We see many
potential for growth and we work hard to develop our business and we are excited with the future. And,
as always, we are proud of our team who relentlessly and passionately strive to build this business together.
We are confident that we will achieve our vision.

(Mr. Winyou Chaiyawan)
Chief Executive Officer

(Mr. Roy Agustinus Gunara)
Managing Director
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The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited

Board of Directors

BOArD
OF DirECtOrs

Wanich Chaiyawan

Samart Buranawatanachoke

Advisor of the Board of Directors

Chairman

Sirichai Sakornratanakul

Teerapol Pussadet

Kunnigar Triyangkulsri

Stephen Tirador Briones

Independent Director and Member
of the Audit Committee and
Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Independent Director and

Independent Director and

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Independent Director and Member
of the Audit Committee

Krisana Aramkulchai

Winyou Chaiyawan

Roy Agustinus Gunara

Tan Choon-Hong

Director

Director and Chief Executive Officer

Director and Managing Director

Director and Member of the
Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

Executive Ofﬁcers
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EXECutivE OFFiCErs

No

Name

Position

Department

1

Mr. Winyou Chaiyawan

Chief Executive Officer

2

Mr. Roy Agustinus Gunara

Managing Director

3

Mr. Suchin Srisurangkul

Deputy Manageing Director

Distribution

4

Miss. Sanannart Kulpaisantham

Deputy Manageing Director

Small Business

5

Mr. Kittipant Sriwannawit

Assistant Managing Director

Finance

6

Mr. Sarawooth Savejnarong

Assistant Managing Director

Quaility and Change Management

7

Mr. Pornthep Permpornpipat

Assistant Managing Director

Risk Management

8

Mr. Kajhitphome Sudsok

Assistant Managing Director

SME

9

Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong

Assistant Managing Director

Lending Branch Network

10

Mr. David Jeffrey Stone

Advisor

Operation and IT

11

Mrs. Sansanee Warke

Senior Vice President

Corporate Communication

12

Mr. Rong Hirunpanich

Senior Vice President

Internal Audit

13

Miss. Nara Sanghirundwathana

Senior Vice President

Compliance and Credit Review

14

Mrs. Chanyanuch Chaveewong

Senior Vice President

Change Management and Training & Development

15

Miss. Datchanee Musuwan

Senior Vice President

Strategic Planning and Analysis

16

Miss. Pimonpun Ruckpanich

Senior Vice President

General Administration

17

Mr. Chodok Theerawigasit

Senior Vice President

SME 3

18

Mrs. Yuwaporn Prasertsri

Senior Vice President

SME 9

19

Miss. Chanida Charnmanoon

Senior Vice President

Product and Strategy

20

Mr. Veeravet Chaiyawan

Senior Vice President

Branch Network

21

Mr. Somchai Raweeruengrong

Senior Vice President

Strategy & Support

22

Mr. Kowit Leesirison

Senior Vice President

Strategy & Support

23

Mr. Natus Kittawaranon

Senior Vice President

New Business Development

24

Miss. Puckjira Vudhesethakrit

Senior Vice President

Process Development & Quality Assurance

25

Mr. Yanapat Suvisit

Senior Vice President

Credit

26

Mrs. Phimolphan Kittisuwan

Senior Vice President

Credit

27

Miss. Achara Ruangchay

Senior Vice President

Credit

28

Mr. Dulyavit Intapantee

Senior Vice President

Risk

29

Mr. Songsak Mongkolprachak

Senior Vice President

SB Sales

30

Mr. Somyos Seangmaneesatien

Senior Vice President

Collections & Debit Restructuring

31

Miss. Pratanporn Peetaneelavat

Senior Vice President

Collections & Debit Restructuring

32

Mrs. Jaruayporn Suwanasakorn

Senior Vice President

Collections & Debit Restructuring

33

Miss. Natasa Suracheewakrit

Senior Vice President

Operations

34

Mr. Visith Thanawanichakul

Senior Vice President

Information Technology

35

Mr. Wiboon Aroonreungsirilert

Senior Vice President

Information Technology

36

Mr. Sumit Setthapattana

Senior Vice President

Legal and Collateral Appraisal

37

Mrs. Panida Sriphattha

Senior Vice President

Accounting and Taxation
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Directorship of Directors in Related Companies

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited

DirECtOrsHiP OF
DirECtOrs iN rELAtED COMPANiEs

Mr. Samart Buranawatanachoke

Mr. Teerapol Pussadet

Chairman

Independent Director and Chairman of
the Audit Committee

Education
• Bachelor of Accounting (2nd class honors) / Chulalongkorn

Education
• Bachelor of Arts (Accounting) / Kasetsart University

University
• Master of Accounting / Chulalongkorn University
• Master of Management / Sasin Graduate Institute of Business

• Master of Business Administration (Finance) / University of
Detroit, Michigan, USA
• Director Accreditation Program / Thai Institute of Directors

Administration
• Advance Management Program / Harvard Business School
• Bank of Thailand Program / Harvard University Graduate
School of Business Administration

Association (IOD)
• Advanced Audit Committee Program / Thai Institute of
Directors Association (IOD)
• Anti-Corruption for Executive Program / Thai Institute of

Thai Credit Bank Shares Held by Directors

Directors Association (IOD)

None

Thai Credit Bank Shares Held by Directors
Directorship in Other Companies
• The Securities and

None

(Advisor)

Directorship in Other Companies

Exchange Commission
• Good Child Co.,Ltd.

(Authorized Director)

• Pro-resident Co.,Ltd.

(Authorized Director)

• Patriot Outﬁt Co.,Ltd.

(Authorized Director)

• Infovention Co.,Ltd.

(Authorized Director)

• Control Insider Co.,Ltd.

(Authorized Director)

• G Steel PCL.

(Director and Member
of the Audit Committee)

• Dhipaya Insurance PCL.

(Advisor of Chairman)
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Directorship of Directors in Related Companies

Mr. Sirichai Sakornratanakul

Mr. Stephen Tirador Briones

Independent Director and Member of the Audit
Committee and Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Independent Director and Member of the Audit
Committee

Education

Education

• Bachelor of Economics (Business Administration) / University

• Bachelor of Arts (East Asian) / Columbia College

of Saar

• Master of Business Administration (Finance & International

• Master of Economics / University of Saar
• Financial Analysis & Policy / IMF-Institute
• Hubert H.Humphrey, Fellowship Non-degree study / Boston

Business) / Columbia Business School
• Director Accreditation Program / Thai Institute of Directors
Association (IOD)

and American University
• International Board & Director Seminar / Swedish Academy
of Directors

Thai Credit Bank Shares Held by Directors
None

• Diploma, The Joint State-Private Sector Course / National
Defence College of Thailand
• Director Certiﬁcation Program, Class 23, / Thai Institute of
Directors Association (IOD)
• Financial Institutions Governance Program / Thai Institute of
Directors Association (IOD)
• Audit Committee Program / Thai Institute of Directors
Association (IOD)

Thai Credit Bank Shares Held by Directors
None

Directorship in Other Companies
• Advance Agro PCL.

(Independent Director and
Member of the Audit Committee)

• Jutha Maritime PCL.

(Independent Director)

• T.I.C.Engineering Products (Authorized Director)
Co.,Ltd.
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Directorship in Other Companies
• ING Bank N.V.

(Authorized Director)

• Netherlands-Thai

(Independent Board)

Chamber of Commerce
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Directorship of Directors in Related Companies

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited

Ms. Kunnigar Triyangkulsri

Ms. Krisana Aramkulchai

Independent Director and Member of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee

Director

Education

Education

• Bachelor of Accounting / Bangkok University

• Bachelor of Business Administration (2nd class honors) /
Thammasat University (Finance)

• Director Certiﬁcation Program / Thai Institute of Directors
Association (IOD)

• Master of International Management (International Finance)
/ American Graduate School of International ManagementArizona, USA

Thai Credit Bank Shares Held by Directors
None

• Director Certiﬁcation Program / Thai Institute of Directors
Association (IOD)

Directorship in Other Companies

• Audit Committee Program / Thai Institute of Directors
Association (IOD)
• Role of Nomination and Governance (RNG) / Thai Institute
of Directors Association (IOD)

Thai Credit Bank Shares Held by Directors
None

Directorship in Other Companies
• Sappe PCL.

(Independent Director
and Member of the Audit
Committee)

• CIMB-Principal Asset
Management Co.,Ltd.

(Independent Investment
Committee)

• Arun Health Garden Co.,Ltd.

(Authorized Director)

• Arunotel Co.,Ltd.

(Authorized Director)

None
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Directorship of Directors in Related Companies

Mr. Winyou Chaiyawan

Mr. Roy Agustinus Gunara

Director and Chief Executive Officer

Director and Managing Director

Education

Education

• Bachelor of Accounting (1st class honors) (Finance and

• B.Sc., Electrical Engineering / Drexel University

Banking) / Thammasat Unversity
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• M.B.A., Finance / University of Illinois

• Master of Business Administration / The Anderson School
of UCLA

• Director Accreditation Program / Thai Institute of Directors
Association (IOD)

• Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) / CFA Institute
• Certificate in Senior Executive Program / Capital Market
Academy  

Thai Credit Bank Shares Held by Directors
Related to shareholder holding 0.83%

Thai Credit Bank Shares Held by Directors
Related to shareholder holding 22.44%

Directorship in Other Companies
• V.C.Sombat Co.,Ltd.

(Authorized Director)

• Yart Samphan Co.,Ltd.

(Authorized Director)

• Chaiyawan Co.,Ltd.

(Authorized Director)

• SBI Thai Online Co.,Ltd.

(Independent Director)

Directorship in Other Companies
None
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Directorship of Directors in Related Companies

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited

Mr. Tan Choon-Hong
Director and Member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Education
• GCE “A” Level / Victoria Junior College
• Bachelor of Arts in Electrical & Electronics Engineering (1st Class
Honors) / Cambridge University
• Master of Engineering (Distinction) / Cambridge University
• Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) / CFA Institute

Thai Credit Bank Shares Held by Directors
None

Directorship in Other Companies
• Northstar Advisors Pte. Ltd.

(Authorized Director)

• Nera Telecommunications Ltd.

(Director)

• Asia Systems Ltd.

(Director)

• Samudra Energy International Pte. Ltd.

(Director)

• Samudra Energy Ltd.

(Director)

• Realty Partners Group Pte. Ltd.

(Director)

• ERA Realty Network Pte. Ltd.

(Director)

• ERA Singapore Pte. Ltd.

(Director)

• Realty International Associates Pte. Ltd. (Director)
• Electronic Realty Associates Pte. Ltd.

(Director)

• ERA Real Estate Consulting

(Director)

• ERA Realty Ltd.

(Director)

• Coldwell Banker Real Estate(S) Pte. Ltd. (Director)
• Coldwell Banker Commercial
Real Estate(S) Pte. Ltd.

(Director)
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Report of Changes in TCRB’s Shares Held by Directors in 2015

REPORT OF CHANGES IN THE THAI CREDIT
RETAIL BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
SHARES HELD BY DIRECTORS IN 2015

Name

Percentage of shares held*

Increase / Decrease

As of December 31, 2015

As of December 31, 2014

Mr. Samart Buranawatanachoke

None

None

-

Mr. Teerapol Pussadet

None

None

-

Mr. Sirichai Sakornratanakul

None

None

-

Ms. Kunnigar Triyangkulsri

None

None

-

Mr. Stephen Tirador Briones

None

None

-

Ms. Krisana Aramkulchai

None

None

-

Mr. Winyou Chaiyawan

22.44

29.30

(6.86)

Mr. Roy Agustinus Gunara

None

None

-

Mr. Tan Choon-Hong

None

None

-

* Remark: The percentage of shares held includes the Bank’s shares and of other related companies.
Board of Directors member list and their TCRB’s bond holding during the accounting year 2015: None
Board of Directors member list and their subsidiary’s share or bond holding during the accounting year 2015: None
Board of Directors’ interest in either direct or indirect contract with the bank during the accounting year 2015: None
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Nature of Business Operation

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited

NAturE OF
BusiNEss OPErAtiON
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Nature of Business Operation
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the thai Credit retail Bank Public Company Limited
“the commercial retail bank” making it the 15th
wealthiest commercial bank in thailand

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited - “the commercial retail bank” - was registered as a commercial bank
following a declaration by the Ministry of Finance, Thailand on January 23, 2004, as it has met the necessary registration
criteria, procedures and conditions. The registration was applied for in order to upgrade its credit foncier license to retail
banking license at the time so that it would be on the same competition level as other financial institutes.
TCRB was established on January 18, 2007, and acquired Thanaban Co., Ltd. as a subsidiary to the Bank’s financial business in 2009, making it the 15th rank commercial bank in Thailand in terms of assets. The bank places emphasis on providing
financial and banking services for retail customers and small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) in accordance to the
terms of reference on commercial retail banking operations and transactions issued under the Bank of Thailand’s notification.
In line with the BOT’s notification and regulations, a commercial retail bank is an authorized public company limited that
is allowed to provide and operate services for retail customers, as well as for small and medium-sized enterprises, with
restrictions on foreign exchange, derivatives business and other high-risk transactions to the extent stipulated by the BOT.
The Bank raised its capital from 2,500 Million Baht to 3,000 Million Baht with the new partner - Northstar Group. In June 2015,
the Bank continued to raise its capital 1,000 Million Baht, totaling up to 4,000 Million Baht in order to ensure the strength of
its financial position and to facilitate the future business growth.
Since its inception, the Bank has been committed to support a better quality of financial life for the Thais by devotedly
serving small business customers and helping them avoid illegal financial alternatives, which may later prove to be inflexible
and a burden.
The Bank is a strong partner for small business customers along their entire financial path. We are glad to be the consultant
for those who have good payment behaviour and who need long-term financing to strengthen their business operations
amidst market competition in the industry.
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Business Overview

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited

Business Overview

After the three-year of improvement and transformation, The Thai
Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited is now ready to step
forward onto its capitalization era. With the devotedly provision of
the best financial services to our customers whether individuals,
small businesses, or micro segments who encounters difficulties
in accessing traditional financial services, we would like to
empower their businesses, the significant foundation that helps
to create Thailand’s economy.

Training and Development of Human Capital

In the midst of change and business challenges, the Thai Credit
Retail Bank Public Company Limited could achieve an impressive
growth. In 2015, the Bank had total assets of over 32,663 Million
Baht; operating income of approximately 1,859 Million Baht; and
net income of 111 Million Baht, which doubled from the previous
year, resulting in the higher ROAE of 3.60% and ROAA of
0.36% for the year ending on December 31, 2015. This strong
performance was achieved through the Bank’s strategy that
focuses on increasing the number of branches and investing in
human capital in order to respond to the Bank’s future growth
and acquisitions.

Thai Credit Guarantee Program

The Bank successfully controlled the quality of its asset by
holding reserves of 1,024 Million Baht at the end of December
and Non-Performing Loan (NPL) of 1,028 Million Baht or 100%
NPL coverage ratio. The Bank set aside provision of 409 Million
Baht in 2015, which include additional general reserves of 111
Million Baht.
In addition, the Bank has the capacity to handle loan expansion.
In June 2015, the Bank completed 1,000 Million Baht raise in
registered and paid-up capital, resulting in Capital Adequacy
Ratio (CAR) of 16.4% in December 2015, which was much
greater than 12% defined in the Bank’s policy.

The Bank supplied training facility dedicated to the development
of sales teams in core businesses through training and experience
sharing. The training has been focused on improving skills needed
to reach out new customers and extending new loans during
the second half of 2015. Furthermore, the Bank gives priority
to customer’s satisfaction and standardization of services at full
branches and lending branches nationwide.

Due to the uncertainties of the economic environment and
portfolio quality, the Bank participated in a government subsidy
program, in order to have better lending risk protection. TCG has
a 4.7 Trillion Baht loan guarantee and expect benefits increased
if portfolio deteriorates with maximum coverage of 18% (PGS5).

Customer and Employee Satisfaction Survey
Thinking highly of customer and employee’s satisfaction, the Bank
employs Net Promoter Score (NPS) and Voice of Customer (VOC)
to survey the effort to improve our customers and employees’
satisfaction. The Bank’s first NPS score of 15.4 and VOC score
of 8.1 in 2015 demonstrated employees’ high engagement and
satisfaction as well as high customer loyalty.

TCRB Branding
The Bank continuously implements marketing and internal People
Branding activities to help employees understand the relationship
between the organizational brand and culture and to have a
better understanding of their organizational goals and direction
throughout various engaging activities. Customer perception has
improved from online media, localized marketing, and lending
branch advertising.

Lending Branch Expansion
Work Plan and Achievement
The Bank’s remarkable performance in 2015 was a consequence
of the accelerating growth in our core businesses such as the SB
loan of 11,665 Million Baht and SME loan of 8,720 Million Baht.
In 2015, the Bank has 27,855 Million Baht outstanding loans;
an increase of 19% compared to the previous year. Loans in
our core businesses increased by 44% and comprised of 73%
of total loans.

Another part of the Bank’s strategy was to reach out the target of
over 10,000 customers nationwide. The Bank opened 28 more
lending branches which brought the total number of branches to
55 in 2015, generating 100% growth in new loan, 162% growth
in outstanding loans, and a great potential for higher growth with
productivity. The Bank also developed a CRM System (PCIS) to
build small business customer network.

Nano Finance
Even there were the good progresses across our business; the
development is the nonstop process to us. The Bank continues
to improve its operation by, for instance, expanding lending
services and increasing the number of lending branches for
small businesses, restructuring and creating new sales teams.
The Bank has also launched Nano Finance program and recruited
new marketing team to create trials of new products.

Besides strengthening our core businesses, the Bank continuously
creates and offers alternative financial products and services. The
Bank has launched “Nano Credit”, a service for small businesses
or professionals who need loans of up to 100,000 baht, in order
to reduce difficulties in accessing credit with lower interest rates.
The program was piloted to test the market during the last four
months of 2015, and lent approximately 5 Million Baht during
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Core Business Performance
SME Loans

and risk management to maximize loan growth, including the
corporation of our talented and experienced service teams in
Bangkok. The Bank never stops improving its financial products
and services to assure the future needs be met.

The Bank is determined to support its customers to grow their
businesses by providing loans for small and medium-sized
businesses. The loans help their investment on expanding
businesses, enhance their liquidity, as well as to refinance their
existing loans from other lenders. The Bank’s new loans in 2015
was 11,380 Million Baht, or 62% growth. Outstanding loan of
2015 has 33% growth. The Bank’s NPL ratio was manageable
and lower than the industry average.

The Bank’s new loan growth of 19% and outstanding loan growth
of 53% respectively, were driven by lending branches in upcountry
areas. The loans are expected to drive the Bank’s ROI up to
3.4% and ROE at 25% in the next 3 years. Moreover, in order
to expand lending services for small businesses nationwide, the
Bank opened 28 more branches which brought the total number
of branches to 55 at the end of 2015

the first month after its launch.

• Work Plan and Achievement
The new loans have grown by 62%, asset quality remained stable
as its NPL ratio is much better than those in the market. The
Bank restructured SME loan credit underwriting team and credit
risk management structure. The Bank recruited new experienced
sales and credit analyst teams to prepare for the future growth.
While delivering strong performance, the Bank also maintains
its focus on developing and improving loan services, increasing
loan quality and capacity, and controlling NPL. The tactic is to
complement the right strategy and risk management framework
along with employee training focusing on enhancing skills needed
to approach new customers, to analyze credit, and to improve
customer’s satisfaction and to build long-term relationship with
customers.
• Challenges
As our SME loan growth continuing in 2015, the Bank still needs
to work on the challenge of getting higher growth and higher
scale while helping SME customers make enough profit in the
midst of uncertain market conditions which significantly increases
business risks for the SME segment.

• Challenges
At the times of economic uncertainties and market competition,
the Bank tries to offer unique and distinguished financial
products and services under a proper risk management to serve
the needs of small business customers. Besides building talented
and experienced small business sales team, the Bank also needs
to use marketing activities to create awareness among potential
customers.

Nano Credit
After obtaining permission from the Bank of Thailand (BOT) to
offer Nano Finance loans with no collateral at the amount of up
to 100,000 Baht per customer, the Thai Credit Retail Bank widely
launched Nano Credit program in several lending branches since
October 2015. The branches were selected based on the needs
of business owners in the areas comparing to the objectives of
the service.

Therefore, risk management has become a critical component of
our business. The Bank’s risk management begins with evaluating
both internal and external factors that could impact financial
businesses in order to develop the more effective organizational
structure and risk management process.

• Work Plan and Achievement
The Bank plans to make Nano Credit as one of our core
businesses, generating approximately 30% long term yield.
To improve the service, the Bank adopts new technology and
continuously refines its operational processes. In addition, the
Bank has increased the number of branches during the testing
period in 2015 and has planned to add 25 more branches in
2016 which will be totaling to 28 branches at the end of 2016.
These efforts will make Nano Credit service more accessible and
responsive to customers’ needs.

Small Business Loans

Other Businesses

The Bank prioritizes to create financial strength by offering small
business loans, sizes from 100,000 Baht - 10 Million Baht for
individual and small corporate customers who need to acquire new
offices or to have more working capital for business expansion.
In 2015, the Bank’s new and outstanding loans increased by
19% and 53% respectively, or increased by 4,049 Million Baht
from 7,616 Million Baht in 2014 and brought the total loan to
11,665 Million Baht.

Besides the core businesses which include SME loan, small
business loans, and Nano Credit, other types of loan services
such as gold loan and car loan are also available in order to
meet customer unique needs. The total loans in 2015 were
approximately 7,453 Million Baht, decreased by 19% comparing
to the total loan of 9,196 Million Baht in 2014. The drop was
corresponding with the Bank’s business strategy which pays
more attention to the Bank’s core businesses. The amount of
loans in non-core businesses was lowered to 27% from 39% of
total loans under NPL control system.

• Work Plan and Achievement
The Bank’s primary goal is to be the best commercial Bank for
small businesses. It continuously enhances its capacity and
expertise in small business banking as well as refining sales functions
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TCRB PRODUCTS

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited is the financial institute providing legally commercial banking products
and services under the supervision of the Bank of Thailand (BOT). The Bank is determined on providing loan products,
especially the loans for small businesses that fulfill every Thai customer’s need. With the conveniently and quickly approach
together with legally fairness of our products, we do hope that our customers’ business will help to create and expand the
nation’s economy sustainably and robustly. Also, we have encouraged the Thais for saving habits that help them steadily
develop their financial position by providing various deposit products.

Products
of The
Thai Credit
Retail Bank

Product
for SME

Product
for Small
Business
• Nano Credit Program for
Small Business
• Loan for Small Business
• Loan for Medical
Professional Business

• SME Loan
• Loan for Gold Shop
Business
• Hire-Purchase Loan
for Business
• Constructing Loan for
Rental Property Business
• Current Plus Account

Products
for
Individual
• Gold for Cash
• Home for Cash
• General Deposits
• Mutual Fund Products

TCRB Products
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PrODuCts FOr sMALL BusiNEss

To emphasize the importance of one of the significant economic
sectors that helps gearing up Thailand’s economy, the Bank
offers small business a variety of loans and deposits services
that were designed to meet their needs based on each
characteristics and behaviors. In addition, the Bank simplified
its business process, loan underwriting, required loan support
document to make processes and systems consistent and
convenient for all businesses.

1

2

Nano Credit Program
Highlighted as a retail banking service provider, TCRB has
designed this program for small business that does not have
any collateral but has their operating permanent location
within the range of 5 kilometers from local lending branches.
Nano Credit loan is available up to 100,000 Baht with a
maximum of five year term.
To provide the convenient Banking experience, the Bank
is able to visit customer’s site to accept loan repayment.
Payments will be collected on a weekly basis to be in line
with their real operating behavior. The service was launched
in Rangsit, Bang Yai and Min Buri areas in 2015. 25 more
nano-branches will be opened in 2016.

3

Loan for Small Business Owner
The product is for small business that has economic potential
and is able to provide assets or real estate as collateral such as
houses, buildings, offices, apartments, lands, or gold. Borrower
can request a top-up loan, up to 15% of the original approved
loan amount, to cover insurance premium, mortgage fee
as well as other fees and expenses.
Loan for Medical Professional Business
The loan is developed for physicians, dentists, veterinarians,
pharmacist, and medical technologists who need funds to
start or expand their businesses, to open new facilities, or
to spend on their businesses. Borrowers do not need to
have collateral; they can present their professional licenses,
or certificate of professional medical experience in order to
proceed with the loan requests.

4

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Nano Credit Program
Loan for Small Business
Loan for Medical Professional Business
Gold for Cash
Property for Cash

5

The uniqueness of the Medical Professional Business Loan
is that the borrowers do not need to have collateral and
experience in business. They only need to prove their
experiences in their profession. Without collateral, borrowers
can request up to a 10-year term loan with a maximum of
5 Million Baht, for physicians and dentists, and up to 2 Million
Baht for veterinarians and pharmacist.
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PRODUCTS FOR SME SECTOR

The Bank is eager to serve high potential SME business such
as factories, dormitory, apartments, or gold shops, to help
them grow successfully.
SME Loan
To support business growth for Small and Medium Enterprise,
the Bank provides SME loan so that they can expand their
businesses, improve their liquidity, or refinance their existing
loans.
• Overdraft
The Bank provides overdraft services for SMEs who need to
have working capital on a short term base. Customers can
use personal checks to withdraw from their current accounts
up to their loan limits. This can help SMEs to have more
flexibility to pay for goods and services, raw material, or other
fees and expenses.
• Short-Term Loan
The product offers convenience and helps SMEs improve
their liquidity to conduct the day-to-day operations such
as material and inventories purchasing, credit term for
customers, and other operating expenses.
• Long-Term Loan
This product is developed for SMEs who need to have extra
funding for business expansion, land leasing, office building,
factory or warehouse constructions, machine purchasing
or leasing, as well as refinancing from previous financial
institutes.
• Clean Bill Discount
This service is developed for SMEs who need working
capital in business. The Bank will provide cash to customer
on a discount basis from the due amount in exchange of bills
transferred to the Bank.

• Contingent Liability
• Letter of Guarantee The Bank can issue a letter of
Guarantee on the request of SMEs in order to present
to the government agencies, financial institutes,
companies, stores, or other individuals as a support to
their businesses.
• Aval is the service for SMEs who want the Bank to
commit to pay bill of payment such as promissory notes
(P/N) etc.
• Acceptance is the services for SMEs who want the Bank
to guarantee bill of exchange payment.
• Domestic Letter of Credit The Bank can issue a letter of
credit at the request of SMEs assuring that a domestic
beneficiary will receive the agreed payment up to the
amount of bill of exchange according to documentation
and the condition.
Loan for Gold Shop Business
This product is for individuals and corporates that have
experiences in running gold shops and plan to create
more opportunities for their businesses such as increasing
investment and profit, or expanding their businesses.
The borrowers can use gold bullion or gold ornaments as
collateral for this type of loan.
Hire-Purchase Loan for Business
With the start of 1 Million Baht up, this product was developed
for SMEs who want to purchase tools and machines or need
working capital by using machines as collateral for 1 - 5 year
term loan. This loan can be used as an extra investment for
purchasing or leasing new machines without withdrawing
cash from existing business accounts, which can affect
the business’s liquidity. The borrowers do not have to deal
with the risk from interest rate fluctuations and have their
ownership at the end of the contract.

TCRB Products
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The uniqueness of the Bank’s Hire-Purchase loan is that the
loan uses effective interest rate and fixed rate throughout the
contract. This can help borrowers pay off the capital sooner
and pay less interest. Borrowers can also close their loan
anytime without paying further interest.
Constructing Loan for Rental Property Business
This loan is for the borrowers who plan to build residential
building such as apartment or student dormitory on their own
lands, renovate existing building, refinance existing loan from
previous financial institution, or buy new land with existing
buildings. This unique service provides fast credit analysis
process, credit limit up to 100% of the construction cost that
covers interior decoration. Installment terms and amount will
be specified in accordance with the income with a maximum
period of 15-year term.
Current Plus Accounts
The deposit service is for savers and businessmen who
need circulating funds with flexibility while still enjoy interest
income from deposit. The saving can be securely withdrawn
through personal checks. Customers can oversee their
account activities via Bank statements. Interest earned will
be made on a monthly basis which is calculated from the
daily deposit balance.
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PRODUCTS FOR
INDIVIDUAL
CUSTOMERS
Gold for Cash
For emergency cash, customers can have loans up to 18
months using minimum of 93.5% pure gold as collateral.
The Bank offers a low interest rate which varies depending
on loan limits and collateral value. The maximum gold loan
is not more than 95% of the collateral value.
Home for Cash
The customers, who have their own properties and need
to increase their financial liquidity, can use land, house,
condominium, or property title as collateral. The Bank offers
loan up to 10 Million Baht with minimum of 7% interest rate
for no longer than 20-year term.
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DEPOsit
PrODuCts
Besides loan services that are aimed to support Thailand’s
economic development, the Bank aims to help consolidate
the success of Thailand’s economy with a variety of deposit
products such as one-time deposit or installment deposit
to gain a higher interest rate or to increase flexibility with
unlimited number of deposits and withdrawals. There are two
types of deposit products: General Deposit and Structured
Deposit.

1

General Deposit
The products in this group are basic deposit products for all
customer groups of all ages. The products support general
financial activities according to customers’ needs. General
Deposit products are Saving Account and Fixed Deposit
Account.
Saving Account
Saving Account customers are permitted to unlimited number
of deposit and withdrawal. The withdrawal is also available at
all ATMs of The Thai Credit Retail Bank or other commercial
Banks. Loan repayment and utility payment can be
automatically deducted from deposit account. Interest is
calculated every day and paid twice a year in June and
December.

2

3

1. Fixed Deposit Account
2. Premium Deposit Account
3. Instant Premium Deposit
Account
4. Tax-Free Deposit Account

4

Fixed Deposit Account
Customers can withdraw when a defined period of time has
ended. Interest rates vary depending on the term of deposit.
The Bank offers attractive interest rates during the deposit
period. Customers have the options to choose the deposit
period from 3 - 36 months. They can also use their fixed
deposit account as collateral.
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struCturED
DEPOsit
The Bank offers a unique deposit product that combines the
pros of regular deposit accounts and fixed deposit accounts
such as earning interest in advance, higher interest rate, and
still maintain liquidity for emergency use. The products in this
group include Saving Plus Account, Tanjai Plus Account, and
Tax-Free Fixed Deposit Account.
Saving Plus Account
This account can add value to customers’ deposit with as
high interest rate as fixed deposit account, getting monthly
interest income, while maintaining flexibility and convenience
for daily withdrawal. Monthly interest earned on the account
is calculated on the 25th of each month and can be
withdrawn on the next day. The account provides high liquidity
as a regular deposit account; customers can withdraw at the
Thai Credit’s ATM in the same region without any fee. First
5 free withdrawals are allowed through ATM of other Banks.
Deposit can be done at deposit branches and at over 1,400
post offices nationwide.
Tanjai Plus Account
Customers earn interest promptly after making a deposit.
The product is developed to increase customers’ flexibility
for withdrawal as the saving account, while enjoying a high
interest rate as those earned from fixed deposit account.
There is no withholding tax for the interest earned in a
taxable year of not more than 20,000 Baht according to the
Revenue Department’s regulation. Customers can make a
deposit from 100,000 – 900,000 Baht (multiplier of 100,000
Baht) and can choose their deposit period from provided
options. Customer will receive regular saving interest rates if
they decide to withdraw early.
Tax-Free Fixed Deposit Account
This account encourages savers to develop a habit of saving.
Customers will receive fixed interest rate for depositing at
least 1,000 Baht equally every month for 24 months. The
interest is tax-free according to the Revenue Department’s
regulation. In addition, customers can make a deposit at more
than 1,400 post offices without any fee.

Mutual Funds
The Bank obtained the license from the Ministry of Finance
to operate securities business (license no. lor-ngor-0022-01).
In June 2010, the Bank was permitted by the Office of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (OSEC) to perform
as a broker for mutual fund’s unit trust buy/sell services.
This service is to provide a one stop service for customers’
alternative financial investment portfolio for their efficient risk
diversification to get higher returns.
Presently, the Bank performs as the selling agent for 4 asset
management companies:
• One Asset Management Company Limited
• MFC Asset Management Public Company Limited
• Krungsri Asset Management Company Limited
• Krung Thai Asset Management Public Company Limited
Investment and mutual fund products offering categorized
by standard investment policy according to the OSEC are
as follows:
• Money Market Fund
• General Fixed Income Fund
• Equity Fund
• Balanced Fund
• Flexible Portfolio Fund
• Property Fund
• Foreign Investment Fund : FIF
• Long Term Equity Fund: LTF
• Retirement Mutual Fund: RMF
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PEOPLE
BrANDiNG

1

Apart from launching the marketing activities and
advertisement that widely seen at all of our lending branches
to envision the brand identity and brand awareness, The
Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited also
places the importance on strengthening the organization’s
internal progress and sustainability. We believe that
employees’ behavior and activities at work are the factors
that greatly impact on customers’ attitude towards the
Bank’s products and services, as well as the Bank itself.
In 2015, the Bank initiated a program called “People
Branding” to create the connection between brand and
organizational culture. The goal is to encourage employees
to have correct understanding of the organization’s goal
and direction. Our five goals and resolutions are:

2

1. Reaching out to customers and provide the banking
experiences comprehensively.
2. Acknowledging on our missions.
3. Valuing and respecting every individual.
4. Simplifying any complexities.
5. Being flexible and alternating for new options.
3

4

5

Major TCRB’s Events in 2015
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01 | March 17, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Roi Et. This 46th branch is located at
56/2 Thewaphiban Road, Nai Mueang,
Amphur Mueang, Roi Et 45000.
Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong, Assistant
Managing Director, Lending Branch
Network, together with the Bank’s staffs
attended the opening ceremony.

05 | May 6, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Trang. This 50th branch is located
at 59/45 Huai Yot Road, Thap Thiang,
Amph u r Mueang , Trang 9 2 0 0 0 .
Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong, Assistant
Managing Director, Lending Branch
Network, together with the Bank’s staffs
attended the opening ceremony.

09 | June 16, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Phatthalung. This 54 th branch is
located at 230/4 Moo 2 Khao Chiak,
Amphur Mueang, Phatthalung 93000.
Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong, Assistant
Managing Director, Lending Branch
Network, together with the Bank’s staffs
attended the opening ceremony.

02 | March 25, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch in
Chiang Mai. This 47th branch is located
at 265/4 Chang Phueak Road, Chang
Phueak, Amphur Mueang, Chiang Mai
50300. Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong,
Assistant Managing Director, Lending
Branch Network, together with the
Bank’s staffs attended the opening
ceremony.

06 | May 15, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Bang Saphan, Prachuap Khiri Khan.
This 51th branch is located at 87/12
Moo 1 Kamnoet Nopphakhun, Bang
Saphan, Prachuap Khiri Khan 77140.
Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong, Assistant
Managing Director, Lending Branch
Network, together with the Bank’s staffs
attended the opening ceremony.

10 | June 19, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Chaiyaphum. This 55 th branch is
located at 293/63 Yuttitham Road,
Nai Mueang, Amphur Mueang,
Chaiyaphum 36000. Mr. Kamolphu
Palephapong, Assistant Managing
Director, Lending Branch Network,
together with the Bank’s staffs attended
the opening ceremony.

03 | April 2, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Maha Sarakham. This 48th branch is
located at 157/2 Teenanon Road, Talat,
Amphur Mueang, Maha Sarakham
44000. Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong,
Assistant Managing Director, Lending
Branch Network, together with the
Bank’s staffs attended the opening
ceremony.

07 | May 21, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Ubon Ratchathani. This 52nd branch
is located at 234/1 Moo 18 Kham Yai,
Amphur Mueang, Ubon Ratchathani
34000. Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong,
Assistant Managing Director, Lending
Branch Network, together with the
Bank’s staffs attended the opening
ceremony.

11 | June 25, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch in
Saraburi. This 56th branch is located at
173/39 Sut Banthat Road, Pak Phriao,
Amphur Mueang, Saraburi 18000.
Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong, Assistant
Managing Director, Lending Branch
Network, together with the Bank’s staffs
attended the opening ceremony.

04 | April 24, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch in
Phitsanulok. This 49th branch is located
at 371/8 Barommatrailokanat 2 Road,
Nai Mueang, Amphur Mueang,
Phitsanulok 65000. Mr. Kamolphu
Palephapong, Assistant Managing
Director, Lending Branch Network,
together with the Bank’s staffs attended
the opening ceremony.

08 | May 26, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Chanthaburi. This 53 rd branch is
located at 87/2 Maharaj Road, Talat,
Amphur Mueang, Chanthaburi 22000.
Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong, Assistant
Managing Director, Lending Branch
Network, together with the Bank’s staffs
attended the opening ceremony.

12 | July 3, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Aranyaprathet, Sa Kaeo. This 57th
branch is located at 200/5 Moo 2
Tanavitee Road, Ban Mai Nong Sai,
Aranyaprathet, Sa Kaeo 27120.
Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong, Assistant
Managing Director, Lending Branch
Network, together with the Bank’s staffs
attended the opening ceremony.
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13 | July 7, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Thung Song, Nakhon Si Thammarat.
This 58 th branch is located at 42/3
Thung song-Huai Yot Road, Pak
Phraek, Thung Song, Nakhon Si
Thammarat 80110. Mr. Kamolphu
Palephapong, Assistant Managing
Director, Lending Branch Network,
together with the Bank’s staffs attended
the opening ceremony.

17 | July 18, 2015
TCRB participated in the 2015 Honor
of Thai Life Insurance Day as part of
insurance and financial services group.
The Bank’s trade booth presented
its products and services and hosted
games and activities for staff and sale
representatives who worked hard and
brought success to Thai Life Insurance
PCL.

21 | August 14, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Bueng Kan. This 64 th branch is
located at 218/2 Moo 1 Bueng Kan,
Amphur Mueang, Bueng Kan 38000.
Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong, Assistant
Managing Director, Lending Branch
Network, together with the Bank’s staffs
attended the opening ceremony.

14 | July 10, 2015
TCRB, represented by Miss Krisana
Aramkulchai; a member of the Board
of Directors, received the certificate
from Private Sector Collective Action
Coalition Against Corruption (CAC).
The certificate verified the Bank’s effort
to proactively reduce corruption-related
risks on part of its management in order
to stop corruption in the industry while
promoting sustainable growth of the
business.

18 | July 24, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Lop Buri. This 61st branch is located
at 43/3 Moo 4 Tha Sala, Amphur
Mueang, Lop Buri 15000. Mr. Kamolphu
Palephapong, Assistant Managing
Director, Lending Branch Network,
together with the Bank’s staffs attended
the opening ceremony.

22 | August 17, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Bang Bon, Bangkok. This 65th branch
is located at 701 Ekachai Road, Bang
Bon, Bangkok 10150. Mr. Kamolphu
Palephapong, Assistant Managing
Director, Lending Branch Network,
together with the Bank’s staffs attended
the opening ceremony.

15 | July 15, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch in
Ratchaburi. This 59th branch is located
at 286/34 Si Suriyawong Road, Na
Mueang, Amphur Mueang, Ratchaburi
70000. Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong,
Assistant Managing Director, Lending
Branch Network, together with the
Bank’s staffs attended the opening
ceremony.

19 | August 10, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Chumphon. This 62 nd branch is
located at 64/2 Moo 11 Wang Phai,
Amphur Mueang, Chumphon 86190.
Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong, Assistant
Managing Director, Lending Branch
Network, together with the Bank’s
staffs attended the opening ceremony.

23 | August 25, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Nakhon Sawan. This 66th branch is
located at 49/39 Moo 5 Nakhon Sawan
Tok, Amphur Mueang, Nakhon Sawan
60000. Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong,
Assistant Managing Director, Lending
Branch Network, together with the
Bank’s staffs attended the opening
ceremony.

16 | July 17, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Lam luk ka, Pathum Thani. This 60th
branch is located at 169/33 Moo 3 Lam
Luk Ka Road, Khu Khot, Lam Luk Ka,
Pathum Thani 12130. Mr. Kamolphu
Palephapong, Assistant Managing
Director, Lending Branch Network,
together with the Bank’s staffs attended
the opening ceremony.

20 | August 11, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Chiang Rai. This 63 rd branch is
located at 180/21 Moo 12 Rop Wiang,
Amphur Mueang, Chiang Rai 57000.
Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong, Assistant
Managing Director, Lending Branch
Network, together with the Bank’s staffs
attended the opening ceremony.

24 | August 27, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Mae Sot, Tak. This 67th branch is
located at 64/1 Prasatwithi Road,
Mae Sot, Tak 63110. Mr. Kamolphu
Palephapong, Assistant Managing
Director, Lending Branch Network,
together with the Bank’s staffs attended
the opening ceremony.
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25 | September 2, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Suphan Buri. This 68th branch is
located at 56/2 Nen kaeo Road, Tha Phi
Liang, Amphur Mueang, Suphan Buri
72000. Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong,
Assistant Managing Director, Lending
Branch Network, together with the
Bank’s staffs attended the opening
ceremony.

29 | September 18, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Krabi. This 71st branch is located
at 238/11 Maharaj Road Pak Nam,
Amphur Mueang, Krabi 81000.
Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong, Assistant
Managing Director, Lending Branch
Network, together with the Bank’s staffs
attended the opening ceremony.

33 | November 16, 2015
TCRB launched “Nano Credit” Program
for small business at the Bang Yai
branch, located at 89/4 Moo 6 Soa
Tong Hin, Amphur Bang Yai, Nonthaburi
11140. Mr. Natus Kittawaranon, Senior
V ice President - New Business
Development, together with the Bank’s
staffs attended the opening ceremony.

26 | September 4, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Bang Phli, Samut Prakan. This 69th
branch is located at 200/60 Moo 1
Thepharak Road, Bang Sao Thong,
Samut Prakan 10540. Mr. Kamolphu
Palephapong, Assistant Managing
Director, Lending Branch Network,
together with the Bank’s staffs attended
the opening ceremony.

30 | October 22, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Bang Khun Non, Bangkok. This 72nd
branch is located at 21/45 Bang Khun
Non Road, Bang Khun Non, Bangkok
Noi, Bangkok 10700. Mr. Kamolphu
Palephapong, Assistant Managing
Director, Lending Branch Network,
together with the Bank’s staffs attended
the opening ceremony.

34 | December 9, 2015
TCRB launched the 74 th branch in
Central Plaza Pinklao. Aimed to be the
one-stop-service center for SMEs, this
branch is located on Floor 4, Central
Plaza Pinklao and its opening ceremony
was honorably participated by
Miss. Krisana Aramkulchai, a member
of the Board of Directors.

27 | September 16, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Si Maha Phot, Prachin Buri. This 70th
branch is located at 633/28 Moo 10 Tha
Tum, Si Maha Phot, Prachin Buri 25140.
Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong, Assistant
Managing Director, Lending Branch
Network, together with the Bank’s staffs
attended the opening ceremony.

31 | October 30, 2015
TCRB launched a new lending branch
in Chachoengsao. This 73 rd branch
is located at 560/3 Bangpakong Chachoengsao, Na Mueang, Amphur
Mueang, Chachoengsao 24000.
Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong, Assistant
Managing Director, Lending Branch
Network, together with the Bank’s staffs
attended the opening ceremony.

35 | December 18, 2015
TCRB, represented by Miss. Sanannart
Kulpaisantham, Deputy Managing
Director - Small Business, joined
MOU signing ceremony with Viboon
Business Administration College (VBAC),
Ramintra to initiate a recruitment
and internship program as well as a
training program “CAREER HUB” for
VBAC students.

28 | September 18, 2015
TCRB, represented by Miss Krisana
Aramkulchai, a member of the Board of
Directors with 18 executives from other
financial institutions joined the MOU
signing ceremony of Soft Loan Program
for SMEs in a seminar on driving Thai
SMEs and Thai Economy arranged by
the Ministry of Industry of Thailand.
These programs aim to support the
economy stimulus package thru Thai
SMEs entrepreneurs.

32 | November 16, 2015
TCRB had debuted “Nano Credit”
Program for small business by the
first launch at Rangsit branch, is
located at 81 Rangsit-Pathum Thani
3, Prachathipat, Amphur Thanyaburi,
Pathum Thani 12130. Miss. Sanannart
Kulpaisantham, Deputy Managing
Director - Small Business, Mr. Natus
Kittawaranon, Senior Vice President New Business Development, together
with the Bank’s staffs attended the
opening ceremony.

36 | December 18, 2015
TCRB represented by Miss. Sanannart
Kulpaisantham, Deputy Managing
Director - Small Business, and Mr. Natus
Kittawaranon, Senior Vice President,
joined MOU signing ceremony with
Viboon Business Administration College
(VBAC), Ramintra for student developing
program.
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Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR)
Trustworthiness, transparency, and good governance play an
important role in The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company
Limited’s business strategy. As the Bank advocates concreting
the healthy society to be the foundation for sustainable
business growth, we have initiated several CSR programs
in 2015 as follows:
1. “Pun Nam Jai” Thai Credit for Thai Youth Campaign
The Bank raised the campaign that all employees could
take part through donation. The money went for purchasing
classroom supplies, sports equipment, and lunch for
Kindergarten to Pratomsuksa 6 students of Bhan Klong Dua
School, Moo Si, Pakchong, Nakhon Ratchasima on National
Children’s Day in Thailand.
2. “Roo-Keb, Roo-Chai, Sabai Jai” Saving Campaign
As a member of The Thai Bankers’ Association CSR Club,
the Bank collaborated with the National Council for Child
and Youth Development under the Royal Patronage of HRH
Princess Maha Chakri Sirindhorn and other organizations in
finance sector launching the project that provides financial
education and encourages youth in Nakorn Prathom to have
good financial habits. The campaign ran from January 2014
- March 2015.

3. Umbrellas for Female Prisoners Campaign
The Bank cooperated with the National Council for Child and
Youth Development (NCYD) under the Royal Patronage of
HRH Princess Maha Chakri Sirindhorn to donate umbrellas
to female inmates at the Central prison of Nakornpanom to
lessen the lack of umbrella issue and relieve the hot weather
issue in the prison. This project was initiated by HRH Princess
Bajrakitiyabha on July 29, 2015.
4. “Pun I-Oon Tan Pai Nao” Blanket Donating Campaign
The Bank’s employees donated money to Thai Life Insurance
PCL.’s under “Share the warmth Campaign” to purchase
blankets for underprivileged people who live in the rural of
north and northeastern areas of Thailand.
5. Help “Baan Home Hug” Gaining Income
The Bank collaborated with Thai Life Insurance PCL. in
financial supporting Suthasinee Noiin Foundation for Children
and Youth, or widely known as “Baan Home Hug”, by placing
“pla ta pian”, Thai-style weaving fish which is the Bank’s
symbol and logo. Apart from making income for Baan Home
Hug, those keychains were used as the bank’s premium.
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Thailand Economy in 2015 and the Outlook for 2016
Thailand economic recovery has been slowed by high
household debt and the decrease in farm income due to
global trade situation, global lower commodity price thus low
private consumption and household spending. Another factor
is global economic deterioration caused by weak purchasing
power in several countries like the United States, Europe,
Japan, and China. Many emerging market countries are
affected by falling consumer product and petroleum prices.
Weakening international trade and global deflation reflect the
ongoing excess of supply and weakening purchasing power.
The above mentioned factors have impacts on global
economic and financial structure as well as on capital
movement and global economic recovery. Many countries
are facing the risks of economic slowdown and high financial
asset volatility. Thailand economy growth is dependent on
the improvement of the global economy, which leads to the
expansion of export markets and on effective government
measures to boost Thailand economy.
Weak recovery of the investment in private sector in 2015
was the result of decreasing consumer confidence due to
economy slump. Investment projects delay until clearer
economic direction seen as well as certainty on political
stability.
Exports, the main driver of the Thailand economy, continue to
shrink for the third year in a row as the decrease of agricultural
products and oil prices, including slow economic recovery
of Thailand’s trading partners such as China. In addition,
changing economic structure encourages large producers,
especially in electronic industry, to move their production
bases to CLMV (Cambodia, Laos, Myanmar, and Vietnam)
countries. However, the value of imports in 2015 dropped
because of low oil price, resulting in positive net exports.

The key drivers for Thailand economy in 2015 were tourism
and government investment. Thailand’s tourism industry
significantly improved due to the end of political turmoil
and the lifting of martial law in Thailand. The number of
travelers to Thailand had increased, especially travelers from
China and ASEAN countries. Furthermore, in 2015, Thai
government spent more on investment which is expected to
be more than 65%, including the roll out of economic stimulus
packages which aims for low income farmers and small and
medium-sized enterprises.
The BOT expected to see Thailand economy in 2015 grow
by 2.7%. The Thai Banker Association Economic Consensus
in November forecasted that Thailand economy would grow
by 2.6%, with the assumption that the value of exports in
2015 would shrink by 4.8%, compared to the previous year.
Although, it is unclear how Thailand economy would recover
in 2016, Thailand’s economic expansion is expected to be
greater than the previous year. The BOT forecasted economic
growth of 3.5%, in line with the Thai Banker Association
Economic Consensus, which suggested that Thailand
economy will grow by 3.3% and we will see more impacts
of economic stimulus and government investment in 2016.
The improvement is the result of the implementation of fiscal
policy for deficit budget and the investment budget in
2016, which will be 20% higher than the budget of 2015.
Additionally, Thailand’s tourism industry and exports will
gradually recover due to the depreciation of the Thai baht.
However, Thailand economy still has to face various
challenges in 2016. High household debt will continue to
influence private consumption. Agricultural commodity prices
are still low and can be worse because of continued drought
next year. Private investment is probably affected by the higher
cost of production due to depreciation of the Thai Baht.

41

Management Discussion and Analysis

Annual Report 2015

Economic Growth Rate Estimation
Economic Growth Rate
Estimation
Unit : Percentage

Source: BOT Financial Report
September 2015 Issue
Remark: Estimated figures
On September 2015
* Actual data
GDP

Core Inflation

Headline inflation

Thai Banker Association Economic Consensus
2014*
Average

GDP Growth
Exports

2015
Min

Max

Average

2016
Min

Max

0.90

2.50

2.73

2.90

2.50

3.18

3.50

-0.40

-6.00

-5.11

-2.80

-0.50

1.20

2.00

Headline Inflation

1.90

-0.90

-0.43

0.90

0.50

1.13

2.00

Policy Rate

2.00

1.50

1.50

1.50

1.50

1.64

1.75

Thai Baht / USD

33.0

34.40

35.53

36.10

36.30

37.09

38.00

*Actual data
Source : Economic consensus January 2016, January 14, 2016 from Tisco Bank

Commercial Bank Industry Status
Global and Thailand economic growth was lower than
expected in 2015, resulting in slow local loans requirement,
hence, banking industry’s loan slowdown. However,
government scheme in soft loans helped to boost loans
demand during the rest of the year.

loans mobilize funds from capital market by issuing bonds
and have less reliance on bank loans. Consumer loans,
which account for 31.5% of total loans, grew at a slight pace.
However, auto loan portfolios have been shrinking because
of low demand after the end of Thailand’s “First-Car Buyer”
subsidy incentive.

At the end of 2015, loans grew by 5.6% compared to the
same period of last year. Both corporate and consumer loans
growth slowed down. Corporate loans accounted for 68.5%
of total loans. SME loans grew slowly while large corporate

The economic slowdown resulted in challenges for
businesses. Challenges related to management and liquidity
impacted overall asset quality of the banking industry. Asset
quality in 2015 decreased compared to last year, having
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Non-Performing Loan (NPL) outstanding at the end of 2015
at 332.9 Billion Baht. The ratio of Gross NPL to total loans
increased to 2.69%, from 2.15% at the end of 2014. The
deterioration in asset quality could be found in all types of
credit, especially large corporate loans, since loans in some
industries is classified as NPL.
According to the BOT data, the net profit for commercial
banks in the first quarter of 2015 was not different from the
same period a year earlier due to lower costs, revaluation of
financial instruments, and securities selling. However, the net
profits in the second, third, and fourth quarters were lower

than the same periods a year earlier because commercial
banks were affected by lower asset quality and had to
increase their reserves.
For the capital funds of commercial banks, the total capital
adequacy ratio at the end of 2015 was 17.3% and Tier 1
capital adequacy ratio stood at 14.1%. The capital funds of
commercial banks increased from year-end 2014 as a result
of the appropriated of net profit from the first half of 2015
and a capital injection.
(Source: CB 1.1 December, 2015, the Bank of Thailand)

Loan and Deposit Market Share as of December 2015
Banks

Deposit

Share (%)

Banks

Small Thai Commercial Banks

Medium Thai
Commercial

Large Thai
Commercial
Banks

(Million Baht)

Net Loan

Share (%)

L/D

(Million Baht)

KTB

2,137,446

19.00

1,892,308

17.93

88.53

BBL

2,039,108

18.12

1,718,534

16.29

84.28

SCB

1,884,904

16.75

1,758,121

16.66

93.27

KBANK

1,708,594

15.19

1,525,220

14.45

89.27

BAY

1,052,072

9.35

1,184,913

11.23

112.63

TBANK

670,575

5.96

655,855

6.22

97.80

TMB

644,730

5.73

551,743

5.23

85.58

UOBT

302,239

2.69

283,016

2.68

93.64

TISCO

159,046

1.41

228,696

2.17

143.79

SCBT

98,760

0.88

83,838

0.79

84.89

CIMB

170,502

1.52

190,018

1.80

111.45

KKP

104,781

0.93

170,602

1.62

162.82

86,201

0.77

96,731

0.92

112.22

137,300

1.22

130,163

1.23

94.80

19,184

0.17

41,362

0.39

215.60

9,366

0.08

14,749

0.14

157.48

26,565

0.24

26,821

0.25

100.96

ICBCT
LHBANK
BOC
MEGA ICBC
TCRB
4 Large Thai Commercial Banks

7,770,052

69.06

6,894,182

65.33

88.73

3 Medium Thai Commercial Banks

2,367,376

21.04

2,392,512

22.67

101.06

10 Small Thai Commercial Banks
Total

1,113,945

9.90

1,265,996

12.00

113.65

11,251,373

100.00

10,552,690

100.00

93.79

Source: Summary Statement of Assets & Liabilities as of December 2015, Bank of Thailand
* Exclude ANZ bank
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NPL Ratio as of December 2015
Banks

Gross NPL

Ratio (%)

BIS Ratio

71,848

21.58

3.09

15.22

BBL

54,737

16.44

2.76

17.95

SCB

57,197

17.18

2.83

17.18

KBANK

47,645

14.31

2.61

17.39

BAY

21,627

6.50

1.60

13.63

TBANK

15,986

4.80

2.20

17.92

TMB

20,442

6.14

2.99

16.68

UOBT

6,349

1.91

1.93

18.84

TISCO

6,906

2.07

2.64

18.01

SCBT

7,589

2.28

6.11

25.36

CIMB

6,088

1.83

2.94

15.46

KKP

10,401

3.12

5.55

16.54

ICBCT

1,125

0.34

1.12

19.81

LHBANK

2,815

0.85

1.89

14.01

800

0.24

1.75

22.08

Small Thai Commercial Banks

KTB
Large Thai
Commercial
Banks

(Gross)

Medium Thai
Commercial
Banks

(Million Baht)

% NPL

BOC
MEGA ICBC

308

0.09

1.97

26.42

1,028

0.31

3.64

16.42

4 Large Thai Commercial Banks

231,426

69.52

3 Medium Thai Commercial Banks

58,055

17.44

10 Small Thai Commercial Banks
Total

43,408

13.04

332,889

100.00

TCRB

Source: Summary Statement of Assets & Liabilities as of December 2015, Bank of Thailand
* Exclude ANZ bank

The BOT data as of the end of December 2015 shows that the
total deposits of the 17 commercial banks was estimated at
11,300 Billion Baht. Deposit shares of 4 large-sized banks is
69.1%. Deposit shares of 3 middle and 10 small-sized banks
are 21.0% and 9.9% respectively.
Large, medium, and small-sized banks respectively hold
65.3%, 22.7% and 12.0% of total loans of 10,600 Billion
Baht. According to the data, large-sized banks have lowest
L/D ratio which is 89%; while small-sized banks have highest

L/D ratio which is 113.7%. L/D ratio of the 17 commercial
banks is 93.8%.
Thai commercial banking industry in 2016 is expected to be
in a better position due to economic recovery. The expansion
of loans will be supported by SME loans and corporate
loans, especially in the industries related to the government’s
investment and policy such as tourism and construction
industries.
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Deposits tend to grow as loans expand. There will be a greater
competition on saving deposits among commercial banks,
which is the result of the new deposit protection ceiling of 1
Million Baht starting next August.

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited

However, loans quality needs to be closely monitored. Banks
will place more strict policies to control loans quality, leading
to greater competitions for high quality borrowers. Banks’
profitability will be under the pressure of competition on loans
quality and relief programs.

Actual data

GDP at current market price (Billions of Baht)
Per Capita Income (baht per person per year)
GDP at current market price (Billions of Baht)
Per Capita Income (USD per person per year)
GDP Growth (at constant price, %)
Total Investment (at constant price, %)

Estimation

from
2014

2015
Nov. 16, 2015

for 2016
Nov. 16, 2015

13,148.6

13,451.0

14,123.6

196,239.5

200,056.8

209,378.0

404.8

392.2

386.9

6,041.1

5,832.6

5,736.4

0.9

2.9

3.0-4.0

-2.6

4.6

9.5

- private sector

-2.0

-1.3

4.7

- public sector

-4.9

22.6

11.2

Private Consumption (at constant price, %)

0.6

2.0

2.6

Public Consumption (at constant price, %)

1.7

2.7

3.2

Number of exports of goods and services (Value, %)

0.0

0.3

3.1

224.8

213.6

220.0

-0.3

-5.0

3.0
2.0

Export value of goods (Billions of US Dollar)
- Growth rate (Value, %)
- Growth rate (number, %)

0.7

-3.0

-5.4

-0.2

4.0

200.2

180.6

190.3

- Growth rate (Value, %)

-8.5

-9.8

5.4

- Growth rate (number, %)

-6.8

-0.1

3.9

Trade balance (Billions of US Dollar)

24.6

33.0

29.6

Current account (Billions of US Dollar)

15.4

24.9

22.2

3.8

6.3

5.7

1.9

-0.8

1.0-2.0

1.0

-0.6

1.0-2.0

Number of imports of goods and services (Value, %)
Import value of goods (Billions of US Dollar)

Current account per GDP (%)
Inflation (%)
- consumer price index
GDP Deflator
Source : National Economic and Social Development Board, November 16, 2015

Remark: 1) The data was calculated based on The Revision of National Accounts of Thailand released by NESDB via www.nesdb.go.th
2) Value of exports and imports based on Bank of Thailand index
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Financial Position and Performance of 2015
At the end of December 2015, The Thai Credit Retail Bank
Public Company Limited reported net income of 111 Million
Baht, two times higher than last year. The increase in net
income mainly came from the higher net interest income which
is a result of loans growth in core-businesses. In addition to
that, the Bank’s operating income increased by 30.8% from
the previous year as a result of the Bank’s strategy of branch
expansion and human investment, in order to support future
business expansion plans.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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In 2015, the Bank is still focusing on lending branch expansion
and building sales team for the Bank’s core businesses in
order to reach out to potential customers and expand the
Bank’s loan services. The Bank is expecting to continually
have higher profit and operating income as spending is
growing at a slower rate next year.
The higher net income led to higher Return on Average Equity
(ROAE) and Return On Average Assets (ROAA), increased
from 1.69% and 0.16% in 2014 to 3.60% and 0.36% in 2015
respectively.
Unit: Million Baht

Income Statement

2015

2014

% Change

Interest income
Interest expenses
Net interest income
Non-interest income
Total operating income
Other operating expenses
Bad Debts, Doubtful Accounts and impairment loss
Profit from operating before income tax expenses
Income tax
Net income
Return On Average Equity (ROAE)
Return On Average Assets (ROAA)

2,452

2,029

20.9

782

790

-0.9

1,670

1,239

34.7

237

218

8.7

1,906

1,458

30.8

1,357

1,082

25.3

409

316

18.5

141

30

371.3

(31)

12

358.3

111

42

163.1

3.60%

1.69%

0.36%

0.16%
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Net Interest Income
Unit: Million Baht

Net Interest Income and Return

2015

2014

% Change

Interest Income
• Loans
• Interbank money market
• Investment
Interest Expenses
• Deposits
• Interbank and money market
• Financial Institutions Development Fund fee /
Deposit Protection Agency subsidy
Net Interest Income
Financial Ratios (%)
• Net Interest Margin (NIM)
• Return on performing assets ratio
• Yield on loans
• Cost of funds*
• Cost of deposits**
Margin of return on performing assets ratio
and Cost of funds (Spread)

2,452

2,029

20.8%

2,357

1,886

25.0%

20

34

-42.2%

76

108

-29.6%

783

790

-0.9%

657

674

-2.5%

3

5

-40.0%

122

110

10.9%

1,670

1,239

34.8%

5.5%

4.6%

0.9%

8.1%

7.6%

0.5%

8.6%

8.7%

-0.1%

2.9%

3.3%

-0.4%

3.0%

3.4%

-0.4%

5.2%

4.3%

0.9%

Remarks: Profitability ratio is calculated by having the average of beginning and ending as divider
* Cost of funds = interest expenses (includes Financial Institutions Development Fund fee /Deposit Protection Agency subsidy) / interest bearing debt
** Cost of deposits include Financial Institutions Development Fund fee /Deposit Protection Agency subsidy

In 2015, the Bank’s net interest income increased by 34.7% or
1,670 Million Baht, increased from 1,239 Million Baht in 2014.
The increase of interest income is a result of loan growth of
20.8% and the higher proportion of high-yield loans.

Operating Expenses
The Bank’s Cost-to-Income Ratio stood at 70.4%. The ratio
is quite high compared with other banks in the industry.
It is because the Bank is in a period of expansion and
has recently started operations. However, the ratio will
continuously improve as the Bank continues to manage
revenues and expenses closely.
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Unit: Million Baht

Operating expenses
Personnel expenses
Premises and equipment expenses
Tax and duties
Directors’ remuneration
Loss on impairment of properties for sales
Other expenses
Total operating expenses
Cost to Income ratio (%)

2015

2014

% Change

908

691

31.4

227

198

14.6

68

48

41.7

10

9

11.1

-

29

-100.0

96

103

-6.8

1,308

1,078

21.4

70.4

75.7

Operating expenses increased 21.4% from the previous year because the Bank still focused on personnel investment. We
believe that human capital is the key factors of the Bank’s sustainable success.
Unit: Million Baht

Statement of Financial Position

Cash and interbank and money market items
Investment in securities, net
Loans
Accrued interest receivables
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total loans and accrued interest receivables, net
Premises and equipment (net)
Properties for sale (net)
Deferred tax assets
Other assets
Total assets
Deposits
Interbank and money market items, net
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Paid-up share capital
Retained Earning (deficit)
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

% Change

1,963

1,278

53.6

3,165

4,194

-24.5

27,834

23,051

20.7

142

125

13.6

(1,013)

(844)

20.0

26,962

22,332

20.7

173

136

27.2

13

11

18.2

88

65

35.4

299

241

24.6

32,663

28,256

15.6

26,565

24,152

10.0

1,999

1,168

71.1

460

421

9.3

29,024

25,741

12.8

4,000

3,000

33.3

(361)

(485)

-25.6

3,639

2,515

44.7

32,663

28,256

15.6
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The Bank has total asset as of December 31, 2015 of 32,663
Million Baht, which is 4,407 Million Baht or 15.6% higher than
total asset of 28,256 Million Baht in 2014. The key factors
are the growths of the Bank’s businesses:
Loans
The Bank’s loan totaled 27,834 Million Baht at the end of
2015, which is 4,783 Million Baht or 20.7% higher than the
total loan of 23,051 Million Baht at the end of 2014.

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited

• Loans for small business grew by 53.2% from a year
earlier. Currently, this loans is the most profitable business
of the bank which focuses on small business loans with
ticket size not over 10 Million Baht.
• SME loans grew by 39.5% from a year earlier. SME
focuses on potential targets with good payment
behavior, long term loans with high yield and low risk with
diversified portfolio.

Unit: Million Baht

Loan products
Small business loans
SME loans
Gold loans
Hire purchase loans
Retail loans
Nano Credit
Total loans

• Gold loans decreased by 7.2% from year end 2014 due
to high volatility of gold prices.
• Hire purchase loans decreased by 46.2%, from NPL
sales of 174 Million Baht and freeze new loans. Prudent
collection policy imposed to control NPLs.
• Retail loans decreased by 7.3% due to a slowdown in
underwriting new loans. However, the Bank has started
offering home for cash loans in order to cover the decline.
Liabilities and Equity
The Bank has total liabilities of 29,024 Million Baht at the end
of 2015, which is 3,283 Million Baht or 12.8% higher than the

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

% Change

11,665

7,616

53.2

8,699

6,238

39.5

687

740

-7.2

1,488

2,764

-46.2

5,278

5,693

-7.3

17

-

100

27,834

23,051

20.7

liabilities of 25,741 Million Baht in 2014. The Bank has higher
liabilities because it has 2,413 Million Baht or 10.0% more
in deposits and 831 Million Baht or 71.1% more in interbank
and money market items.
The Bank has shareholders’ equity of 3,639 Million Baht,
which is 1,124 Million Baht or 44.7% higher from 2,515
Million Baht in 2014. The increase is a result of a 1,000 Million
Baht increase in capital and bank’s net profits.
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Deposits
The Bank has deposit as of December 31, 2015 of 26,565
Million Baht, which is 10.0% higher than previous year.
The loan-to-deposit ratio was 104.8%.
Capital Adequacy Ratio
The Bank’s legal capital funds as of December 2015 totaled
3,687.1 Million Baht. The total capital adequacy ratio was
16.4%, which is higher than the minimum requirement of
8.5%, comprised of Tier 1 and Tier 2 of 15.3% and 1.1%
respectively. The capital adequacy ratio is 2.6% higher than
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that of 2014 because the Bank had increased 1,000 Million
Baht in its capital in 2015. The Bank believes that the
current capital adequacy ratio is enough to handle unexpected
crisis. The Bank will maintain its capital adequacy ratio at
13% throughout 2016.
Non-Performing Assets
The Bank’s Non-Performing Loans was at 3.7% of total
loans as of December 2015, which is 3.6% of that in 2014.
Loan loss reserves to non-performing loans ratio (LLR/NPLs)
is 98.6% in 2015, compared with 102.1% at year end 2014.
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Risk Management
and Risk Factors
1. Risk Management Review
World economic slowdown directly impacts Thailand economy.
Thailand economy itself also suffers from low prices of
agricultural commodities, slowdown in export, and increasing
household debt. Changes in legal environment, such as new
regulations concerning to guarantor and debt collection,
new regulatory requirement on liquidity management, and
government’s economic stimulus, have great impacts on the
Bank’s risk management in many ways.
The Bank’s risk management has 4 steps:
• Risk Identification 7 main types of risk are strategic risks,
credit risks, liquidity risks, price risks, operational risks,
risks related to policies and regulations, and risks from
economic uncertainty.
• Risk Measuring Appropriate qualitative and quantitative
risk measuring methods and tools are executed to
properly manage risks.
• Risk Monitoring and Controlling The Bank controls risks
by determining proper risk tolerance that can respond
to encounter risk and conform to the Bank’s operational
strategies. In addition, the Bank sets triggers to raise a
flag when reaching predetermined target risk levels in
order to have proper risk management in timely manner.
• Risk Reporting Risk reporting is conducted on regular
basis. The Bank’s risk reporting is in the form of a
dashboard that provides not only detailed data for
operational level but also comprehensive summary for
executive level. The user-friendly dashboard can be easily
applied for required further actions.
The Bank’s principles of risk management are mainly on
quality loan growth and prudent management. The Bank’s
primary target customers are Small Business and SME
sectors. The critical risks are from customers who fail to
meet the agreed debt obligation. Therefore, the Bank closely
monitors both new and existing customers. Large customers
are being monitored via customers’ visits and financial health

check and medium / small customers being monitored on
portfolio or segment basis.
Besides following up with customers who experience financial
difficulty resulting from economic slowdown, the Bank also
provides the customers a number of assistance programs
according to the BOT’s guideline.
2. Risk Management Organizational Structure
The priority of risk management is to promote the quality
growth and sustainable profitability of our core businesses.
The key strategy is accountable and effective structure;
organization structure and committee structure, including
sub-committee structure to execute effective risk management.
Authority and responsibility of each committee structure are
clearly defined as below:
• Board of Directors
The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for considering
and approving the Bank’s policy, operational framework,
and risk management standards. The Board of Directors
also determines risk scope and framework and ensures that
the Bank’s risk management systems and procedures meet
the standards in the BOT’s guidelines
• Risk Management Committee
Risk Management Committee is in charge with developing
and overseeing the Bank’s risk management policy and
programs to ensure alignment between risk management
strategy and operational strategy. The Committee also needs to
develop frameworks for operations, identification, evaluation,
controlling and monitoring risk levels. In addition, the Committee
annually reviews and provides comments for all the Bank’s
policies before proposing for an approval from the Board of
Directors.
Moreover, the Risk Management Committee oversees
and monitors the operations of Sub-Committees. The
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Sub-Committees is comprised of, for instance, Credit
Committee and Collateral Committee.
• Asset and Liability Committee
The Committee is responsible for managing risks caused by
the interest rate changes, liquidity issues, and utilizing excess
liquidity in the most profitable way. Moreover, the committee
supervises the Pricing Sub-Committee to minimize risks
related to price.
• Audit Committee
The Committee is responsible for examining the effectiveness
of the Bank’s risk management, internal control, internal
auditing, operational processes, and financial reports and
assuring that the Bank’s operations and management meet
the banking standards and comply with regulations of related
financial institutes.
• Executive Committee
The Committee is responsible for overseeing and managing
risks according to the Bank’s policy, strategies, work plans,
and regulations. For example, the Committee is authorized
by the Bank’s Board of Directors to approve expenses and
to make day-to-day operational decision. The Committee’s
responsibilities also include providing suggestions related to
risk management policies before proceeding for the Board
of Directors’ approval.
3. Risk Managements
• Strategic Risks
Strategic risks are caused by business planning and execution that cannot respond to the changes from internal and
external factors which negatively affect the Bank’s profitability,
capital, and the operations.
Therefore, the Bank’s Board of Directors and the Senior
Management carefully develops strategies and business
plans based on the principles of good governance. They also
set up internal infrastructure that could support the Bank’s
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operational activities such as managing organization,
personal, budgets, information system, and controlling and
monitoring systems to ensure that the Bank achieves its goals
and successfully manage unexpected issues.
The framework of strategic risk management is composed
of: 1) short-term and long-term strategic planning, 2) close
monitoring of the Bank’s performance against business
plan, 3) overall assessments of both internal and external
factors, and 4) adjustment on business plan in accordance
with current situations. The strategic risk dashboard is
regularly generated to report business performance to senior
management team and related committee.
Credit Risk
Credit risk is caused by the customers or partners who fail to
meet agreed debt obligation, either due to the impact of their
financial problem or to their intention to default.
Credit risk can occur with all types of financial products, both
on balance sheet products such as loans, overdrafts, or bill
of exchange, and off balance sheet products such as letters
of guarantee.
In 2015, the Bank focused on balancing loan growth with
acceptable risk. Due to the impacts of global and domestic
economic crisis, the Bank carefully manages credit risk
from the selection of customers to monitoring performance,
especially those in high risk industry resulted from price
volatility. The Bank provides financial assistance according to
the BOT’s guideline. Above all, the Bank continues to mitigate
credit risk by covering loans with guarantee from Thai Credit
Guarantee Corporation (TCG).
Framework of credit risk management includes:
• Check and balance system Independent Marketing,
Credit, and Approver functions.
• Risk-based authority Approval authority varies by risk
level of the product and credit skills.
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• Product program Standard set of underwriting criteria
to be used in credit analysis which identifies qualification
of target customers, condition, loan limits, collateral, etc.
• Collateral policy Guideline to set loan to value in according
to collateral liquidity.
Credit Risk – Approval Authority
The Bank’s Board of Directors governs approval authority and
delegates to selected executive members and committees
to operate business activities such as approving loans, etc.
The delegation is based on risk-based authority either to
individual or committee as follows:
1. Committee is composed of the Bank’s Board of Directors
and Credit Committees. The Board of Directors is responsible for analyzing and approving loans per assigned
authority.
2. Individual The Bank delegates loan approval authority to selective individuals under certain loan limit. The
delegation is under co-signer concept - required at least
2 individuals.
Credit Risk - Risk Dashboard
Credit Risk Management Department is responsible for
presenting risk dashboard to Risk Management Committee
and the Board of Directors regularly. The dashboard identifies
key risk indicators and triggers as well as action plan that
must be taken if reaching trigger point.
Risk dashboard provides indicators which presents portfolio
structure and quality, portfolio diversification, loan loss reserve
adequacy ratio and so on. The dashboard also includes
effectiveness of risk management tools such as stress testing
analysis and capital adequacy.
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity Risk occurs when the Bank is unable to meet
schedule of liability requirement as a result of inability to
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liquidate asset to be cash, or to reach funding at proper
pricing, or to raise adequate funding. This risk impacts the
Bank’s profitability and Capital both near term and future term.
In 2015, the Bank has already prepared to comply with new
regulatory guideline for Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) and
Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) which will be effective in
January 2016.
The Bank continuously generates Liquidity Risk Dashboard
that identifies Risk indicator and trigger point used in liquidity
monitoring. Each risk indicator comes with action plan that
needs to be taken when trigger point occurs. The report is
regularly presented to Risk Management Committee and the
Board of Directors.
The Bank’s liquidity risk management strategy focuses on
the investment in high quality asset and appropriate risk
diversification. The Bank developed a Management Action
Triggers and Early Warning System which can send warning
signal to Senior Management team.
In addition, the Bank prepares contingency funding plan that
set out action steps to ensure smooth and effective action
taken during the market crisis. The plan is designed to assure
the Bank’s capacity to meet its financial liability and maintain
a good relationship with funding sources so the Bank can
access proper funds when needed. The plan also helps the
Bank review its performance during significant environmental
changes and adjust its liquidity and profits in accordance with
current situations.
The Bank has several liquidity risk monitoring tools, such as
Loan-to-Deposit (LD) and Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR),
diversification of funding source, and Liquidity Gap to monitor
cash inflow/outflow. The Bank conducts a Liquidity Stress
Test analysis to access level of liquidity cushion and prepare
for unexpected liquidity requirement during crisis.
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In addition, the Bank identifies the early warning and risk limit
to signal the liquidity crisis. The early warning signal is defined
under both behavioral and stress scenario. This ensures the
timely response to unexpected change or crisis.
Furthermore, the Bank has developed Contingency Funding
Plan in order to cope with both liquidity crisis and
unprecedented situation. The plan is developed to manage
several liquidity crisis level, result from level of deposit
withdrawal. It also provides comprehensive instruction and
identifies responsible parties in case of emergency.
In general, the Bank has comparatively low liquidity risk
because of high internal standard and liquid investment
portfolio. Internal minimum liquid asset reserve is set at 12%
of total deposit balance, which is higher than the BOT’s recommended level at 6%. Besides this, the Bank’s investment
portfolio primarily consists of high liquid instruments such as
Government bonds or bond guaranteed by the government.
Market Risk
Market Risk is caused by the changes of exchange rates and
interest rates as well as the fluctuation of the prices of Capital
Market Instruments, leading to adverse consequences for the
Bank’s incomes and capitals.
As a retail bank, the Bank has no transaction related to trading book. The market risk consequently is low. The Bank’s
loan and deposit portfolio has well maturity diversification.
The investment portfolio is mainly high liquid bonds such
Government or State enterprise bonds. The above results in
a natural low market risk.
To manage market risk, the Bank has created policies for
financial transactions and liquidity risk management. The
Board of Directors, Assets and Liabilities Management
Committee (ALCO), and Risk Management Committee are
responsible for making policies, managing market risk, and
reviewing monthly dashboard. Risk tolerance limit and early
warning system are being utilised to manage the market risk.
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The Bank constantly refines the structure of balance sheet to
respond to the future interest rate direction. The Bank closely
monitors interest rate movement and customer behaviors
in order to have the most accurate risk assessment within
acceptable range.
For greater security, the Bank conducts risk assessment more
frequently to see if changes in asset and liability structure are
statistically significant. The Bank conducts Repricing Gap
analysis to monitor interest rate risk and to evaluate Net Interest Income Sensitivity within next 12 months based on a
given 1-2 % interest rate change. Furthermore, the Bank has
created a model demonstrating different interest rate changes
in order to maintain the stability of net interest in all cases.
Operational Risk
Operational Risk encompasses a wide range of risks
including failures or inefficiency of internal operation procedure,
employees, system or information system, as well as external
incidents or factors which can impact the Bank’s operating
income. Operation risk is also relevant to legal issues such
as the risk of getting involved in a lawsuit or being subject
to penalty.
Operational risk is the most significant risk that requires strict
management, monitoring, and control to reduce exposure to
events that could lead to negative impacts. The appropriate
and effective risk management helps the Bank prevent and
mitigate losses. It also helps the Bank improve efficiency of its
services, promote customer confidence, and add long-term
values to the organization.
The Bank continuously conducts Operation Risk Dashboard.
Similarly to other risk reports, Operation Risk Dashboard is
regularly presented to Risk Management Committee and the
Board of Directors.
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Besides Operation Risk Dashboard, the Bank adopts other
risk tools:
• Risk and Control Self Assessment (RCSA) is the tool
that all departments can use to assess risk and evaluate
the effectiveness of their risk controls. This tool helps
users to ensure adequate operational risk control.
• Key Risk Indicators (KRIs) The purpose of KRIs is to help
all departments develop risk monitoring and reports. KRIs
perform as an early warning signal creating risk awareness
at a certain period of time helping all departments find the
causes of the risks and develop preventive measures or
solutions. KRIs also keeps the Bank alert and prepare for
future risks in order to minimize losses.
• Incident and Loss Management (ILM) ILM is conducted
by overseeing, monitoring, and encouraging all departments
to regularly report losses and unusual incidents caused by
operational risk. The practice can help reduce the adverse
impacts on the Bank’s performance. The data from the
reports can be used to improve the effectiveness of the
Bank’s operational risk management.
Operational risk management also includes the risks caused
by uncontrollable external factors. The Bank initiated Business
Continuity Plan (BCP) which is implemented at the Bank’s
headquarter and branches. The Bank regularly reviews and
adjusts the contingency plan. The practice helps the Bank
be prepared for all kinds and levels of emergency. The Bank
can continue to service customers via an alternate branch,
given an incident caused a branch to close. Customers still
receive services as normal.
Regulatory Risk
The Bank is responsible for complying to government
agencies’ regulations, financial institute acts, the BOT’s
notifications and circulation, the Securities Exchange of
Thailand’s laws and regulations, Anti-Money Laundering Acts,
and other related regulations.
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The Compliance Department is in charge of providing
suggestions and clarification on related regulations, as well as
monitoring and overseeing the Bank’s operation to ensure
compliance.
Economy Risk
Thailand’s economy in 2015 has not improved much as
expected. The confidence in Thai economy from private
sectors was quite low, hindering domestic spending and
investment. Export has been decreasing for 3 consecutive
years due to weak global demand. Agricultural product prices
are low. In contrast, household debt continues to increase.
Government scheme and infrastructure spending are below
expectation in terms of increasing economic activities. These
factors have resulted in high economic risk during the last
couple of years
To manage the risk, the Bank regularly conducts loan quality
assessment for individual customers, industry groups, and
loan portfolios. When identifying the customers who are
potentially impacted by financial crisis and losing capacity
to repay the debt, the Bank would immediately provide
assistance and solutions. The Bank also conducts Stress Test
to assess the Bank’s capital strength and levels of reserves
to NPL. The processes are part of compulsory risk test and
assessment identified in the BOT’s guideline.
4. Capital
The Bank realizes that the capital represents the Bank’s
financial strength and soundness which can impact the Bank’s
image and trustworthiness. Therefore, the Bank is determined
to maintain a strong capital that can support business growth
and comply with Basel III which is an international standard
for capital adequacy.
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In 2015, the Bank strengthened its capital soundness by
adding 1,000 Million Baht in capital to support business
growth. As of December 31, 2015, the Bank’s capital to risk
asset ratio (CRAR) increased to 16.42% which is far higher
than the BOT’s minimum ratio of 8.5%.
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Besides capital soundness, the Bank also increases financial
strength using excess reserves policy to alleviate future
volatility as recommended by the Bank of Thailand. Since
2012, the Bank started accumulating excess reserve
balance. As of December 31, 2015, the Bank has total
reserves of 1,024 Million Baht.

Table : Capital and CRAR
(Million Baht)

Capital Equity Tier 1
Capital Equity Tier 2
Total Capital Equity
CRAR

December 31,
2015

December 31,
2014

3,439.4
247.7
3,687.1
16.42

2,366.8
147.3
2,514.1
13.78

Table: Minimum reserve and general reserve
(Million Baht)

Regulated Reserve
Excess reserves
Total Reserve

December 31,
2015

December 31,
2014

653
371
1,024

597
260
857
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Report of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee
The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited’s
Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of 3
directors; Mr. Sirichai Sakornratanakul as the Chairman of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Ms. Kunnigar
Triyangkulsri and Mr. Tan Choon-Hong as the committees.
There were three meetings held in 2015.
Duties and responsibilities of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee include performing duties according to the BOT’s
regulations, the Board of Directors’ assignment, internal
policy, and any related laws. These cover the recruitment
of the Board’s member and high level management, the
consideration of remuneration package for the Board of
Directors, and any committee nominated by the Board, the
recommendation to the Board and/or management regarding
the remuneration package of high level management and
employees in accordance to their respective duties and
responsibilities.
To recruit qualified the Board of Directors and sub-committees,
the nomination and remuneration committee conducts the
assessment of qualification, knowledge, experience, education,

and background of the potential suitable candidates pursuant
to law and requirements. The Committee shall discharge
its duties independently to recruit independent Committee
considering from the independence, number, proportion, and
diversity of the Committee in order to balance the Board’s
component. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
also reviews the nomination for the Deputy Managing Director
and the Assistant Managing Director before proposing to the
Board of Directors and the BOT for approvals and concurrence
respectively.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee certified
that the remuneration package of the Board of Directors,
Sub-committees, and senior management disclosed in the
Bank’s annual report is appropriate with their responsibilities,
achievements, the Bank’s performance, business environment,
and comparison of its peers.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has completed
their duties with integrity, transparency, and accountability
in order to achieve the maximum benefit for the Bank and
shareholders.

Sirichai Sakornratanakul
Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
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Shareholding
Structure
1.  Securities Information
Ordinary Share
The Bank has registered capital shares of 4,125,000,000
baht divided into 412,500,000 ordinary shares with
the par value of 10 baht and paid-up capital shares of
4,000,000,000 baht divided into 400,000,000 ordinary
shares.
Warrant
The Bank issued warrants of 12,500,000 units which can
be exercised to newly issued ordinary shares.
2. Major Shareholders
The Bank’s top 10 major shareholders, as of December 31,
2015, are:
Company            

Percentage

1. Polaris Capital Investment Limited

25.00%

2. Thai Life Insurance Public Company
		Limited

14.78%

3. Jerdjee Company Limited

9.49%

4. CNT Liquor Company Limited

9.13%

5. GLX Bangkok Public Company Limited

9.05%

6. Well Glass Public Company Limited

7.64%

7. Fortuna Capital Public Company Limited

6.45%

8. Best Civil Public Company Limited

4.93%

9. SuraSumpun Public Company Limited

4.52%

10. Banthai Realestate Company Limited

3.59%

3. Dividend payment
The Bank’s dividend must be complied with the statutory
requirements by the Bank of Thailand (BOT) as well as with
the governing laws and the Bank’s Articles of Association
which provide the policy on dividend payments as follows:
“No. 48. Dividend payments that are made from funds
other than profit of the Bank is prohibited. The Bank
cannot pay a dividend while having accumulated losses.
The rest of the profit after dividend payments can be
appropriated to reserves accounts according to the
Board of Directors’ discretion. The Board of Directors may
occasionally pay interim dividends to the shareholders
when the Bank has a large enough profit to warrant it, in
which case it will be reported to the shareholders in the
next meeting.
Dividend payments must be made within 30 days from the
date of the Board or shareholders’ resolution. The Bank
has to issue notices to the shareholders and publish such
notice in newspapers.
4. 	Dividend payment of Subsidiary
The Bank presently has no subsidiary.
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited
prioritizes the well and effective corporate governance to
enhance the core competency and the confidence of all
customers and business partners as they procreate the
great foundation of the sustainable growth that yielding for all
parties including the society and the nation.
The Board of Directors are in the discharge of duties and
responsibilities specified in the charter and the resolutions
of the shareholders meetings by appointing the Board
Committees and assigning them the specific duty to oversee
and pre-screen matters to submit to the Board of Directors
in accordance to drive the organization effectively towards
the Bank’s vision.
The structure, roles and responsibilities of the Board of
Directors and the Board Committees are shown as follows:
Structure of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors takes part in the supervisory of the
Bank’s operations so that it is in accordance with the Bank’s
Articles of Association, the policies including the BOT’s
regulations and other related agencies’.
1. The Board of Directors
The Board of Directors consists of the qualified, skillful, and
great experienced with beneficially financial visions members.
The 9 appointed Board members were elected following the
laws and regulations and the Bank’s Articles of Association,
as follows:
		 Mr. Wanich Chaiyawan
Advisor of Directors
1. Mr. Samart Buranawatanachoke Chairman
2. Mr. Teerapol Pussadet
Independent Director
3. Mr. Sirichai Sakornratanakul
Independent Director
4. Mr. Stephen Tirador Briones
Independent Director
5. Miss. Kunnigar Triyangkulsri
Independent Director
6. Mr. Tan Choon-Hong
Director
7. Miss. Krisana Aramkulchai
Director
8. Mr. Winyou Chaiyawan
Director
9. Mr. Roy Agustinus Gunara
Director
		 Miss. Patanajit Varaphisith
Secretary

Duties and Responsibilities of the Board
of Directors
As the representatives of all shareholders, the Directors take
part in accordance with Article 31 of the Bank’s Articles of
Association including the Bank of Thailand’s Notification,
stating on the “Governance of Financial Institutions” which is
divided into two parts; Main Duties and Responsibilities and
Specific Duties and Responsibilities.
Main Duties and Responsibilities
1. Governing the Bank’s operating policies and closely
monitoring the operating results by assigning Bank
employee to regularly submit the operating results in the
Board of Directors’ Meeting.
2. Determining the appropriately and prudently delegated
authority of internal control, loan approval, risk analysis,
financial obligations, assets trading and contract-related
matters for Directors, Sub-committees and other
individuals in various positions who employ such authority
in various departments/units to protect damages on the
Bank’s credibility, stakeholders and the general public.
3. Cautioning the Bank from all illegal operations. The
President immediately presents the regulatory changes of
announcements and related laws including notices from
regulatory agencies or government agencies and regularly
reports in the Board of Directors’ Meeting. The Directors
improve operations to avoid next infractions.
4. Assigning Bank employee to analyze customer’s financial
status and financial obligations and regularly submitting
the operating results in the Board of Directors’ Meeting.
For certain customer that may have undergone financial
difficulties, the Board of Directors has to resolve and
regularly follow up progress.
5. Monitoring actions from the BOT’s commands and
reports from both internal and external auditors including
ensuring the achievement on set objectives, commands
and resolutions have been accomplished.
6. Studying and understanding the related Roles, Duties
and Responsibilities enacted in the Prescribing Offences
Related to Registered Partnerships, Limited Partnerships,
Limited Companies, Associations and Foundations
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Act, B.E.2499, Civil and Commercial Code, the Public
Companies Act, the Financial Institution Business Act,
B.E. 2551, regulations, announcements and related
present and future notices.
7. Reviewing and discussing the management’s proposed
strategic options following the Bank’s overview and
approving major policies, performance goals, the Annual
Business Plan, Capital Expenditure Budget.
8. Monitoring the Bank’s performance and progress towards
achieving set objectives, as well as compliance with the
laws, regulations, related policies and the resolutions of
the shareholders’ meetings.
9. Formulating the Statement of Business Conduct and
the Code of Conduct of the Bank’s employees, and
disseminating these codes as practical guidelines for the
Bank’s Board of Directors, executives and employees..
10. Ensuring Executives and the Management has operated
effective actions regarding to law and appointed policies.
11. Ensuring the Management to perform effectively, including
appointing executives to carry out the Bank’s actions
12. Ensuring the Management to submit significant Bank’s
affairs to the Board of Directors
Specific Duties and Responsibilities
1. Ensuring the Management to determine policies and
financial risks management which inclusively cover loan
risk, market and investment risk, liquidity risk, operation
risk, as well as maintaining well-reputation, law and
strategies. The Board of Directors approves proposed
policies along with regularly reviewing the strategies,
actions and policies.
2. Approving roles, duties, and responsibilities of all Board
Committees, including re-composition of all Board
Committees that have significant influence on all
appointed Board Committees’ operations.
3. Ensuring the Bank to determine the policy of loan growth
and personal investment for the Bank related persons or
entities.
4. Ensuring external auditors to submit report, and ensuring
the Management to submit recommendations and
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9.
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comments to the Board of Directors. Any delay
submission would require the clarification.
Maintaining an appropriate check-and-balance between
the Management and/or the major shareholders by significantly structuring on composition or the number of
independent directors of the Board of Directors.
Ensuring the Management to sufficiently submit reports for
accomplishing the authorities, duties and responsibilities.
Ensuring that the Bank shall vest authority in the Chief
Executive Officer and the President, also launching operational procedures, regulations, staff manuals, declarations,
as well as the written authority to keep related parties
posted.
Encouraging the Committees to participate at least not
fewer than half of all annual scheduled meetings.
Appointing the Board Committees as deemed appropriate
to manage the Bank so that it is in accordance with the
Bank’s objectives, for example, Management Team.

2. Board Committees appointed by The Board
	of Directors:
Audit Committee consists of 3 directors as follows:
1. Mr. Teerapol Pussadet
Chairman
2. Mr. Sirichai Sakornratanakul
Committee
3. Mr. Stephen Tirador Briones
Committee
Mr. Rong Hirunpanich
Secretary
Duties and Responsibilities
1. Reviewing financial statements of the Bank in order to
ensure that it is accurate, sufficient and reliable.
2. Reviewing the internal control system and the internal
audit function to be appropriate and effective.
3. Reviewing the Bank’s operations to see that they are in
compliance with the Bank’s internal regulations, laws and
regulations pertaining to commercial banking business,
also in compliance with commands and guidance issued
by the BOT.
4. Reviewing the risk management processes and mentoring
tactics and the risk management knowledge to related
executives and employees.
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5. Selecting and considering the qualifications and
performance of external auditors as well as the audit fees,
including protecting auditors’ performing functions with
independence.
6. Approving, reviewing and supervising the proposed plan
from external auditor team as well as related policies and
charters.
7. Reviewing the results of external auditor team’s performance
and reporting to the Board of Directors for comments
on deficiencies of performance and managements as
to prevent unexpected losses or damages to the Bank.
8. Ensuring the disclosures of the Bank’s matters related
to executives or possible conflict of interest in order to
ascertain the disclosures are functioning and transparency.
9. Overseeing the operations to be in compliance with the
Board of Directors’ approvals.
10. Concurring in the appointment, transfer and dismissal of the
Internal Audit Head, including reviewing the performance
and audit fee arrangement.
11. Structuring and scaling the Internal Audit Team.
12. Preparing the Audit Committee Report for disclosure in
the annual report of the Bank.
13. Submitting the reports to the Board of Directors on
suspicious behavior of fraud or violation of laws to amend
within the appropriated period of time.
14. Performing other duties per regulatory requirements or
assignment of the Board of Directors, as agreed by the
Audit Committee, for example, reviewing the financial
management policies, the risk management, also tracking
the executives’ Statement of Business Conduct as well
as reviewing the important disclosures in compliance with
laws and regulations.
3. The Nomination and Remuneration Committees
consists of 3 directors as follows:
1. Mr. Sirichai Sakornratanakul
Chairman
2. Miss. Kunnigar Triyangkulsri
Committee
3. Mr. Tan Choon-Hong
Committee
Miss. Patanajit Varaphisith
Secretary
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Duties and Responsibilities
1. Formulating the transparency human resource policies
on director and senior executive nomination, reviewing
the Directors’ and senior executives’ remuneration and
reporting to the Board of Directors for approval, thus
submitting to the BOT whenever summoned.
2. Qualifying and nominating the qualified persons to the
Board of Directors for following positions:
2.1 Directors
2.2 Board Committees with specific duties and responsibilities
directly assigned by the Board of Directors
2.3 Senior Executives
3. Reviewing the remuneration for directors and senior
executives, deemed it commensurate with the scope
of their duties and responsibilities. Recommending
compensation for directors assigned by further duties
and responsibilities.
4. Structuring and scaling the appropriate composition of
the Board of Directors as well as revising to correspond
to the current situation.
5. Approving the appraisement of directors and senior
executives beginning with Executive Vice President for
the annual compensation considered by duties and
responsibilities and incurred risk.
6. Disclosing policies and details of the qualifying, the
designing remunerations and the form of remunerations
and the comments from the Nomination and Remuneration
Committees on the Bank’s Annual Report.
Management Team consists of 2 Executive Directors and
7 executives as follows:
1. Mr. Winyou Chaiyawan
Chairman
2. Mr. Roy Agustinus Gunara
Vice Chairman
3. Mr. Suchin Srisurangkul
Committee
4. Miss. Sanannart Kulpaisantham Committee
5. Mr. Kittipant Sriwannawit
Committee
6. Mr. Pornthep Permpornpipat
Committee
7. Mr. Kamolphu Palephapong
Committee
8. Mr. Kajhitphome Sudsok
Committee
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9. Mr. David Jeffrey Stone
		 Mrs. Bongkot Sirivallop

Committee
Secretary

Duties and Responsibilities
The Board of Directors vests authority in the Management
Team to initiate following duties and responsibilities:
1. Screening the Management’s proposed strategic options.
2. Supervising the Bank’s performance and progress towards
achieving policies, strategic options, set objectives, as
well as the Annual Business Plan.
3. Monitoring the Bank’s performance progressing in compliance
with the laws and the Bank’s related regulations.
4. Considering or approving such transactions according to
the delegated authority.
5. Considering or approving loans or issuing instrument for
long-term fund mobilization undertaking businesses.
6. Considering or approving postal progression as well
as payments for the Bank’s operations and investment
expenditures approved by the Board of Directors.
7. Screening the principles and best practices including
policies for Business Conducting for the Board’s
consideration.
8. Discharging operations as assigned by the Board of
Directors.
Risk Management Committee
Comprises of Executive Directors and executives appointed by
the Board of Directors. The qualified 9 members’ composition
is in conformity with the Bank of Thailand’s notification on the
“Governance of Financial Institutions”:
1. Mr. Winyou Chaiyawan
Chairman
2. Mr. Roy Agustinus Gunara
Vice chairman
3. Mr. Suchin Srisurangkul
Committee
4. Mr. Pornthep Permpornpipat
Committee
5. Mr. David Jeffrey Stone
Committee
6. Mr. Kittipant Sriwannawit
Committee
7. Miss. Achara Ruangchay
Committee
8. Mr. Dulyavit Intapantee
Committee
9. Mr. Pakornkiat Sirichoksawat
Committee
		 Mrs. Bongkot Sirivalllop
Secretary
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Duties and Responsibilities
1. Formulating the risk management policies, strategies and
practices to conform to the organization’s strategies and
presenting to the Board of Directors for consideration
of overall risk management. The policy must cover the
various risks associated with strategies, credit, market,
liquidity, operational, or other significant types of risk.
2. Formulating the strategies to conform to the risk
management policies. The strategies must enable the
effective analysis, assessment, evaluation, and monitoring
of risk management.
3. Ensuring that the risk management policies are sufficient
and effective by considering or approving the overall
risk measurement and monitoring process. Overseeing
compliance with appropriate risk management practices
according to the risk management.
4. Approving the policies and the scope of Business
Continuity Plan.
5. Providing recommendation on improvement to the Audit
Committee regularly to conform to the defined policies
and strategies as well as discharging duties assigned by
the Audit Committee.
6. Overseeing the efficiency of resource on the risk
management operating, for example employee in the Risk
Management Unit and the risk control unit, the operation
improvement in conformity with the risk management, etc.
7. Managing operations as assigned by the Board of
Directors and the Audit Committee.
8. Appointing Sub-committees or related parties to support
the Risk Management Committee by preparing reports,
analysing or performing other duties under the scope of
their authorities.
9. Discharging assigned operations
Board Committees
The Board of Directors has considered appropriateness
and appointed the Board Committees, with specific duty
to review and manage the Bank’s matters enabling speed,
flexibility and support to strategies. The Bank has appointed
17 sub-committees, as follows:
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1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.

Assets and Liabilities Management Committee
Interest Rate Sub-committee
IT Steering Committee
Procurement Committee
Loan Approval Committee 1
Loan Approval Committee 2
Debt Restructuring Committee
Collateral Committee and Duo Collateral Sub-committee
Business Continuity Planning Committee
Liabilities Transaction and Investment Unit Trading
Dealers Management Sub-committee
11. Business Process Excellence Committee

3. Independent Directors
The definition of Independent Director: Independent Directors
shall not have any financial or operational relation or interest
with the Bank which may interfere with his/her independent
judgment. Independent directors shall also possess all
qualifications under the rules prescribing qualifications of
independent directors in Notification of the Capital Market
Supervisory Board No. TorJor. 28/2551, Re: Application
and Approval for New Shares as at December 15, 2008
(“Notification TorJor. 28/2551”), as able to be amended later.
Qualifications:
a) An independent director must not hold shares exceeding
one percent of the total shares with voting rights of the
Company, the parent company or that of any subsidiaries,
the associate companies, major shareholders or any legal
entity that may have the conflict of interest. Such percentage
shall include shares held by related persons of such
independent director;
b) an independent director shall not be or have been an executive
director, employee, staff and consultant who receives a
regular salary or a controlling person of the Company, the
subsidiaries, the associate companies, the same-level
subsidiaries, or any legal entity that may have conflict of
interest, unless the director has not held such position
for at least two years before the date of submission
of the application to the Office of the SEC Thailand;
c) an independent director shall not be related by blood
or legal registration as father, mother, spouse, sibling,
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or child, including spouse of a child of another director,
executive, major shareholder, controlling person or person
to be nominated as an executive or a controlling person
of the company or subsidiary company;
d) an independent director shall not have or have had a
business relationship with the company, the parent
company, the subsidiaries, the associate companies or
any legal entity that may have conflict of interest, in the
manner which may interfere with his/her independent
judgment, and shall not be or have been a major
shareholder, any director, or executive, of any person
having a business relationship with the company, the
parent company, the subsidiaries, the associate companies,
or any legal entity that may have conflict of interest, unless
such relationship ended at least two years before the
date of submission of the application to the Office of the
SEC Thailand;
The aforementioned “business relationship” includes any
normal business transaction, rental or lease of immovable
property, transaction relating to assets or services, or
grant or receipt of financial assistance through receiving
or extending loans, guarantees, providing assets as
collateral, including any other similar actions, which result
in the Bank or counterparty being liable to indebtedness
payable to other party in the amount of three percent
or more of the net tangible assets of the Bank or Baht
twenty million or more, whichever is lower. The amount of
such indebtedness shall be calculated according to the
calculation method for the value of connected transactions
under the Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory
Board concerning regulations in respect of an entering into
connected transaction mutatis mutandis. The combination
of such indebtedness shall include indebtedness taking
place during the course of 1 year prior to the date on which
such a business relationship with the person commences;
e) an independent director shall not be or have been an
auditor of the Company, the parent company, the
subsidiaries, the associate companies or any legal entity
that may have conflict of interest, and shall not be a
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major shareholder, any director, executive, or a partner in
the auditing office in which the auditor of the company,
the parent company, the subsidiaries, the associate
companies, or any legal entity that may have conflict
of interest, unless the foregoing relationship has ended
at least two years before the date of submission of the
application to the Office of the SEC Thailand;
f) an independent director shall not be or have been a
provider of any professional service, including legal
advisory or financial advisory service receiving more
than Baht two million of service charges per year from
the company, the parent company, the subsidiaries, the
associate companies, or any legal entity that may have
conflict of interest works. In case of the Advisory operates
under juristic person, independent director shall not be
the major shareholder, any director, executive, or a partner
in of any juristic person, unless the foregoing relationship
has ended at least two years before the date of submission
of the application to the Office of the SEC Thailand;
g) an independent director shall not be a director appointed
as the agent of the directors of the company, major
shareholders, or shareholders related to a major
shareholder;
h) an independent director shall not possess any other characteristics that prohibits the expression of independent
opinion towards the Company’s operation.
The qualified independent directors, who possess the
aforementioned qualifications from (a) to (h) are assigned
by the Board of Directors to make decision or in the form of
collective decision on the operations of the company, the
parent company or that of any subsidiaries, the associate
companies, or any legal entity that may have the conflict of
interest.
Independent Directors are 4 qualified persons as follows:
1. Mr. Teerapol Pussadet
2. Mr. Sirichai Sakornratanakul
3. Miss. Kunnigar Triyangkulsri
4. Mr. StephenTirador Briones
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4. Remuneration to Directors
4.1 Policies
Remuneration to member in the position of directors and
higher is paid according to the resolutions of the shareholders
meetings. It is tied directly to the performance of each
individual executive and as the Bank’s operating and financial
results, performance, the overall business, as well as
comparison with industry, and economic environment.
4.2 Remuneration Payment
4.2.1 Remuneration
1. Payment for directors is a multiple of three:
		 1) Monthly remuneration payment for the following
			 positions:
			 • Chairman of the Board of Directors and Directors
			 • Chairmen of Board Committees, for instance
				 The Audit Committee
		 2) Meeting allowance is paid based on attendance
			 of person at meetings.
		 3) Directors’ bonus is paid due to the following criteria:
			 • The Bank has earned income and
			 • The Bank has approved to pay dividend to
				shareholders
		 4) Other types of remuneration payment periodically
			 approved in the resolutions of shareholders
			 meetings.
2. Executives in the position of Directors and higher
		 receives remuneration including salaries, special
		 contributions, bonuses and living expenses - car
		 maintenance, gasoline and mobile phone, from the
		Bank.
4.2.2 Other types of remuneration payment paid according
to the Bank’s policies are shown as follows:
• living allowance / accommodation cost / transportation
allowance when traveling on the Company’s business in
provincial or foreign locations
• benefits such as providing medical costs, annual medical
check-ups, life insurances
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Shares, Debentures Returns or Other Benefits
The total amount of remuneration payments; monthly compensation and meeting allowance, made in 2015 to the Company’s
Directors were 3,800,000 Baht in total, as follows:
List of the Company’s Directors

1. Mr. Wanich Chaiyawan
2. Mr. Samart Buranawatanachoke
3. Mr. Teerapol Pussadet
4. Mr. Sirichai Sakornratanakul
5. Miss. Kunnigar Triyangkulsri
6. Mr. Stephen Tirador Briones
7. Mr. Tan Choon-Hong
8. Miss. Krisana Aramkulchai
9. Mr. Winyou Chaiyawan
10. Mr. Roy Agustinus Gunara
Total

The Board of Management
Directors
Team

The Audit
Committee

The Nomination
and Remuneration
Committee

Total

-

-

-

-

-

1,220,000

-

-

-

1,220,000

130,000

-

960,000

-

1,090,000

120,000

-

480,000

50,000

650,000

110,000

-

-

30,000

140,000

90,000

-

480,000

-

570,000

100,000

-

-

30,000

130,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,770,000

-

1,920,000

110,000

3,800,000

Remarks: 1. The above payment is not included the executive directors’ monthly compensation and other benefits.
2. Mr. Wanich Chaiyawan rejected the monthly compensations.
3. Miss. Krisana Aramkulchai, Mr. Winyou Chaiyawan and Mr. Roy Agustinus Gunara rejected all meeting allowances.
The remuneration payments made in 2015 to the Executive
Directors were as follows:
Remunerations
Monthly compensation
Contributions to the
provident fund
Contributions to the social
security fund
Total

Executive
Directors

Amount
(Baht)

4

16,677,013.40

2

932,052.00

2

18,000.00

4

17,627,065.40

The remuneration payment such as bonus, made in 2015
was as follows:
Remunerations
Bonus
Total

Executive
Directors

Amount
(Baht)

-

-

The Shares, Debentures Returns to the Directors in 2015
was as follows:
Remunerations
Shares/Debentures
Total

Executive
Directors

Amount
(Baht)

-

-

-

-
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The other benefits remuneration made in 2015 was as follows:
Remunerations
Insurance
Total

Executive
Directors

Amount
(Baht)

4

14,400.00

4

14,400.00

5. The Rights of Stakeholders
The Board of Directors places particular emphasis on the
equal rights of all stakeholders. In order to ensure that all
the rights defined by fairness, the Board of Directors has
performed the operations in compliance with the related law
and the bank’s regulations and policies as follows:
Shareholders: The Bank is determined to achieve good
operating performance for sustainable growth, and
competitiveness.
Employees: The Bank continues to build excellent services
and maximize employees’ knowledge and capabilities
to prepare them for providing to customers. Favorable
business culture and atmosphere are promoted in the
workplace, together like one big family, with the provision for
their career advancement and the fairness of labor benefits
to foster strong ties working at TCRB.
Customers: The Bank aims to promote customer satisfaction
and foster good customer relations by offering cordial, speedy
and high-quality products and services, in response to the
needs of customers.
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Counterparties: The Bank underlines long-term and
sustainable growth when conducting business with
counterparties. To achieve the Bank’s objective sets in
compliance with integrity and fairness, the Bank forges
industry alliances to cooperate and share necessary
information for cooperating business.
Creditors: In accordance with the Bank’s procedures, the
bank is committed to the agreements that makes with
its creditors by repaying complete principle and interest
balance to all creditors by the payment due date and repaying
in compliance with Interest-bearing terms and conditions to
ensure creditors on the well financial credibility and payment
ability of the Bank.
Regulatory Agencies: The Bank is rigidly committed to discipline
in the operation of our business complying with all applicable
laws and regulations.
Social responsibility: The Bank’s operations are consistent
with the Bank’s procedures, which are in compliance with
ethics and good corporate governance principles, while
ensuring to empower our society continually by our products
and services, including distribution of educational supplies,
distributions of used desk calendars for producing Braille
book, donation for the Pathumthani’s slaughter house under
the campaign “Royal Cattle Buffalo Bank for Farmers” and
undertaking training course “Nai Park Pien Son Hai Ruay
(Mr. Diligence’s guides to be wealthy).”

66

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited

Corporate Governance Structure

6. conference
List of the Company’s Directors

The Board of
Directors

Management
Team

The Audit
Committee

The Nomination
and Remuneration
Committee

13/13
13/13
12/13
9/13
11/13
10/13
13/13
13/13
12/13

12/13
13/13

13/13
12/13
12/13
-

3/3
3/3
3/3
-

Mr. Samart Buranawatanachoke
Mr. Teerapol Pussadet
Mr. Sirichai Sakornratanakul
Mr. Stephen Tirador Briones
Miss. Kunnigar Triyangkulsri
Mr. Tan Choon-Hong
Miss. Krisana Aramkulchai
Mr. Winyou Chaiyawan
Mr. Roy Agustinus Gunara
				
7. Business Ethics
The Board of Directors has promoted the establishment of a
Statement of Business Conduct to develop the organization
towards attaining the top business ethics standards to benefit
shareholders and stakeholders. The following are the essences
of business ethics:
• Integrity
• Morality
• Prevention of conflicts of interest
• Observance of laws
The Bank dedicated to carry out the approved principles by
Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption
Council (CAC). The principles or the Code of Conduct is
for directors and employees. All directors, executives, and
employees share common goals in carrying out their
designated duties and responsibilities to the Bank and its
stakeholders. They perform their duties with integrity and
carefulness; also protecting customer’s confidentiality and
maintaining customer, shareholder and public trust by
applying professional standards.

8. Conflicts of Interest Prevention
The Bank has initiated guidelines to control, supervise, and
prevent transactions that may involve conflicts of interest or
connected or related transactions. The Bank encourages
actions in compliance with standards of good governance,
and to meet targets related to regulatory agencies.
The transactions that may involve conflicts of interest or
connected or related transactions will be considered and
taken actions in accordance with regulatory agencies and
general terms as applying to general customers.
To prevent conflicts of interest, Directors with related interest
in a transaction with the Bank or its subsidiaries must not
participate in considering or approving such transaction. It will
be considered within general terms to prevent any benefits
occurred for related directors.
9. Internal Control and Auditing
The Bank has placed particular emphasis on internal control
system by establishing the appropriate and sufficient
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internal control policies including developing them to reach their
effectiveness. With the recognition of the importance of
internal control that can drive the Bank’s business operations
and employees’ practices to be effective and efficient to
achieve long-term profitability and goals. The following is the
essence of these principles:
1. Appropriating segregation of organization, in accordance
with Bank’s size and business goals.
2. The Audit Committee has the duty and responsibility to
review the effectiveness and adequacy of internal control
systems. The Compliance Department works closely with
auditors and supervises the conduct of the Bank in order
to comply with regulatory requirements and the Bank
regulations, including Disclosure and Transparency.
3. Control activities are an integral part of operations.
Appropriate segregation of duties is embedded to create
a proper “check-and-balance” system for operating staff,
supervisors, and performance assessment. Any possible
conflict of interest is identified and subject to careful
monitoring, in accordance with regulatory requirements
and the Bank’s regulations
4. Information systems have continuously been upgraded
to provide the financial data, as well as operational and
compliance data, to monitor the effectiveness of the
internal control system and to promptly correct action
against significant deficiencies. The adequate information
is provided for timely decision-making by the management
and the Board of Directors.
The auditors aim at assessing the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Bank’s performance by the
risk-based criteria and internal control system, in
compliance with regulatory requirements and the Bank’s
procedures. The auditors are independent in their tasks
and from the Management and reports directly to the
Audit Committee.
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10. Disclosure
Although, the bank is not registered in the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, the Bank believes in our transparent and fair business
operations and prioritizes the importance of transparent
information disclosure. Disclosures of the Bank’s financial,
non-financial information and the capital requirements in
accordance with the BOT’s notice, including the information of
our products and services can be found at www.tcrbank.com.
11. Customer Relation Management
Customer relationship management is the important approach
to seek solid business advancement and goal of stable business
growth. As TCRB’s motto “ทุ่มเทด้วยใจ ฉับไว ไว้วางใจได้”
The Bank sustainably operates our customer relationship
management under these 4R elements:
Retention
Focusing on retaining our existing customer
base.
Relationship Achieving the ultimate customers’ satisfaction
by productive ties.
Referral
Earning the confidence and trust from customers and widely mentioned about the satisfaction
on products and services.
Recovery
Recovering error with comprehensible, speedy
and disclosed operations to ensure customers
on our commitment on operating as the stated
motto.
12. Receiving Information or Complaints
The Bank appreciates every comment, suggestion and
complaint and determines for improvement as we are aware
of customer’s valuable time and satisfaction.
If customer receives dissatisfaction from the bank’s service,
customer can submit comment via Call Center or the Bank’s
social media channels as the Bank values customer’s
satisfaction.
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13. Employee development
Employees are valuable assets of the Bank as they are the part
to boost our business towards success. The Bank continues
to develop employees in line with maximizing potentials, ability
and experienced personnel in compliance with enlightening
the organization’s value, visions, goals and customers’ needs
to advance the sustainable growth together between the
organization and the employees.
The Bank organizes training course “Learning for Organization
Excellence” for employees, the activity related to the
development of the Bank’s identity that enhances their
capabilities and helps them operate, and encourages
employee involvement through the expression of opinions
and participation and shapes them into one of the TCRB’s
identity.
The Organization’s Core Values:		
T
Team Spirit				
C
Credibility				
R
Result Oriented				
B
Best Service				
L
Leadership			
I
Integrity
14. Corporate Governance Policy
The Bank was recognized as certified companies of Private
Sector Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption by the
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Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption
Council, or CAC in 2015. The Bank places particular emphasis
on anti-corruption for effective practices and appropriate
actions within the organization to achieve sustainable growth.
The Board of Directors prioritizes corporate governance by
appointing the Committees to supervise and manage the
Bank effectively and encourages all people in the organization
to realize the importance of acting in compliance with the
Statement of Corporate Governance Principles.
In accordance with the Bank’s structure, all departments have
been part of business operations defined by good corporate
governance practices. The N1 Executives are responsible
for assigned operations and appointing staffs to monitor the
Bank’s performance and progress towards achieving good
corporate governance practices, set objectives, as well as
complying with the laws, regulations and related policies of
the Bank, the BOT and related agencies.
The Bank encourages actions in compliance with standards
of good governance and identifies and analyzes risks from
customers’ factors or others to achieve the appropriate
planning for the organization. The auditors are responsible
for controlling operations under acceptable risk levels and
monitoring organization-wide management policies.
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Report of the Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report
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Report of the Board of Directors’
Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Thai Credit Retail Bank PCL’s Board of Directors is
responsible for preparing and presenting financial statements
in accordance with the Thai Financial Reporting Standards
and generally accepted accounting practice, with appropriate
accounting policies applied on a consistent basis. Where
judgment and estimates were required, these were made with
careful and reasonable consideration, adequate disclosure
have been made in the notes to financial statements. These
financial statements have been audited by independent
certified auditors who have given their unqualified opinions.
The Board of Directors has established and maintained
risk management system, internal control system, internal
audit, and compliance measurement that are appropriate,
under the good corporate governance and ensure that the
financial records are accurate and completed. These present

the actual and proper financial position in accordance to the
Thai Financial Reporting Standards to embolden confidence
that the Bank has financial stability and ability to effectively
manage risk from economic deterioration. In addition, the
Board of Directors has appointed the Audit Committee which
consists of three independent directors to ensure the quality
of financial reports, internal control system, and the disclosure
of related transactions in view of completeness, adequacy,
and appropriateness. The Audit Committee has expressed
its opinions with regard to the stated matters as presented
in this annual report.
There is the Board of Directors’ view that the Bank has
disclosed appropriate and transparent information and can
reasonably assure the creditability of the financial statements
of the Bank for the year end of December 31, 2015.

Samart Buranawattanachoke
Chairman of the Board
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Report of
The Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Thai Credit Retail Bank Public
Company Limited comprises of three independent directors:
1. Mr. Teerapol Pussadet
Chairman of the
			
Audit Committee
2. Mr. Sirichai Sakornratanakul
Member of the
			
Audit Committee
3. Mr. Stephen Tirador Briones
Member of the
			
Audit Committee
Mr. Rong Hirunpanich, Senior Vice President of Internal Audit,
is the Secretary to the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee performs their duties within the scope
of responsibilities stipulated in the Charter of Audit Committee
which had been assigned by the Bank’s Board of Directors.
In 2015, the Audit Committee held 13 meetings and reported
monthly to the Board of Directors. The achievements of the
Audit Committee were as follows:
1. Financial reports
The Audit Committee reviewed the Bank’s financial reports
half-year and annually as well as the Bank’s subsidiaries under
generally accepted auditing standards. The Audit Committee regularly discussed with the auditors and executives of
financial group to ensure the accuracy and reliability of the
data, the adequacy of disclosure and transparency, as well

as considering audit results, significant risks and the Bank’s
risk management plans.
2. Internal Control and Audit
The Audit Committee was responsible for ensuring that the
Bank has an appropriate, adequate, and effective internal
control. The Audit Committee has approved the annual
auditing plan and provided guidance to the internal auditors
so they could build an effective team to work independently.
Moreover, the Audit Committee worked closely with the BOT’s
and the Bank’s auditors.
3. Regulatory compliance
The Audit Committee has considered and approved the
annual plan of compliance and monitoring performance of
compliance closely to ensure that the Bank complied with
the law and regulatory requirement.
4. Credit Review
The Audit Committee has considered and concurred the annual credit review plan before proposing to the Bank’s Board
of Directors. They acknowledged loan quality report, result
of credit review and tracked improvement to make sure that
the Bank’s credit processes are appropriate.

72

Report of Audit Committee

5. Risk Management
The Audit Committee reviewed the Bank’s risk management
by monitoring the performance of the risk management unit
to ensure that the Bank’s risk managements are effective and
the encountered risks are at the acceptable levels designated
by the Board of Directors.
6. Transactions with Related Parties and Conflicts of
Interests
The Audit Committee reviewed transactions with related
parties and transactions that may have Conflicts of Interests
before reporting to the Bank’s Board of Directors for consideration. The Audit Committee focuses on transparency,
adequacy of disclosure, and principles of good governance
in their practice.
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7. External auditors
The Audit Committee considered nomination and appointment of the auditor and propose opinion on audit fees to the
Board of Directors for the shareholders’ approval.
The Audit Committee has reviewed and evaluated the activities mentioned above and had opinions that the Board of
Directors and executive members have the good governance
policies. They have put a great deal of commitment and
disciplinary to ensure that Bank’s goals are achieved, risk
managements are effective with adequate internal controls.
The Internal auditors are independent and audit process are
set according to the internal audit standard, including the
credit review and compliance to be complied with the bank’s
policies as well as the law and regulations.

Mr. Teerapol Pussadet		
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public
Company Limited

I have audited the financial statements of The Thai Credit
Retail Bank Public Company Limited, which comprise
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and
statements of comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’
equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other notes.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in
accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The
Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited as at 31
December 2015, and results of operations for the year then
ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Boonlert Kamolchanokkul
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 5339
PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Ltd.
Bangkok
3 March 2016
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited
As at 31 December 2015

Bank
Notes
Assets
Cash
Interbank and money market items, net
Investments in securities, net
Loans to customers and accrued interest receivables, net
Loans to customers
Add Accrued interest receivables
Total loans to customers and accrued interest receivables
Less Deferred revenue
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts
Less Revaluation allowance for debts restructuring

Total assets

……………………………..…….. Director		
(Mr.Winyou Chaiyawan)
			

513,178

516,596

1,449,969

761,393

8

3,164,778

4,193,921

27,833,983

23,051,618

141,848

125,360

27,975,831

23,176,978

(277)

(754)

10

(876,147)

(769,883)

11

(136,999)

(73,865)

26,962,408

22,332,476

9

9.1

21,000

-

12

13,334

10,649

13

172,500

135,641

14

107,990

100,097

15

87,603

64,753

16

170,249

140,401

32,663,009

28,255,927

……………………………..…….. Director
(Mr.Roy Agustinus Gunara)

The accompanying notes are an intergal part of these financial statements

2014
Baht’000

7

Total loans to customers and accrued interest receivables, net
Account receivable from sale of loans
Properties for sale, net
Premises and equipment, net
Other intangible assets, net
Deferred tax assets
Other assets, net

2015
Baht’000
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Cont’d)
The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited
As at 31 December 2015

Bank
Notes

2015
Baht’000

2014
Baht’000

17

26,565,372

24,152,404

18

1,998,616

1,167,552

Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Deposits
Interbank and money market items, net
Liabilities payable on demand
Provisions for post-employment benefits obligation
Other liabilities

47,693

27,788

19

33,803

36,581

20

378,786

357,044

29,024,270

25,741,369

Total liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Authorised share capital
412,500,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each
312,500,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each

22
4,125,000
3,125,000

Issued and paid-up share capital
400,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each
300,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each
Reserve for share-based payment
Other reserves
Retained earnings
Appropriated
Legal reserve
Unappropriated (Deficit)

4,000,000
3,000,000
11,987

8,562

3,014

5,948

2,300

2,300

(378,562)

(502,252)

Total Bank’s equity

3,638,739

2,514,558

Total equity

3,638,739

2,514,558

32,663,009

28,255,927

23

Total liabilities and equity

……………………………..…….. Director		
(Mr.Winyou Chaiyawan)
			

……………………………..…….. Director
(Mr.Roy Agustinus Gunara)

The accompanying notes are an intergal part of these financial statements
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Consolidated

Interest income
Interest expenses

2014

2015

2014

Notes

Baht’000

Baht’000

Baht’000

27

2,224,379

2,452,413

2,028,800

28

(790,037)

(782,751)

(789,572)

1,434,342

1,669,662

1,239,228

29

141,788

160,899

128,916

29

(41,492)

(48,297)

(33,784)

100,296

112,602

95,132

56,657
181

7,352
26

61,833
181

Interest income, net
Fees and service income
Fees and service expenses
Fees and service income, net
Net gains on investments
Dividend income
Gain on sale of loans
Other operating income

30
9.1

Total operating income
Other operating expenses
Employee’s expenses
Directors’ remuneration
Premises and equipment expenses
Taxes and duties
Loss on impairment of properties for sale
Other expenses
Total other operating expenses
Bad debts, doubtful accounts and impairment loss

31

Profit from operating before
income tax expense
Income tax

32

Net profit

……………………………..…….. Director		
(Mr.Winyou Chaiyawan)
			

Bank

-

29,067

-

95,065

40,121

27,433

1,686,541

1,858,830

1,423,807

(748,397)
(8,615)
(208,802)
(49,629)
(32,292)
(182,452)

(907,726)
(9,569)
(226,711)
(68,098)
(96,434)

(690,846)
(8,554)
(197,719)
(48,468)
(28,855)
(103,013)

(1,230,187)

(1,308,538)

(1,077,455)

(418,425)

(409,027)

(316,380)

37,929

141,265

29,972

9,472

(30,577)

12,101

47,401

110,688

42,073

……………………………..…….. Director
(Mr.Roy Agustinus Gunara)

The accompanying notes are an intergal part of these financial statements
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Cont’d)
The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Consolidated

Bank

2014

2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

Baht’000

(12,000)
2,400

16,252

(3,250)

(12,000)
2,400

(9,600)

13,002

(9,600)

3,640

(3,667)

3,641

(728)

733

(728)

2,912

(2,934)

2,913

Total other comprehensive income (loss), net

(6,688)

10,068

(6,687)

Total comprehensive income

40,713

120,756

35,386

Net profit attributable
Owners of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

47,401
1

110,688

42,073

-

-

47,402

110,688

42,073

40,713
1

120,756

35,386

-

-

40,714

120,756

35,386

0.16

0.32

0.14

Note
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations
Income tax on items that will not be reclassified
Total items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains (loss) on remeasuring available-for-sale investment
Income tax relating to item that will be reclassified
subsequently to profit of loss
Total items that will be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss

Total comprehensive income attributable
Owners of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

Profit per share of owners of the Bank
Basic profit per share

……………………………..…….. Director		
(Mr.Winyou Chaiyawan)
			

36

……………………………..…….. Director
(Mr.Roy Agustinus Gunara)

The accompanying notes are an intergal part of these financial statements

2,912

8,562

3,000,000

The accompanying notes are an intergal part of these financial statements

-

2,787

5,947

-

3,035

5,775

3,000,000

2,300

-

2,300

Appropriated
Legal reserve
Baht’000

(479,790)

(517,591)
37,801
-

Retained Earnings
Unappropriated
(Deficit)
Baht’000

2,537,019

-

40,713

2,787

2,493,519

Total
Bank’s
equity
Baht’000

Bank’s equity

-

1

1

(2)
-

Noncontrolling
interest
Baht’000

2,537,019

40,714
1

2,787

2,493,517

Total
Baht’000

Consolidated

Statement of changes in equity

Balance as at 31 December 2014

Balance as at 1 January 2014
Provision for share-based payment
Total comprehensive income
Change in NCI from selling of subsidiary

Reserve for
share-based
payment
Baht’000

Other reserves Revaluation
surplus (deficit)
on investments
Baht’000

Issued and
paid-up
share capital
Baht’000

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited and its subsidiary
For the year ended 31 December 2015

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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8,562
8,562

3,425

11,987

3,000,000
3,000,000
1,000,000

4,000,000

Balance as at 31 December 2014

Balance as at 1 January 2015
Share capital
Provision for share-based payment
Total comprehensive income

Balance as at 31 December 2015

3,014

(2,934)

5,948

2,300

-

2,300

2,300

-

2,300

Appropriated
Legal reserve
Baht’000

(378,562)

(502,252)
123,690

(502,252)

(534,725)
32,473

Unappropriated
(Deficit)
Baht’000

Bank’s equity

3,638,739

120,756

3,425

1,000,000

2,514,558

2,514,558

35,386

2,787

2,476,385

Total
Baht’000

Bank

					

Statement of changes in equity

The accompanying notes are an intergal part of these financial statements

2,913

5,948

-

2,787

-

3,035

5,775

3,000,000

Other reserves revaluation
surplus (deficit)
on Investments
Baht’000

Balance as at 1 January 2014
Provision for share-based payment
Total comprehensive income

Reserve for
share-based
payment
Baht’000

Issued and
paid-up
share capital
Ordinary shares
Baht’000

							
The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited and its subsidiary
For the year ended 31 December 2015

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Cont’d)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited and its subsidiary
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Consolidated

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit (loss) from operating before income tax expense
Items to reconcile profit (loss) from operating before
income tax expense to cash received (paid)
from operating activities
Bad debt and doubtful accounts
Gain on sale of loans
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Net amortisation of discount on
investments in debt securities
Gain on disposal of securities
Gain on disposal of subsidiary
Gain on sales of properties for sale
Gain on disposal of premises and equipment
Loss on disposal of other intangible assets
Loss on trouble debts restructuring
Employment benefit expense
Directors’ remuneration using share - based payment
Net interest income
Proceeds from interest income
Cash paid for interest expenses
Dividend income
Proceeds from dividend income
Cash paid for income tax
Profit from operations before changes
in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in operating assets
Interbank and money market items
Loans to customers
Account receivable from sale of loans
Properties for sale
Other assets
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Deposits
Interbank and money market items
Liabilities payable on demand
Debt issued and borrowings
Employee benefits paid
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Bank

2014

2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

Baht’000

37,929

141,265

29,972

364,897

345,804

262,852

-

(29,067)
45,393

39,493

41,879

(3,188)
(7,352)
(4,092)

-

(41,090)
(4,570)
(52,087)
(13,010)
(5,353)
1,265
53,528
9,894
2,787
(1,434,342)
2,185,558
(740,193)
(181)

(1,669,662)
2,434,212
(826,956)
(26)

181

26

(11,071)

(27,664)

(41,090)
(4,570)
(57,263)
(80,341)
1,722
1,266
53,528
8,398
2,787
(1,239,228)
1,992,029
(739,442)
(181)
18,181
(1,998)

396,021

478,986

246,115

(429,804)
(2,850,395)
(55,059)
(43,854)

(685,763)
(4,995,339)
(21,000)
1,407
(30,017)

(429,145)
(2,939,203)
13,980
(23,171)

2,369,581

2,412,968

2,395,602

(323,628)
(18,457)
(14,500)
(1,559)
64,779

831,064

33,539

(158,628)
(18,457)
(14,500)
27,440

(906,875)

(1,954,250)

(899,967)

171

63,223
13,474
3,425

19,905

-

Statement of cash flows
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)
The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited and its subsidiary
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Consolidated

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash paid for purchase of investment in
available-for-sale securities
Proceeds from sale or redeem of investment in
available-for-sale securities
Proceeds from sale of investment in subsidiary
Cash paid for purchase of equipment
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment
Cash paid for purchase of intangible assets

Bank

2014

2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

Baht’000

(10,202,070)

(5,315,293)

(10,202,070)

10,562,542

6,351,308

10,562,542

626,651

(65,791)

626,651

(63,761)
7,489
(23,401)

118

76

(19,510)

(23,401)

907,450

950,832

900,595

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from share capital increase

-

1,000,000

-

Net cash provided by financing activities

-

1,000,000

-

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

(63,203)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January

575

(3,418)

628

516,021

516,596

515,968

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December

516,596

513,178

516,596

Supplementary disclosures of cash flow information
Gain (loss) on remeasuring of available-for-sale securities
Properties for sale received from settlement of loans
Purchase of equipment creditors
Purchase of intangible assets creditors
Hire-purchase creditors

The accompanying notes are an intergal part of these financial statements

2,913

(2,934)

2,913

330,214

180,950

224,044

2,114

2,663

2,114

1,613
137

1,464

1,613
137

-
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The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements
The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited
For the year ended 31 December 2015

1 General information
The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited (“the Bank”) was incorporated as a limited company in Thailand
on 6 October 1970 and was transformed to a public company limited on 28 July 2005. The Bank had been granted the
license to operate as a retail bank from the Ministry of Finance on 22 December 2006 and commenced its operations on
18 January 2007. The Bank registered to change its name from “Thai Keha Credit Foncier Public Co., Ltd” to “The Thai
Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited”.
The head office is located at Thai Life Insurance Building, 123 Ratchadaphisek Road, and 10th, 17th, 25th, 26th, 37th,
and 41st floors, RS Tower Building, 121 Ratchadaphisek Road, Dindaeng, Bangkok 10400.
The principal business activities are financial services under the scope of retail banking license.
The Bank’s subsidiary is Thanaban Co., Ltd., incorporated in Thailand since 6 December 1978 and located at 25th floor,
RS Tower Building, 121/76 Ratchadaphisek Road, Dindaeng, Bangkok 10400. The subsidiary’s principal business is to
provide motorcycle hire-purchase services. The Bank disposed the subsidiary on 2 July 2014.
The financial statements were concurred by the Board of Directors on 25 February 2016.

2 Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below:
2.1 Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543, being those Thai Financial Reporting Standards issued under the Accounting
Profession Act B.E. 2547. The primary financial statements (i.e., statements of financial position, statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flow) have been prepared in the format as required by the
Notification of the Bank of Thailand (BOT) no. Sor.Nor.Sor 21/2558, “Preparation and Announcement of Financial
Statements of Commercial Banks and Parent Companies of Financial Holding Groups” dated 4 December 2015.
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the
accounting policies below.
The functional and presentation currency are in Thai Baht.
The investment in subsidiary was disposed on 2 July 2014. Its result of operations was included in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended
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The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited

31 December 2014. The Bank does not prepare the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015 and 2014 because the Bank had already disposed its investment in a subsidiary on those dates.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles in Thailand
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgment in
the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4 to the financial statements.
An English-language version of the financial statements has been prepared from the financial statements that are
in Thai-language version. In the event of a conflict or a difference in interpretation between the two languages, the
Thai language financial statements shall prevail.
2.2 Revised accounting standards, revised financial reporting standards, and related
	interpretations

New financial reporting standards and revised financial reporting standards which are effective on 1 January 2015
and relevant to the Bank:
a) Financial reporting standards, which have a significant impact to the Bank:
TAS 1 (revised 2014)
TAS 16 (revised 2014)
TAS 19 (revised 2014)
TAS 34 (revised 2014)
TFRS 13 (revised 2014)

Presentation of financial statements
Property, plant and equipment
Employee benefits
Interim financial reporting
Fair value measurement

TAS 1 (revised 2014), the main change is that a requirement for entities to group items presented in ‘other
comprehensive income’ (OCI) on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently
(reclassification adjustments). The amendments do not address which items are presented in OCI.
TAS 16 (revised 2014) indicates that spare part, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised as
PPE when they meet the definition of PPE. Otherwise, such items are classified as inventory. The changes on this
standard have no impact to the Bank.
TAS 19 (revised 2014), the key changes are (a) actuarial gains and losses are renamed ‘remeasurements’ and will be
recognised immediately in ‘other comprehensive income’ (OCI). Actuarial gains and losses will no longer be deferred
using the corridor approach or recognised in profit or loss; and (b) past-service costs will be recognised in the period
of a plan amendment; unvested benefits will no longer be spread over a future-service period. The significant impact
to the Bank is described in Note 19 to the interim financial statement.
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TAS 34 (revised 2014), the key change is the disclosure requirements for operating segment.
An entity shall disclose information of a measure of total assets and liabilities for a particular reportable segment if
such amounts are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker and if there has been a material change
from the amount disclosed in the last annual financial statements for that reportable segment. This standard has no
impact to the Bank.
TFRS 13 aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of fair value and a
single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across TFRSs. This standard has impact
to the Bank as described in Note 6 to the interim financial statement.
b) Financial reporting standards with minor changes and do not have impact to the Bank:
TAS 2 (revised 2014)
TAS 7 (revised 2014)
TAS 8 (revised 2014)
TAS 10 (revised 2014)
TAS 11 (revised 2014)
TAS 12 (revised 2014)
TAS 17 (revised 2014)
TAS 18 (revised 2014)
TAS 20 (revised 2014)
TAS 21 (revised 2014)
TAS 23 (revised 2014)
TAS 24 (revised 2014)
TAS 26 (revised 2014)
TAS 28 (revised 2014)
TAS 29 (revised 2014)
TAS 33 (revised 2014)
TAS 36 (revised 2014)
TAS 37 (revised 2014)
TAS 38 (revised 2014)
TAS 40 (revised 2014)
TFRS 2 (revised 2014)
TFRS 3 (revised 2014)
TFRS 5 (revised 2014)
TFRS 6 (revised 2014)
TFRS 8 (revised 2014)
TFRS 10 (revised 2014)
TFRS 11 (revised 2014)
TSIC 10 (revised 2014)
TSIC 15 (revised 2014)

Inventories
Statement of cash flows
Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors
Events after the reporting period
Construction contracts
Income taxes
Leases
Revenue
Accounting for government grants & disclosure of government assistance
The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates
Borrowing costs
Related party disclosures
Accounting and reporting by retirement benefit plans
Investments in associates and joint ventures
Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies
Earnings per share
Impairment of assets
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Intangible assets
Investment property
Share-based payment
Business combinations
Non-current asset held for sale and discontinued operations
Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources
Operating segments
Consolidated financial statements
Joint arrangements
Government assistance - No specific relation to operating activities
Operating leases - Incentives
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TSIC 25 (revised 2014)
TSIC 27 (revised 2014)
TSIC 29 (revised 2014)
TSIC 31 (revised 2014)
TSIC 32 (revised 2014)
TFRIC 1 (revised 2014)
TFRIC 4 (revised 2014)
TFRIC 5 (revised 2014)
				
TFRIC 7 (revised 2014)
				
TFRIC 10 (revised 2014)
TFRIC 12 (revised 2014)
TFRIC 13 (revised 2014)
TFRIC 15 (revised 2014)
TFRIC 17 (revised 2014)
TFRIC 18 (revised 2014)
TFRIC 20 (revised 2014)

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited

Income taxes - Changes in the tax status of an entity or its shareholders
Evaluating the substance of transactions involving the legal form of a lease
Service concession arrangements: Disclosures
Revenue - Barter transactions involving advertising services
Intangible assets - Web site costs
Changes in existing decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities
Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
Rights to interests arising from decommissioning, restoration and
environmental rehabilitation funds
Applying the restatement approach under IAS 29 Financial
reporting in hyperinflationary economies
Interim financial reporting and impairment
Service concession arrangements
Customer loyalty programmes
Agreements for the construction of real estate
Distributions of non-cash assets to owners
Transfers of assets from customers
Stripping costs in the production phase of a surface mine

The Bank’s management has determined that such revised accounting standards, revise financial reporting standards,
and related interpretations does not significantly impact the financial statements being presented.
New financial reporting standards, revised accounting standards and revised financial reporting standards which are
effective on 1 January 2016. These standards are relevant to the Bank and are not early adopted:
a) Financial reporting standards, which have a significant impact to the Bank:
TAS 16 (revised 2015)
TAS 19 (revised 2015)
TAS 24 (revised 2015)
TAS 27 (revised 2015)
TFRS 2 (revised 2015)
TFRS 13 (revised 2015)

Property, plant and equipment
Employee benefits
Related party disclosures
Separate financial statements
Share-based payment
Fair value measurement

TAS 16 (revised 2015), ‘Property, plant and equipment’ clarifies how the gross carrying amount and the accumulated
depreciation are treated where an entity uses the revaluation model.
TAS 19 (revised 2015), ‘Employee benefits’ is amended to apply to contributions from employees or third parties to
defined benefit plans and to clarify the accounting treatment of such contributions. The amendment distinguishes
between contributions that are linked to service only in the period in which they arise and those linked to service in
more than one period.
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TAS 24 (revised 2015), ‘Related party disclosures’ includes as a related party an entity that provides key
management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity (the ‘management
entity’). Disclosure of the amounts charged to the reporting entity is required.
TAS 27 (revised 2015) allows an investment entity that is exempted from consolidating its subsidiaries presenting
separate financial statements as its only financial statements. It requires the investment entity to measure its
investment in subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss.
TFRS 2 (revised 2015), ‘Share based payments’ clarifies the definition of a ‘vesting condition’ and separately defines
‘performance condition’ and ‘service condition’.
TFRS 13 (revised 2015), ‘Fair value measurement’ is amended to clarify that the portfolio exception in TFRS 13
applies to all contracts (including non-financial contracts) within the scope of TAS 39 (when announced) or IFRS 9
(when announced).
b) Financial reporting standards with minor changes and do not have impact to the Bank are as follows:
TAS 1 (revised 2015)
TAS 2 (revised 2015)
TAS 7 (revised 2015)
TAS 8 (revised 2015)
TAS 10 (revised 2015)
TAS 11 (revised 2015)
TAS 12 (revised 2015)
TAS 17 (revised 2015)
TAS 18 (revised 2015)
TAS 20 (revised 2015)
TAS 21 (revised 2015)
TAS 23 (revised 2015)
TAS 26 (revised 2015)
TAS 28 (revised 2015)
TAS 29 (revised 2015)
TAS 33 (revised 2015)
TAS 34 (revised 2015)
TAS 37 (revised 2015)
TFRS 5 (revised 2015)
TFRS 6 (revised 2015)
TFRS 11 (revised 2015)
TSIC 10 (revised 2015)
TSIC 15 (revised 2015)
TSIC 25 (revised 2015)

Presentation of financial statements
Inventories
Statement of cash flows
Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors
Events after the reporting period
Construction contracts
Income taxes
Leases
Revenue
Accounting for government grants and disclosure of government assistance
The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates
Borrowing costs
Accounting and reporting by retirement benefit plans
Investments in associates and joint ventures
Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies
Earnings per share
Interim financial reporting
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources
Joint arrangements
Government assistance - No specific relation to operating activities
Operating leases - Incentives
Income taxes - changes in the tax status of an entity or its shareholders
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TSIC 27 (revised 2015)
Evaluating the substance of transactions involving the legal form of a lease
TSIC 29 (revised 2015)
Service concession arrangements: Disclosures
TSIC 31 (revised 2015)
Revenue - barter transactions involving advertising services
TSIC 32 (revised 2015)
Intangible assets - Web site costs
TFRIC 1 (revised 2015)
Changes in existing decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities
TFRIC 4 (revised 2015)
Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
TFRIC 5 (revised 2015)
Rights to interests arising from decommissioning, restoration and environmental
					rehabilitation funds
TFRIC 7 (revised 2015)
Applying the restatement approach under TAS 29 Financial reporting in
					hyperinflationary economies
TFRIC 10 (revised 2015) Interim financial reporting and impairment
TFRIC 12 (revised 2015) Service concession arrangements
TFRIC 13 (revised 2015) Customer loyalty programmes
TFRIC 14 (revised 2015) TAS 19 - The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements
					
and their interaction
TFRIC 15 (revised 2015) Agreements for the construction of real estate
TFRIC 17 (revised 2015) Distributions of non-cash assets to owners
TFRIC 18 (revised 2015) Transfers of assets from customers
TFRIC 20 (revised 2015) Stripping costs in the production phase of a surface mine
The Bank’s management has determined that such revised accounting standards, revise financial reporting standards,
and related interpretations will not significantly impact the financial statements being presented.

2.3 Revenue recognition

(a) Interest income and discount on loans to customers
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis. The Bank discontinues recognition of overdue accrued interest
income more than three months since the due date or there is uncertainty of collectability, a collection basis is applied.
The Bank also reverses interest income on such loans in order to comply with the Bank of Thailand’s Notification
dated 3 August 2008. The Bank continues its income recognition on the accrual basis when the entire amount of
the principal and overdue interest have been paid.
(b) Interest income on factoring
The Bank recognises interest income on factoring on an accrual basis, except in the case of interest on factoring
which is defaulted over three months from the due date where interest is recognised on collection basis.
The Bank reverses accrued interest income on loan to customers and factoring when its principal or interest payment
has become over three months past due to comply with the BOT’s Notification dated 3 August 2008. The Bank
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continues its income recognition on the accrual basis when the entire amount of the principal and overdue interest
have been paid.
(c) Interest income from hire-purchase and leasing
Hire-purchase and leasing income are recorded as income through the installment period using the effective interest
method. Interest income on hire-purchase and leasing which is over three months past due from the due date is
recognised on collection basis.
The Bank and its subsidiary reverse accrued interest income on hire-purchase and leasing when the principal or
interest payment has become over three months past due to comply with the BOT’s Notification dated 3 August
2008. The Bank and its subsidiary continue income recognition on the accrual basis when the entire amount of the
principal and overdue interest have been paid.
(d) Interest income, discount and dividend income from investment in securities
Interest income on investment in securities is recognised on an accrual basis while dividend income is recognised
when the right to receive the dividend is declared. Unearned discount on bill and other unearned income are recognised on an accrual basis according to the term.
(e) Gains (losses) on sale of properties for sale
Gains or losses on sale of properties are recognised as income or expenses in statements of comprehensive income
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of properties for sale have been transferred to the buyer.

2.4 Expense recognition

(a) Expenses
The Bank recognises expenses on an accrual basis.
(b) Initial commission expenses and direct cost of hire-purchase and leasing contracts.
The Bank records initial commission expenses and direct cost arising from hire-purchase and leasing contracts
commencing from 1 January 2008 as a part of loan to customers then recognise them as expenses using the
effective interest method throughout the installment period and present these expenses net from interest income
from hire-purchase and leasing. For hire-purchase contracts which were commenced before 1 January 2008, the
Bank and its subsidiary recorded initial commission expenses and direct cost as expenses in the statements of
comprehensive income.

90

Notes to the Financial Statements

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited

2.5 Cash and cash equivalents

In the cash flows statements, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and cash on collection of the
Bank which is in accordance with the BOT’s Notification regarding the Preparation and Announcement of Financial
Statements of Commercial Banks and Parent Companies of Financial Holding Groups dated 3 December 2010.
2.6 Investments

The Bank’s investment portfolios consist of debt and equity securities which are classified as trading securities,
available-for-sale securities, held-to-maturity debt securities and general investment.
Investment in marketable debt securities or equity securities with readily determinable market values that are acquired
with the intent to hold for a short period of time in order to take advantage of anticipated changes in market values
are classified as trading securities and carried at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses from changes in fair value
and gains and losses on disposal of securities are recognised as net gains (losses) on trading transactions in the
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Investments in debt securities for which the Bank has the intent and the ability to hold until maturity are classified as
held-to-maturity debt securities and carried at the amortised cost, net of valuation allowances for impairment (if any).
Difference between acquired cost and redemption value are amortised by the effective interest method throughout
the remaining year.
Investments in marketable debt equity securities with readily determinable market values that are not classified as
either held-to-maturity securities, or trading securities or investment in subsidiary are classified as available-for-sale
securities and carried at fair value, net of valuation allowances for impairment (if any). The change in fair value of
these securities is recorded in other components of shareholders’ equity through other comprehensive income
until securities are sold, then, the gains or losses on disposal of investments will be recognised as gains (losses) on
investments.
Non-marketable equity securities are classified as general investment and carried at cost, net of valuation allowances
for impairment (if any).
Gain or loss on sales of held-to-maturity debt securities and available for sale securities are recognised as net gains
(losses) on investments in the statements of comprehensive income.
Valuation allowances for impairment are established by recognising an unrealised loss upon impairment of
investments in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
The Bank recognises investments on the settlement date and uses the weighted average method in computation
of the cost of investments.
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For government debt securities, state enterprise bonds and other domestic debt securities listed in The Thai Bond
Market Association (ThaiBMA), the fair values are calculated using the bidding prices at The Thai Bond Market Association or other financial institutions, depending on the case of the mentioned fair value determination of debt
securities.
In the event of transferring between investment portfolios, such investments are adjusted to their fair values at the
transfer dates. Differences between the carrying amount of the investments and their fair values on those dates are
either recognised as gains (losses) in the statements of comprehensive income or presented as item in shareholders’
equity, depending on the type of the transferred investments.
2.7 Loans to customers

Overdrafts are carried at the principal amounts including interest.
Hire-purchase and finance lease receivables are carried at the principal amounts including deferred initial commission expenses and direct costs at the inception of the contracts.
Other loans to customers are carried at the principal amounts.
Deferred revenues are deducted from loans to customers of the Bank.
2.8 Allowance for doubtful accounts

According to the BOT’s regulations, the Bank is allowed to categorise loans and set up the allowance for doubtful
accounts on either an account-by-account basis or on a customer basis. In this respect, the Bank has chosen to
categorise loans and set up the allowance for doubtful accounts on a customer basis, such that all loans extended
to a customer are classified at the lowest quality category of such customer and the allowance for doubtful accounts
is determined according to that classification. The Bank also performs qualitative reviews of loans and commitments
in accordance with the guidelines of the BOT.
The Bank determines the minimum allowance for doubtful accounts in accordance with the BOT’s Notifications,
regarding the Classification and Allowance of Financial Institutions dated 3 August 2008 and regarding the Collateral
Appraisal and Immovable Assets for Sale Received from Debt Repayment of Financial Institutions dated 9 December
2009 including individual loan analysis and assessment with respect to the Bank’s experience in credit risk evaluation
and collateral value.
The Bank determines the minimum allowance for doubtful accounts in accordance with the percentage under the
BOT’s guidelines of the difference between the book value of outstanding loan and the present value of estimated
future cash flows from the debtor, or the difference between the book value of outstanding loan and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows from the disposal of collateral. Furthermore, the Bank and its subsidiary has set
aside an additional allowance for doubtful accounts in excess of the minimum BOT’s requirement by consideration

92

Notes to the Financial Statements

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited

the additional potential loss arising from changes in economic and legal environment and other factors that may
impact the ability of the debtors in meeting their obligations under the loan agreements.
Bad debts written-off are made in accordance with the requirements of the BOT.
Bad debts recovery is recorded as other operating income in the statements of comprehensive income.
2.9 Troubled debt restructuring and loss from restructuring

The Bank’s trouble debt restructuring methodology include the modification of payment schedule, reduction of
principal and/or accrued interest receivable, asset transfer and equity securities transferred.
The Bank records assets or equity securities transferred for debt settlements at the lower of the fair values of assets
or equity securities net of estimated selling expenses (if any), or the amount of investment in receivables (including
accrued interest receivable).
In case of modifying repayment terms, fair value of investment in receivables after restructuring is based on the present
value of the expected future cash flows discounted by the interest rates as stated on the original loan agreements.
The Bank recognises loss on debt restructuring net of allowance for bad debts as expenses in the statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income when debt restructuring incurred.
Legal fees and other direct costs incurred from debt restructuring are recognised as expenses when incurred.
2.10 Properties for sale

Properties for sale except for repossessed vehicles are stated at the lower of costs or net realisable value which
referred to the latest appraisal value net of estimated selling expenses.
The repossessed vehicles are stated at the lower of the outstanding loan principal including accrued interest and
output VAT submitted to the Revenue Department or fair value, net of selling costs and expenses. Fair value of the
repossessed vehicles is based on the net realisable value.
The impairment of the property for sales carrying amount will be realised as the allowance for impairment of the
property for sales when incurred.
Gain or loss on sales of such properties for sale is realised upon disposition of the underlying asset and is included
in other operating income in the statements of comprehensive income.
2.11 Premises, equipment and depreciation

Premises and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss (if any).
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of assets as follows:
Premises and leasehold improvement		
Computers and accessories		
Furniture and equipment		
Vehicles		

10 years
3 - 5 years
5 years
5 years

At the end of each reporting year, the assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate.
Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are included in the
statements of comprehensive income.
2.12 Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are stated at cost net of allowance for impairment (if any).
Intangible assets with definite useful lives are stated at cost net of accumulated amortisation and allowance for
impairment (if any).
Amortisation
The amortisation of intangible assets-computer program is calculated by the straight-line method over the expected
future economic benefit period not over 5 years or remaining period of the term of agreement.
The amortisation expense is recognised as other operating expenses in the statements of comprehensive income.
2.13 Leasehold rights

Leasehold rights are stated at cost net of accumulated amortisation and presented as part of other assets.
The amortisation of leasehold rights is calculated by the straight-line method over the lease periods between 3 to
20 years.
The amortisation amounts are recognised as other operating expenses in the statements of comprehensive income.
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2.14 Accounting for long-term leases

Properties under lease contracts that significant portions of risks and ownership rewards are transferred to the Bank
and its subsidiary are classified as finance leases and capitalised at the lower of the fair value of leased properties or
the present value of cash payment under lease contracts. The payment consists of principal and finance charges so
as to achieve a constant interest rate on the outstanding balance by individual lease contract. The outstanding rental
obligations net of finance charges are recorded as other liabilities. The finance cost is recognised in the statements
of comprehensive income over the lease period. Finance lease assets are depreciated over the shorter period of the
useful lives of assets or the lease terms.
Long-term leases that significant portions of risks and ownership rewards are retained by to the lessors are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the statements of comprehensive
income.
Expense incurred from the termination of operating leases before expiration such as penalty paid to the lessor is
recognised as an expense in the year in which the termination takes place.
2.15 Provisions

The Bank recognises provisions when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated.
Where the Bank expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but
only when the reimbursement is highly likely.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the obligation. The increase in the provison due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
2.16 Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans
The Bank has a provident fund, which are managed by external fund manager, for their employees in accordance
with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530 (1987). The Bank and their employees contribute to the fund at the specified
rates. The employees are entitled to benefits according to the fund regulations.
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The provident funds are considered defined contribution plans. The Bank recognise their contributions to the provident funds as personnel expenses in the statements of comprehensive income upon receiving the service from
employees.
Defined benefit plans
The Bank provides the defined benefit plans for their employees under the employment agreements. The provision
for the employee benefits is assessed by an actuary using the actuarial techniques called the Projected Unit Credit
Cost Method to determine the present value of cash flows of employee benefits to be paid in the future. Under this
method, the calculation is based on actuarial assumptions which include the employee’s salaries, turnover rate,
mortality rate, years of service and other factors.
The Bank recognises the provision for defined benefit plans on the statements of financial position with the net of the
present value of defined benefits obligations. The expenses for defined benefit plans are recognised as personnel
expenses in the statements of comprehensive income.
Actuarial gains (losses) are recognised in other comprehensive income (losses).

2.17 Contributions to the Deposit Protection Agency and the Financial Institutions
Development Fund

Contributions to the Deposit Protection Agency and the Financial Institutions Development Fund are recorded as
expenses in the statements of comprehensive income on an accrual basis.

2.18 Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and deferred income tax.
Current tax
The Bank calculates corporate income tax at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities, based on
taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislations.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit (tax base). Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for temporary differences to the extent that they are probable that taxable profits will be available against
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which those temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the
reporting date. Deferred tax assets shall be reduced to the extent that utilized taxable profits are decreased. Any
such reduction shall be reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow total or part of the tax assets to be recovered. The Bank does not recognise deferred tax assets and
liabilities for the goodwill.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting year.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts
and the Bank and its subsidiary intend to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.
Income tax expense or income related to profit or loss are presented in the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. For current income taxes and deferred taxes related to items recognised directly in other
comprehensive income in equity in the same or different year, they will be recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.
2.19 Reserve for share based payment

Stock options
The Bank operates an equity-settled stock option plan to certain senior management. The fair value of rights is
recognised as an expense over the vesting period and the equity provided is treated as a capital contribution. Stock
options are granted with an exercise price equal Baht 10 per share. Generally, options cannot be exercised until it
meets the requirement as specified by the Bank.
2.20 Earnings (loss) per share

The Bank calculates basic earnings (loss) per share by dividing the net income (loss) by the weighted-average numbers of paid-up ordinary shares issued during the year.

2.21 Assets held-for-sale

Assets are classified as assets held-for-sale when their carrying amounts are recovered principally through a sale
transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of the carrying amount and fair
value less cost to sell if their carrying amounts are recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use.
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3 Risk management
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Bank’s activities expose them to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including fair value interest rate risk, cash
flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Bank’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on its financial
performance.
Risk management is carried out under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Bank’s Treasury and its subsidiary identify, evaluate and hedge financial risks in close co-operation with its operating units. The Risk Committee
provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative and non-derivative financial instruments, and
investment excess liquidity.
3.1.1 Credit risk
Credit risk is risk that borrowers or counterparties fail to fulfill their obligations under the financial instruments,
probably due to the fact that the borrowers or counterparties had financial problems or decided not to comply
with the obligations resulting in loss to the Bank. Credit risks exist in all types of financial products and activities on statement of financial position such as loans, bank overdrafts, notes and contingent liabilities such
as various types of letters of guarantee. The maximum exposure of credit risk is the carrying amount of the
financial instruments net of allowance for loss as shown on the statements of financial position and risks of
that off-statement of financial position items arising from bank guarantee and other transactions.
The Bank defines its credit risk management policies under the supervision of the Financial Group Risk Management Committee. The main objective is to efficiently manage the Bank and its subsidiary’s credit risks in
all aspects: policies, organizational structures, processes, and systems within an appropriated risks stated in
the Bank and its subsidiary business strategies as well as comply with regulations.
The Bank applies credit risk management in credit examination and approval process, risk and repayment ability
analysis, credit operation process after credit approval, credit review, credit monitoring and debt reschedule
or restructure in order to prevent and resolve any problems might occur in the future.
The Bank has set the credit risk preventing policy by setting up the “Check and Balance” in credit approval
process, setting up risk-based authority, setting up various standard procedures for credit facilities under
“Product Program” and setting up appropriate collateral consideration policy.
3.1.2 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that arises from the potential of changes in interest rates which have an adverse
effect on the net interest earnings of the Bank and its subsidiary in the current reporting year and future. Interest
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rate risk arises from the structure and the characteristics of the Bank’s assets and liabilities and the repricing
mismatch of assets and liabilities.
The Bank defines policies to adjust the structure of their financial positions to be conformed to the interest
direction in the future and the defined risk frame. The Bank monitors the interest direction movement and
customer’s behavior closely in order to assess the most realistic risk.
The Bank also monitors its risk position more frequently when there are significant changes in asset and
liability structures through “Repricing Gap” reporting in order to follow up the interest rate risks and net interest
income sensitivity in the next 12 months.
Furthermore, the Bank also simulates the situations by increasing or decreasing its interest rate to manage its
stability of net interest income regardless of the interest direction.
The Bank has summarised the financial assets and financial liabilities classified by maturity of interest repricing
years as at 31 December 2015 and 2014, as follows:
Bank
2015

Financial assets
Interbank and money market
items, net
Investments, net
Loans to customers*
Account receivable from
sale of loans

0-3
Months
Baht‘000

3-12
Months
Baht‘000

1-5
Years
Baht‘000

1,174,203

12,952

4,188

NonOver 5 performing
Years
Loans
Baht‘000
Baht‘000

Total
Baht‘000

258,626

1,449,969

1,306,832

834,129

937,757

80,572

-

5,488

3,164,778

21,910,570

1,157,790

2,633,533

1,104,009

1,027,804

-

27,833,706

21,000

-

-

-

-

-

21,000

5,098,471

1,520,638

-

-

-

26,565,372

18,545

582,619

65,808

1,998,616

-

-

-

-

-

47,693

47,693

Financial liabilities
19,946,263
Deposits
Interbank and money market
1,331,644
items
Liabilities payable on demand
* Loans to customers are netted of deferred revenue.

-

Noninterest
Bearing
Baht‘000
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Bank
2014

Financial assets
Interbank and money market
items, net
Investments, net
Loans to customers*

NonOver 5 performing
Years
Loans
Baht‘000
Baht‘000

Noninterest
Bearing
Baht‘000

Total
Baht‘000

277,817

761,393

0-3
Months
Baht‘000

3-12
Months
Baht‘000

1-5
Years
Baht‘000

213,799

100,247

169,530

1,675,600

1,736,276

724,125

48,765

-

9,155

4,193,921

16,510,878

1,444,480

3,150,230

1,118,927

826,349

-

23,050,864

2,826,666

2,369,706

-

-

-

24,152,404

13,000

609,400

-

1,167,552

-

-

-

-

27,788

27,788

Financial liabilities
18,956,032
Deposits
Interbank and money market
545,152
items
Liabilities payable on demand
-

-

* Loans to customers are netted of deferred revenue.

Basic information of loans to customers net of deferred revenue classified by fixed versus floating interest rates
as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:
Bank
2015

2014

Baht‘000

Baht‘000

Fixed interest rate
Floating interest rate

6,082,622

6,950,468

21,751,084

16,100,396

Total

27,833,706

23,050,864

100
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The Bank has earning financial assets and interest-bearing financial liabilities. The average balances of such
financial assets or liabilities are calculated based on outstanding balances and averaged interest rates for the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:
Bank
2015

Earning financial assets
Interbank and money market items
Investments
Loans to customers
Interest-bearing Financial Liabilities
Deposits
Interbank and money market items

Average balance
12 months
Baht’000

Interest
amount
Baht’000

Average
interest rate
%

510,871

19,745

3.86

3,598,793

76,023

2.11

25,246,419

2,019,375

8.00

25,482,674

657,456

2.58

1,036,954

3,331

0.32

Bank
2014

Earning financial assets
Interbank and money market items
Investments
Loans to customers
Interest-bearing Financial Liabilities
Deposits
Interbank and money market items
Debt issued and borrowings

Average balance
12 months
Baht’000

Interest
amount
Baht’000

Average
interest rate
%

738,841

34,399

4.66

4,391,273

107,926

2.46

20,770,724

1,412,284

6.80

22,885,367

673,990

2.95

1,217,641

4,962
496

0.41

11,713

4.23

3.1.3 Foreign exchange rate risk
Foreign exchange rate risk is the risk that arises from the change in foreign exchange rate which may affect
the value change in the financial instruments or may cause fluctuation in the earning income or in value of the
financial assets or liabilities.
The Bank and its subsidiary have no foreign exchange rate risk as there is no foreign currency transaction.
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3.1.4 Equity price risk
Investments in equity securities consist of investment in general investment held from trouble debts restructuring settlement and investment in subsidiary of financial holding group held as strategic business investment
of the Bank.
Such investments in equity securities are not marketable securities, presented on the statements of financial
positions at cost net of valuation allowances for impairment. Loss on impairment of such investment is recognised in the statements of comprehensive income as disclosed in Note 2.6.
3.1.5 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank may not be able to meet their financial obligations when they are due.
This risk arises from an inability to convert their assets into cash or acquire adequate fund at the appropriated
cost and time which results in a loss to the Bank.
The Bank defines its liquidity risk management policies under the supervision of the Assets and Liabilities
Management Committee who monitors and reviews the liquidity position on a regular basis.
The following tables present the Bank’s maturities of financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2015
and 2014.

Bank
2015

Financial assets
Interbank and money market
items, net
Investments, net
Loans to customers*
Financial liabilities
Deposits
Interbank and money market
items
Liabilities payable on demand

0-3

3-12

At Call
Baht’000

Months
Baht’000

Months
Baht’000

258,758

1,174,278

12,951

4,195

-

(213)

1,449,969

-

1,306,832

834,129

937,757

80,572

5,488

3,164,778

442,528

2,812,934

936,856

18,242,690

1,703,573

1,066,644
47,693

* Loans to customers are netted of deferred revenue.

1-5 Years
Baht’000

Over 5
Years
Baht’000

No
Maturity
Baht’000

Total
Baht’000

5,715,430 17,925,958

- 27,833,706

5,098,471

1,520,638

-

- 26,565,372

265,000

18,545

582,619

65,808

-

-

-

-

-

1,998,616
47,693
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Bank
2014

Financial assets
Interbank and money market
items, net
Investments, net
Loans to customers*
Financial liabilities
Deposits
Interbank and money market
items
Liabilities payable on demand

0-3

3-12

At Call
Baht’000

Months
Baht’000

Months
Baht’000

280,733

213,486

99,244

-

1,675,600

1,736,276

485,075

1,596,939

859,202

15,987,279

2,968,753

536,652
27,788

1-5 Years
Baht’000

Over 5
Years
Baht’000

No
Maturity
Baht’000

Total
Baht’000

167,930

-

-

761,393

724,125

48,765

9,155

5,999,476 14,110,172

4,193,921
- 23,050,864

2,826,666

2,369,706

-

- 24,152,404

8,500

13,000

609,400

-

-

-

-

-

1,167,552
27,788

* Loans to customers are netted of deferred revenue.

3.2 Fair value

Since the majority of the Banks’ financial instruments are short-term in nature and bear floating interest rates, their
fair values are not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented in the statements of financial
position.
The methodology of fair value measurement is depended on the characteristics of the financial instrument. For those
financial instruments which are regarded as being traded in an active market, fair value is determined by reference to
the market price of the financial instrument. If however the appropriate quoted market price cannot be determined,
the fair value is determined by using an appropriate valuation technique and complied with related authorities’
regulations.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Annual Report 2015

103

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014 the estimated fair values of the Bank’s financial instruments are as follows:
Bank
2015

Financial assets
Interbank and money market items, net
Investments, net
Loans to customers and accrued
interest receivables, net
Financial liabilities
Deposits
Interbank and money market items
Liabilities payable on demand

2014

Carrying
amount
Baht’000

Fair
value
Baht’000

Carrying
amount
Baht’000

Fair
value
Baht’000

1,449,969

1,449,969

761,393

761,393

3,164,778

3,174,219

4,193,921

4,200,612

26,962,408

26,962,408

22,332,476

22,332,476

26,565,373

26,565,373

24,152,404

24,152,404

1,998,616

1,998,616

1,167,552

1,167,552

47,693

47,693

27,788

27,788

The methods and assumptions used by the Bank in estimating the fair values of financial instruments are in Note 6
to financial statements.
4 Critical accounting estimation and assumption
Preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
managements to make estimates and assumptions in certain circumstances, affecting reported amounts of revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting years. Actual results could differ
from these estimates. The significant areas requiring managements to make judgments and estimates that affect reported
amounts and disclosures are as follows:

4.1 Impairment of investments in securities

The Bank assesses the impairment of investments where objective evidence of impairment exists and determines
that the investments are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its
cost. This determination of what is significant or prolonged requires the Bank’s judgment. In making this judgment,
the Bank evaluates the volatility in the investment fair value and other factors which include the estimated future
cash flows, the deterioration in the financial position of the issuer of the securities and the operating environment in
the industry sector of the issuer.
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4.2 Allowance for doubtful accounts

The Bank estimates the minimum allowance for doubtful accounts in accordance with the BOT’s guidelines. In addition,
the Bank estimates an additional allowance which the management has used various assumptions and judgments
including considering of objective evidence indicating an adverse change in the capacity of the borrowers to repay
loans and accrued interest receivable, considering of the expected future cash flow collected from the borrower, the
expected cash flow from collateral where the source of repayment came from the selling of the collateral, the timing
of future cash flows, the potential of additional future loss and the economic conditions that may have an impact on
the loan default rate. The Bank reviews these estimates and assumptions on a regular basis.

4.3 Impairment for properties for sale

The Bank provide the valuation allowance for impairment of properties for sale when there is a decline in net
realisable cash flows from selling of the assets, based on the appraised value together with other factors which can
affect the realisable value such as related selling expenses, holding costs and future discount expenses.
The Bank record provision for impairment loss of properties for sale on the statements of comprehensive income
when book values of those assets are higher than the expected cash flow received from sale of such properties for
sale.
4.4 Impairment of assets

The Bank review the carrying amounts of their assets at each date of the statements of financial position whether
there are any indications of impairment. If any such indications exist, the Bank will estimate the asset recoverable
amounts by using discounted cash flows.
If the carrying amount of asset is greater than the recoverable amount, the Bank will record loss from impairment in
the statements of comprehensive income.
4.5 Provisions

The determination of the provisions on the statements of financial position requires the use of various assumptions
and judgments by the Bank, taking into consideration the nature of transactions and the circumstances requiring
the provisions, the probability of the outflow of economic benefits to settle such obligations and the estimate of the
net future cash outflows. The consideration is based on the experience and information that is available at the time
that the financial statements are being prepared. The provisions are reviewed regularly. However, the actual results
may differ from the estimates.
For the estimation of the provision for the defined benefit plans under the post-employment benefits, the Bank
makes estimation by using the actuarial techniques which require actuarial assumptions on financial variables such
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as discount rate, future salaries and benefits, expected return on planed assets etc., and demographic variables
such as employee mortality and turnover etc. Such estimation is calculated by an actuary.
4.6 Fair value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable and
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The Bank uses different methodologies for determining the fair value
of financial instruments depending on the characteristics of the financial instruments and the financial markets in
which it operates.
The Bank uses the quoted market prices as the fair values for financial instruments that have standard terms and
conditions and are traded on an active and liquid market. For other types of financial instruments, the fair values are
determined by using valuation techniques commonly used by market participants including the reference to the fair
value of other instruments of a similar nature.
The Bank uses their best judgment in estimating the fair values of financial instruments. However, estimation
methodologies and assumptions used to estimate fair values are inherently subjective. Accordingly, the use of
different estimation methodologies and/or market assumptions may have a significant effect on the estimated fair
values.

5 Capital risk management
The Bank’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, The Bank may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt obligations.
Moreover, the Bank is required to manage its capital funds in accordance with the Act on Undertaking of Banking
Business B.E. 2551. The Bank’s capital fund is presented in Note 25 to the financial statements.
6 Fair value
6.1 Fair value estimate
The Bank uses the market approach to measure its assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair
value by relevant financial reporting standards, except that the cost approach or income approach is used when
there is no active market or when a quoted market price is not available.
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In applying the above-mentioned valuation techniques, the Bank endeavors to use relevant observable inputs as
much as possible. TFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement establishes a fair value hierarchy categorising such inputs into
three levels as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.
As at 31 December 2015, the Bank’s financial assets measured at fair value are as follows:
Bank
2015

Level 1
Baht’000

Level 2
Baht’000

Level 3
Baht’000

Total
Baht’000

Asset
Available-for-sale financial assets
Government and state enterprises
securities
Private enterprises debt securities

-

2,505,540

-

2,505,540

459,038

Total asset

-

2,964,578

-

2,964,578

459,038

There were no transfers between Levels during the year.
Other financial instruments not carried at fair value on the statement of financial position are typically short-term in
nature or at call and reprice to current market rate frequently. Accordingly, their carrying amounts are reasonable
approximation of fair values. These financial instruments include cash, saving deposits and current accounts
presented as both interbank and money market asset and liability items, saving deposits, current accounts and
liabilities payable on demand.
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As at 31 December 2015, the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities that are not specified to measure at fair value are
as follows:

Bank
2015

Level 1
Baht’000

Level 2
Baht’000

Level 3
Baht’000

Total
Baht’000

-

1,449,969

-

1,449,969

207,921

-

26,962,408

-

26,962,408

Total assets

-

28,620,298

-

28,620,298

Liabilities
Deposits
Interbank and money market items, net
Liabilities payable on demand

-

26,573,331

26,573,331

47,693

-

Total liabilities

-

28,619,640

-

28,619,640

Assets
Interbank and money market items, net
Held-to-maturity debt securities
Loans to customers and accrued interest
receivables, net

1,998,616

207,921

1,998,616
47,693

Fair value of the following assets and liabilities estimated for the purpose of disclosure are as follows:
Interbank and money market items, net
The interbank and money market items (assets) are deposits at the BOT, deposits at other financial institutions and
loans to financial institutions which are short-term or at call and reprice to current market rate frequently. Accordingly,
their carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.
The interbank and money market items (liabilities) are deposits and borrowing from the BOT or other financial
institutions, which are short-term or at call and reprice to current market rate frequently. Accordingly, their carrying
amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.
Held-to-maturity debt securities
Fair values are calculated by using the bidding prices at The ThaiBMA or other financial institutions, as the case
may be.

108

Notes to the Financial Statements

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited

Loans to customers and accrued interest receivable, net
The fair value is the outstanding balance of loans and accrued interest less allowance for doubtful accounts. The
management has assessed the existing effective rate of the outstanding loans is a reasonable approximation of
market effective rate.
Deposits
Deposits are saving deposits, current accounts, fixed or certificate of deposits. These deposits are typically short-term
in nature. The management has assessed the existing effective rate of the deposit is a reasonable approximation
of market effective rate. Accordingly, carrying amounts of saving deposits, current accounts and fixed or certificate
of deposits with the 1-year maturity or less are reasonable approximation of their fair values. Whereas fixed or
certificate of deposits with longer than 1-year maturity, the fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow,
applying current rates offered for fixed deposits of similar remaining maturities.
Liabilities payable on demand
Liabilities payable on demand are call liabilities. Accordingly, their carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of
fair value.

6.2	Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2 fair values
6.2.1 Fair values of available-for-sale investments and held-to-maturity debt securities are Level 2. Their fair values
are based on the yield curve of The ThaiBMA or other financial institutions at the last business day of the
period.
6.2.2 Fair values of deposits are Level 2. The fixed or certificate of deposits with longer than 1-year maturities, the
fair value are estimated using discounted cash flow, applying current rates offered for fixed deposits of similar
remaining maturities.
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7 Interbank and money market items, net (assets)

Bank
2015

2014

At call
Baht’000

Term
Baht’000

Total
Baht’000

At call
Baht’000

Term
Baht’000

Total
Baht’000

203,304

770,000

973,304

200,663

181,000

381,663

55,454

55,454

80,070

400,000

-

21,343

21,343

-

-

80,070

400,000

-

302,576

302,576

Total
Add Accrued interest receivable
Less Allowance for doubtful
accounts

658,758

791,343

1,450,101

280,733

-

81

81

-

483,576
110

764,309
110

-

(213)

(213)

-

(3,026)

(3,026)

Total

658,758

791,211

1,449,969

280,733

480,660

761,393

Domestic:
Bank of Thailand
Commercial banks
Specialized Financial Institution
Other financial institutions

-

8 Investments in securities, net
8.1 Classified by type of investments

Bank

Available-for-sale securities
Government and state enterprises securities
Private enterprises debt securities
Total investments in available-for-sale securities

2015

2014

Fair value
Baht’000

Fair value
Baht’000

2,505,540

3,529,196

459,038

553,586

2,964,578

4,082,782
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Bank
2015

2014

Amortised cost Amortised cost
Baht’000
Baht’000
Held-to-maturity securities
Government and state enterprise securities
Total investments in held-to-maturity securities

198,480

109,419

198,480

109,419

Bank

General Investment
Domestic non-marketable equity
securities
Total investments in general investment
Total investments, net

2015

2014

Cost
Baht’000

Cost
Baht’000

1,720

1,720

1,720

1,720

3,164,778

4,193,921

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Bank has some of investments in securities pledged as collateral
(see Note 24).
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8.2 Classified by the remaining period to maturity of the debt securities
Bank

1 year
Baht’000

1-5
years
Baht’000

2015
Periods remaining
Over
5 years
Total
Baht’000
Baht’000

1 year
Baht’000

1-5
years
Baht’000

2014
Periods remaining
Over
5 years
Total
Baht’000
Baht’000

Available-for-sale securities
Government and state
enterprises securities
Private sector debt securities

1,813,201

689,850

-

2,503,051

3,108,164

416,334

-

3,524,498

327,760

130,000

-

457,760

303,712

247,138

-

550,850

Total
Add Allowance for revaluation

2,140,961

819,850

-

2,960,811

3,411,876

663,472

-

4,075,348

852

2,915

-

3,767

2,332

5,102

-

7,434

Available-for-sale securities, net

2,141,813

822,765

-

2,964,578

3,414,208

668,574

-

4,082,782

Held-to-maturity securities
Government and state
enterprises securities

-

117,908

80,572

198,480

-

60,653

48,766

109,419

Held-to-maturity securities, net

-

117,908

80,572

198,480

-

60,653

48,766

109,419

2,141,813

940,673

80,572

3,163,058

3,414,208

729,227

48,766

4,192,201

Total debt securities
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9 Loans to customers and accrued interest receivables, net
9.1 Classified by loan type

Bank
2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

603,246

409,650

21,459,042

16,679,815

2,499,431

1,301,528

3,266,634

4,649,845

5,630

10,780

Total
Less Deferred revenue

27,833,983

23,051,618

(277)

(754)

Total loans to customers net of deferred revenue
Add Accrued interest receivables

27,833,706

23,050,864

141,848

125,360

27,975,554

23,176,224

(515,416)

(520,470)

(360,731)

(249,413)

Total
Less Revaluation allowance for debts restructuring

27,099,407

22,406,341

(136,999)

(73,865)

Total loans to customers, net

26,962,408

22,332,476

Overdraft
Loans
Notes
Hire-purchase receivables
Financial lease receivables

Total loans to customers net of deferred revenue
and accrued interest receivables
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts
Minimum provision according
to the BOT’s requirement
Excess provision

As at 31 December 2015, there were defaulted loans amounting to Baht 1,027.80 million (31 December 2014: Baht
826.52 million) for which the Bank has ceased recognition of interest income on accrual basis.
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Bank sold a part of its loans to customers to a third party of Baht 3.73
million net of allowance for doubtful accounts and revaluation allowance for debts restructuring. Gain on sale of
loans amounting to 31.27 million offset by cost of sale of loans amounting to 2.20 million. Net gain on sale of loans
amounting to Baht 29.07 million was included in net gain on sale of loans on the Bank’s statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2015.
As at 31 December 2015, the Bank has accounts receivable from sale of loans of Baht 21 million.
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9.2 Classified by currency and customer’s residence

Bank
2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

Thai Baht - Domestic

27,833,706

23,050,864

Total

27,833,706

23,050,864

9.3 Classified by type of business and loan classification

Bank
2015

Normal
Baht’000
Agriculture and mining
Manufacturing and commerce
Property development and construction
Public utility and services
Housing loans
Others
Total loans net of deferred revenue

Special
mention
Baht’000

Substandard
Baht’000

Doubtful
Baht’000

Doubtful
loss
Baht’000

Total
Baht’000

270,165

5,217

-

-

151

275,533

9,845,055

478,900

139,122

52,241

196,631

10,711,949

2,507,371

143,911

2,822

10,700

26,457

2,691,261

3,716,814

296,738

31,492

19,162

88,872

4,153,078

3,636,271

402,034

69,505

50,116

185,750

4,343,676

4,998,040

505,386

63,796

21,230

69,757

5,658,209

24,973,716

1,832,186

306,737

153,449

567,618

27,833,706

Bank
2014

Agriculture and mining
Manufacturing and commerce
Property development and construction
Public utility and services
Housing loans
Others
Total loans net of deferred revenue

Normal
Baht’000

Special
mention
Baht’000

Substandard
Baht’000

Doubtful
Baht’000

Doubtful
loss
Baht’000

Total
Baht’000

134,796

2,622

-

-

150

137,568

6,196,490
1,815,032

307,744

18,523

37,162

108,867

6,668,786

79,153

2,323

581

25,123

1,922,212

2,312,747

182,501

14,893

7,654

57,334

2,575,129

4,288,229

352,441

45,189

60,215

155,103

4,901,177

5,948,752

604,007

65,928

52,761

174,544

6,845,992

20,696,046

1,528,468

146,856

158,373

521,121

23,050,864
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9.4 Classified by type of classification

Bank

Minimum provision according to
the BOT’s requirement
- Normal
- Special mention
- Sub-standard
- Doubtful
- Doubtful loss
Total
Surplus reserve

Loans and
accrued interest
receivables
Baht’000

Outstanding
balance use for
allowance set up
Baht’000

% of
Allowance

2015
Allowance
for doubtful
account
Baht’000

25,100,962

6,263,934

1

62,400

1,846,788

512,160

2

7,210

306,737

116,746

100

112,945

153,449

73,628

100

71,805

567,618

265,221

100

261,056

27,975,554

7,231,689

515,416
360,731
876,147

			
Bank
2014

Minimum provision according to
the BOT’s requirement
- Normal
- Special mention
- Sub-standard
- Doubtful
- Doubtful loss
Total
Surplus reserve

Loans and
accrued interest
receivables
Baht’000

Outstanding
balance use for
allowance set up
Baht’000

% of
Allowance

Allowance
for doubtful
account
Baht’000

20,808,206

5,238,184

1

51,865

1,541,669

558,265

2

9,680

146,857

81,861

100

79,453

158,373

95,161

100

93,863

521,119

286,757

100

285,609

23,176,224

6,260,228

520,470
249,413
769,883
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9.5 Non-performing loans

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Bank has non-performing loans (NPLs) according to the BOT’s Notification
No. Sor.Nor.Sor. 31/2551 dated 3 August 2008. Such non-performing loans consist of loans classified as
sub-standard, doubtful and doubtful loss under the BOT’s guideline details as follows:

NPLs before allowance for doubtful accounts (Baht’000)
NPLs as percentage of total loans (%)
NPLs after allowance for doubtful accounts (Baht’000)
NPLs as percentage of total loans (%)

2015

2014

Principal

Principal

1,027,804

826,349

3.69

3.58

569,898

361,830

2.05

1.57

9.6 Troubled debt restructuring

Bank

Accounts receivable under troubled
debt restructuring agreements
Total accounts receivable

2015

2014

Number
of
debtor

Outstanding
balance before
restructuring
Baht’000

Number
of
debtor

Outstanding
balance before
restructuring
Baht’000

1,533

3,516,276

915

2,248,538

20,975

27,833,706

23,934

23,050,864

Accounts receivable under troubled debt restructuring agreements are changes in all contract terms.
As at 31 December 2015, the weighted average terms of the above mentioned restructuring is 10.40 years
(31 December 2014: 11.50 years).
For the years ended 31 December 2015, the Bank recognises interest income from restructured debts amounting
to Baht 142.82 million (2014: Baht 83.06 million).
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As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the outstanding balances of troubled debt restructuring receivables are
classified as follows:
Bank
2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

Normal
Special mention
Sub-standard
Doubtful
Doubtful loss

1,874,942

1,267,558

1,089,844

660,399

123,962

74,911

68,146

51,333

202,660

133,848

Total

3,359,554

2,188,049

For the year ended 31 December 2015 the Bank has losses from trouble debt restructuring amounting to Baht
63 million (2014: Baht 54 million).
9.7 Hire-purchase contract and finance lease contract receivables

Bank
2015

Amounts due under finance lease agreements
Less than
Over
1 year
1 - 5 years
5 years
Total
Baht’000
Baht’000
Baht’000
Baht’000
Gross receivables
Less Unearned interest income
Present value of minimum lease payments
receivable
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts
Hire-purchase contract and finance
lease contracts, net

1,603,960

1,666,128

2,176

3,272,264

(151)

-

-

(151)

1,603,809

1,666,128

2,176

3,272,113

(79,803)
3,192,310
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Bank
2014

Amounts due under finance lease agreements
Less than
Over
1 year
1 - 5 years
5 years
Total
Baht’000
Baht’000
Baht’000
Baht’000
Gross receivables
Less Unearned interest income
Present value of minimum lease payments
receivable
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

2,205,009

2,450,416

5,200

4,660,625

(597)

(84)

-

(681)

2,204,412

2,450,332

5,200

4,659,944

(254,055)

Hire-purchase contract and finance
lease contracts, net

4,405,889

10 Allowance for doubtful accounts
Bank
2015

Normal
Baht’000

Special
mention
Baht’000

Substandard
Baht’000

Doubtful
Baht’000

79,453
33,578

Beginning balance
Doubtful accounts (reversal)
Bad debt written-off
Transferred out
Account receivable sold out

51,865

(228)
-

9,680
(2,308)
(151)
(11)

Ending balance

62,400

7,210

10,763

Doubtful
loss
Baht’000

Surplus
reserve
Baht’000

Total
Baht’000

93,863

285,609

249,413

769,883

141,130

111,318

292,754

(86)
-

(1,727)
(2,034)
(18,297)

(5,995)
(216)
(159,472)

-

(8,494)
(216)
(177,780)

112,945

71,805

261,056

360,731

876,147
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Bank
2014

Normal
Baht’000

Special
mention
Baht’000

Substandard
Baht’000

Beginning balance
Doubtful accounts (reversal)
Bad debt written-off
Transferred out

52,762
25

8,762
966

(922)
-

(48)
-

96,427
(16,621)
(353)
-

Ending balance

51,865

9,680

79,453

Doubtful
loss
Baht’000

Surplus
reserve
Baht’000

Total
Baht’000

110,839

119,441

204,343

592,574

(16,597)
(379)
-

177,519

45,070

190,362

(726)
(10,625)

-

(2,428)
(10,625)

93,863

285,609

249,413

769,883

Doubtful
Baht’000

11 Revaluation allowance for debts restructuring
Bank

Beginning balance
Increase during the year
Ending balance

2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

73,865

20,337

63,134

53,528

136,999

73,865

		
12 PROPERTIES FOR SALE, NET
Bank
2015

Balance
as at
1 January
Baht’000

Balance
as at
31 December
Baht’000

Additions
Baht’000

Disposals
Baht’000

4,750

6,858
174,092

(649)
(177,616)

10,959

6,079

Total
Less Allowance for impairment

10,829

180,950

-

(178,265)
-

13,514

(180)

Total properties for sale, net

10,649

180,950

(178,265)

13,334

Type of properties for sale
Assets from settlement of debts
Immovable assets
Movable assets

2,555

(180)
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Bank
2014

Balance
as at
1 January
Baht’000

Balance
as at
31 December
Baht’000

Additions
Baht’000

Disposals
Baht’000

(266,879)

4,750

Type of properties for sale
Assets from settlement of debts
Immovable assets
Movable assets

4,750

-

20,058

252,900

Total
Less Allowance for impairment

24,808
(11,019)

252,900

(266,879)
39,694

10,829

(28,855)

13,789

224,045

(227,185)

10,649

Total properties for sale, net

6,079

(180)

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the value of all immovable assets from debt repayment of the Bank was appraised
by internal appraisers.

13 PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Bank

At 1 January 2014
Cost
Less Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount
For the year ended 31 December 2014
Opening net book amount
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation charge
Closing net book amount

Leasehold
improvement
Baht’000

Furniture
and office
equipment
Baht’000

Computers
and
accessories
Baht’000

Total
Baht’000

77,834
(25,593)

92,819
(66,190)

93,367
(68,468)

264,020
(160,251)

52,241

26,629

24,899

103,769

52,241

26,629

24,899

103,769

34,434

19,682

11,774

65,890

(2,091)
(9,465)

(281)
(11,122)

(17)
(11,042)

(2,389)
(31,629)

75,119

34,908

25,614

135,641
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Bank

At 31 December 2014
Cost
Less Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Opening net book amount
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation charge
Closing net book amount
At 31 December 2015
Cost
Less Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

Leasehold
improvement
Baht’000

Furniture
and office
equipment
Baht’000

Computers
and
accessories
Baht’000

103,601

108,425

102,729

(28,482)

(73,517)

(77,115)

314,755
(179,114)

75,119

34,908

25,614

135,641

75,119

34,908

25,614

135,641

30,306

16,846

27,967

75,119

(315)
(11,541)

(1,090)
(11,893)

(13,421)

(1,405)
(36,855)

93,569

38,771

40,160

172,500

133,592

124,181

130,696

388,469

(40,023)

(85,410)

(90,536)

(215,969)

93,569

38,771

40,160

172,500

Total
Baht’000

14 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
Bank

At 1 January 2014
Cost
Less Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount

Leasehold
computer
software
Baht’000

Initial
service
fee of ITMX
Baht’000

Leasehold
computer
software
during
development
Baht’000

75,934
(53,622)

32,621

28,356

136,911

-

-

(53,622)

22,312

32,621

28,356

83,289

Total
Baht’000
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Bank

For the year ended 31 December 2014
Opening net book amount
Additions
Disposals
Amortisation charge
Closing net book amount
At 31 December 2014
Cost
Less Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Opening net book amount
Additions
Disposals
Amortisation charge
Closing net book amount
At 31 December 2015
Cost
Less Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount

Leasehold
computer
software
during
development
Baht’000

Total
Baht’000

Leasehold
computer
software
Baht’000

Initial
service
fee of ITMX
Baht’000

22,312

32,621

28,356

83,289

13,482

17,527

31,009

(1,977)
(6,859)

-

(5,365)
-

(7,342)
(6,859)

26,958

32,621

40,518

100,097

87,439
(60,481)

32,621

40,518

160,578

-

-

(60,481)

26,958

32,621

40,518

100,097

26,958

32,621

40,518

100,097

11,253

-

11,819

23,072

(6,415)

(8,764)
-

(8,764)
(6,415)

31,796

32,621

43,573

107,990

98,692
(66,896)

32,621

43,573

174,886

-

-

(66,896)

31,796

32,621

43,573

107,990

The Bank needs to be a member of the National ITMX services in order to facilitate the Bank’s and its customers. Initial
service fee of ITMX provides the right of utilising the national ITMX services without having limited useful life.
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15 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Movements in total deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows:
Bank
2015

Recognised in
profit and loss
income
(expenses)
Baht’000

Recognised
in other
comprehensive
income
Baht’000

61,274
36

19,527

1

9

7,317

2,695
685

(3,250)
-

-

11

2,398
23

Balance
as at
1 January
Baht’000
Deferred tax assets
Loans to customers and accrued interest receivables
Properties for sale
Properties, plant and equipment
Provisions
Reserve for share based payment
Others

1,713
12

-

Balance
as at
31 December
Baht’000

80,801
36
10
6,762

Total

70,353

22,916

(3,239)

90,030

Deferred tax liabilities
Loans to customers and accrued interest receivables
Premises and equipment
Others

(4,101)
(1,499)

2,451

-

722

(1,650)
(777)

Total

(5,600)

2,451

722

(2,427)

Deferred tax assets, net

64,753

87,603
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Bank
2014

Balance
as at
1 January
Baht’000
Deferred tax assets
Loans to customers and accrued interest receivables
Properties for sale
Properties, plant and equipment
Provisions
Reserve for share based payment
Others

Recognised in
Recognised
profit and loss
in other
income comprehensive
(expenses)
income
Baht’000
Baht’000

45,087

16,187

2,204

(2,168)

-

1

3,238

1,679
558

1,155
198

-

Balance
as at
31 December
Baht’000

61,274
36
1

2,400

7,317

-

(186)

1,713
12

Total

51,882

16,257

2,214

70,353

Deferred tax liabilities
Loans to customers and accrued interest receivables
Premises and equipment
Others

(8,439)
(32)
(958)

4,338
32

-

(541)

(4,101)
(1,499)

Total

(9,429)

4,370

(541)

(5,600)

Deferred tax assets, net

42,453

64,753

16 OTHER ASSETS, NET
Bank

Deferred leasehold rights
Interest and income receivables
Prepaid expenses
Supplies
Deposits and guarantee
Account receivables - Counter service
Others
Total

2015
Baht’000

2014
Baht’000

10,746

11,834

35,228

34,295

42,398
960

6,254

30,356

25,511

1,394

5,110

5,423

45,451

55,690

170,249

140,401
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17 Deposits
17.1 Classified by products

Bank
2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

Payable on demand
Saving deposits
Time deposits

151,306

51,873

18,091,383

15,935,406

8,322,683

8,165,125

Total

26,565,372

24,152,404

17.2 Classified by currency and customer’s residence

Bank
2015

2014

Domestic
Baht’000

Foreign
Baht’000

Total
Baht’000

Domestic
Baht’000

Foreign
Baht’000

Total
Baht’000

Thai Baht

26,565,372

-

26,565,372

24,152,404

-

24,152,404

Total

26,565,372

-

26,565,372

24,152,404

-

24,152,404

18 INTERBANK AND MONEY MARKET ITEMS, NET (LIABILITIES)
Bank
2015

2014

At call
Baht’000

Term
Baht’000

Total
Baht’000

At call
Baht’000

Term
Baht’000

Total
Baht’000

-

517,129

517,129

609,400

-

-

609,400

-

-

-

Domestic:
Bank of Thailand
Commercial banks
Special purpose financial
institutions
Other financial

-

401,298

401,298

-

8,500

8,500

1,066,644

13,545

1,080,189

536,652

13,000

549,652

Total

1,066,644

931,972

1,998,616

536,652

630,900

1,167,552

Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements

125

19 Provision for post-employment benefits obligation
The Bank has post-employment benefit plans in accordance with the Labor Protection Law which are unfunded defined
benefit plans and presented as provision on the statements of financial positions.
The reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows:
Bank

Beginning balance of defined benefit obligations
Current service costs
Interest costs
Amount paid under defined benefit plan
Remeasurements:
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions
Experience (gain)/(loss)
Ending balance of defined benefit obligations

2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

36,581

16,183

12,952
522

7,732
666

-

-

13

-

1,349

12,000

(17,614)

-

33,803

36,581

Employee benefits under defined benefit plans authorised in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are as follows:
Consolidated

Bank

2014

2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

Baht’000

Current service costs
Interest costs

8,979
915

12,952
522

7,732
666

Total

9,894

13,474

8,398
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Principal actuarial assumptions used to calculate the defined benefit obligations as at 31 December 2015 and 2014,
are as follows:
Bank

Discount rates (%)
Average rate of salary increases (%)

Change in assumption
Discount rate
Salary growth rate
Pre-retirement mortality rate

1%
1%
1%

2015

2014

2.57
5

3.44
5

Impact on defined benefit obligation
Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption
Decrease by 6.33%
Increase by 6.59%
Increase by 0.66%

Decrease by 7.18%
Increase by 5.94%
Increase by 0.65%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been
applied as when calculating the pension liability recognised within the statement of financial position.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the
previous period.
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 8 years.
Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefits:
Bank
Less than
a year
Baht’000

Between

Between

Over

1 - 2 years
Baht’000

2 - 5 years
Baht’000

5 years
Baht’000

Total
Baht’000

At 31 December 2015
Retirement benefits

-

3,803

34,112

1,541,870

1,579,785

Total

-

3,803

34,112

1,541,870

1,579,785
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20 Other liabilities
Bank

The Revenue Department payable
Account payables - purchase of assets
Accrued interest expenses
Other payables
Leasing payables
Accrued fee and service expenses
Withholding tax payable
Accrued specific business tax
Others
Total

2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

9,019

11,231

5,010

5,830

85,816

130,021

20,176

-

42,501
137

211,711

142,774

7,913

7,552

6,378

4,979

32,763

12,019

378,786

357,044

21 Reserve for share-based payment
Stock options
The Bank awards the stock options of the Bank to certain senior management.
The Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting dated 27 March 2014 passed a resolution to issue the warrants for certain
senior management of the Bank to purchase an additional registered ordinary share capital of The Thai Credit Retail Bank
Public Company Limited at par value of Baht 10 each in total amount of 12.5 million shares. Exercise ratio is 1 warrant
for 1 ordinary share at the exercise price Baht 10 per ordinary share.
All of these awards contain clawback provisions that may result in cancellation prior to vesting under certain specified
circumstances.
Management has estimated the fair value using the Binomial valuation model by engaging the valuation specialist. The
weighted-average option price as at 27 March 2014 is Baht 1.37 per option. The risk-fee interest rate is the implied yield
on zero-coupon Thailand government bonds, with a remaining life equal to the expected life of the option. The expected
volatility is estimated for giving consideration to, amongst other things, the historical volatility of pass listed in the Stock
Exchange of Thailand for the period that commensurate with the expected life of the option. The 0% dividend yield
assumption has been adopted for valuation.
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The remaining contractual life of the warrants is 4 years.
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Bank has stock options expense recognised during the year amounting to
Baht 3.425 million (2014: Baht 2.788 million).
22 Share capital
Number of
shares
Shares

Ordinary
Shares
Baht

Preferred
Shares
Baht

Share
Premium
Baht

At 1 January 2014
Issue of shares

300,000,000

3,000,000,000

-

-

3,000,000,000

-

-

At 31 December 2014

300,000,000

3,000,000,000

-

-

3,000,000,000

Issue of shares

100,000,000

1,000,000,000

-

-

1,000,000,000

At 31 December 2015

400,000,000

4,000,000,000

-

-

4,000,000,000

Total
Baht

-

According to the minute of the Bank’s extraordinary shareholders’ meeting dated 27 March 2014, the shareholders had
passed a resolution to increase its authorised share capital from Baht 3,000 million to Baht 3,125 million by increasing
its ordinary shares from 300 million shares to 312.5 million shares at par value Baht 10 each. The Bank registered the
change of its authorised share capital with the Ministry of Commerce on 8 April 2014.
On 30 April 2015, the shareholders at the Bank’s extraordinary shareholders’ meeting passed a resolution to approve
increase the authorised share capital from 312.5 million ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 10 per share to 412.5
million ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 10 per share. The Bank registered the increased share capital with the
Ministry of Commerce on 11 May 2015. On 30 June 2015, the Bank received subscription of 100 additional million shares
at Baht 10 par value in the total of Baht 1,000 million already.
23 Legal reserve
Under the Public Limited Company Act., B.E. 2535, the Bank is required to set aside a legal reserve at least 5% of its
net income for the year after accumulated deficit brought forward (if any) until the reserve is not less than 10% of the
registered share capital. The legal reserve is not available for dividend distribution.
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24 Assets with obligations and restrictions
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Bank has investment in securities under obligations and restrictions as follows:
Bank
2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

Pledged as collateral for private REPO under the BOT
Pledged as other collaterals

334,000
1,012

633,000
962

Total

335,012

633,962

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, contingent liabilities are as follows:
Bank

Aval
Other contingencies
- Other guarantees
- Unused overdraft credit facilities
- Others
Total

2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

824

-

54,417

25,265

307,180

-

221,794
313

362,421

247,372

As at 31 December 2015, the Bank has a contingent liability from a litigation case made by one ex-employee. Currently,
the case is under the legal process. The Bank’s management expects that it will not be a significant impact from the
court judgment.
25 Capital funds
The primary objectives of the Bank’s capital management are to maintain the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain a capital adequacy ratio in accordance with the Act on Undertaking of Banking business B.E. 2551. The
capital funds comprise:
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2015
Baht’000

Tier I
Issued and paid up share capital
Warrants
Statutory reserve
Deficit after appropriation
Other reserves
Less Deduction items from Tier 1 capital
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Total Tier I capital fund
Tier II
Reserve for loan classified as pass
Total Tier II capital fund
Total capital funds

Tier I
Issued and paid up share capital
Warrants
Statutory reserve
Deficit after appropriation
Other reserves
Less Deduction items from Tier 1 capital
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Total Tier I capital fund
Tier II
Reserve for loan classified as pass
Total Tier II capital fund
Total capital funds
		

Total capital
to risk assets
%

4,000,000
11,988
2,300

(445,234)
1,206
(43,196)
(87,603)
3,439,461

15.32

247,687
247,687

1.10

3,687,148

16.42

2014
Baht’000

Total capital
to risk assets
%

3,000,000
8,563
2,300
(560,458)
1,189

(20,019)
(64,753)
2,366,822

12.98

147,268
147,268

0.80

2,514,090

13.78
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The Bank will disclose capital maintenance information as at 31 December 2014 in accordance with the Notification of
the Bank of Thailand RE: Public Disclosure of Capital Maintenance Information for Commercial Banks and Consolidated
Supervision on its website at www.tcrbank.com within four months after the statements of financial position date.

26 The position and the results of operation by domestic and foreign operations
The Bank has been operating in a single segment, which is banking business carrying out in Thailand only. As a result,
most revenues, expenses, profit, assets and liabilities as reflected in the financial statements pertaining to the aforementioned industry and geographic area.

27 Interest income
Consolidated

Bank

2014

2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

Baht’000

Interbank and money market items
Investments in debt securities
Loans to customers
Hire-purchase and finance lease
Others

34,399

19,745

34,399

107,926

76,023

107,926

1,392,510

2,019,375

1,412,284

687,504

336,774
496

472,151

2,040

Total interest income

2,224,379

2,452,413

2,028,800

2,040

28 Interest expenses
Consolidated

Bank

2014

2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

Baht’000

Deposits
Interbank and money market items
Contributions to the Deposit Protection
agency and the Financial Institution
Borrowings

673,814

657,456

673,990

5,603

3,332

4,962

110,124
496

121,963

-

110,124
496

Total interest expense

790,037

782,751

789,572
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29 Fees and service income, net
Consolidated

Bank

2014

2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

Baht’000

Fees and service income
Acceptances, aval and guarantees of loans
Brokerage fee
Registration fee
Others

511

1,154

513

108,117

128,018

108,117

18,584

5,005

5,453

14,576

26,722

14,833

Total fees and service income

141,788

160,899

128,916

11,324

11,002

11,159

7,587

2,874

3,513

22,581

34,421

19,112

41,492

48,297

33,784

100,296

112,602

95,132

Fees and service expenses
Fee and service expenses on ATM
Registration fee and services expenses
Others commission fee and service expenses
Total fees and service expenses
Fees and service income, net

30 Net gains on investments
Consolidated

Bank

2014

2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

Baht’000

Gains on sales of available-for-sales securities
Gains on investment in subsidiary

4,570

7,352

4,570

52,087

-

57,263

Net gains on investments

56,657

7,352

61,833

Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements

133

31 Bad debts, doubtful accounts and impairment loss
Consolidated

Bank

2014

2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

Baht’000

Interbank and money market items (reveral)
Loans to customers
Loss on troubled debt restructuring

2,989

(2,812)

2,989

361,908

348,616

259,863

53,528

63,223

53,528

Total bad debts, doubtful accounts and impairment loss

418,425

409,027

316,380

32 Income tax
Consolidated

Current tax
Deferred tax income
Total income tax expenses (income)

Bank

2014

2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

Baht’000

12,431
(21,903)

55,944
(25,367)

8,526
(20,627)

(9,472)

30,577

(12,101)

Reconciliation of effective tax rates for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 are follows:
Consolidated
2014

Baht’000
Accounting gain (loss) from operating before income tax expenses

%

37,929

Tax of income or expenses
Taxable amount as per tax rate
Adjustment for deferred tax relating to the
origination and reversal of temporary differences

(1,886)

Total income tax expenses (income)

(9,472)

(7,586)

20

25
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Bank
2015

Baht’000
Accounting loss from operating before
income tax expenses
Tax income or expenses
Taxable amount as per tax rate
Adjustment for deferred tax relating to the
origination and reversal of temporary differences
Total income tax expenses (income)

%

141,266

28,253

%

29,972

20

2,324
30,577

2014

Baht’000

(5,994)

20

(6,107)
22

(12,101)

42

33 Long-term leases agreements
The Bank has operating lease commitments in respect of office rental expenses according to office rental agreements,
computer software expenses and data maintenance services expenses. The future payments from the dates on the
statements of financial position are as follows:
Bank

Within 1 year
More than 1 year and up to 5 years
Over 5 years

2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

133,487

141,704

89,401
2,475

137,563
256

225,363

279,523

34 Related parties transactions
Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by,
or are under common control with, the company, including holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries are
related parties of the company. Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power
of the company that gives them significant influence over the enterprise, key management personnel, including directors
and officers of the company and close members of the family of these individuals and companies associated with these
individuals also constitute related parties.
In considering each possible related-party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not
merely the legal form.
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Information with respect to major shareholder and related parties is as follows:
Major shareholder
Thai Life Insurance Public Co., Ltd.
Related parties
Thai Koom Co., Ltd.
Surasampan Co., Ltd.
Petch Karn Ka Co., Ltd.
Pathumthani Krasob Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
Thai House Real Estate Co., Ltd.
C.12 Co., Ltd.
V.73 Co., Ltd.
VC.Sombat Co., Ltd.
Insure and Beyond Broker Co., Ltd.

C Lang Co., Ltd.
Thai Health Insurance Public Co., Ltd.
V.C. Alcohol Co., Ltd.
Thai Life Broker Co., Ltd.
Yad Sampan Co., Ltd.
Sukhothai Assets Management Co., Ltd.
V.One Asset Co., Ltd.
Chaiyawan Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary Companies
Thanaban Co., Ltd. (The subsidiary was disposal on 2 July 2014)
The Bank has a portion of assets, liabilities, income and expenses which were transactions with related parties. The accompanying financial statements reflect the effects of these transactions in the normal course of business on an arm’slength basis, with details as follows:
Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by,
or are under common control with, the company, including holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries are
related parties of the company. Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power
of the company that gives them significant influence over the enterprise, key management personnel, including directors
and officers of the company and close members of the family of these individuals and companies associated with these
individuals also constitute related parties.
In considering each possible related-party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not
merely the legal form.
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Balances with related parties as at 31 December 2015 and 2014, are as follow:
Bank

Accrued income
Related parties
Deposits and retentions
Major shareholder
Related parties
Deposits
Major shareholder
Related parties
Director level upward including
their related persons
Accrued interest payable - deposits
Major shareholder
Related parties
Director level upward including
their related persons

2015

2014

Baht’000

Baht’000

3,266

-

2,141

2,144

6,882

5,704

1,028,958

466,593

117,971

74,675

52,285

54,322

22
302

17
404

55

152
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Income and expenses with related parties for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:
Consolidated

Bank

2014
Baht’000

2015
Baht’000

2014
Baht’000

-

-

19,744

Interest income - loans
Subsidiary
Interest expense - deposits
Subsidiary
Major shareholder
Related parties
Director level upward including
their related persons
Office rental expense
Major shareholder
Related parties
Service expenses
Major shareholder
Fees and services income
Related parties
Other expenses
Major shareholder
Related parties

-

-

176

2,158

1,449

2,158

1,792

2,272

1,792

1,776

1,055

1,776

3,984

3,637

3,822

23,596

23,314

21,638

5,207

4,949

5,207

-

3,266

6,595

65

-

-

1,238

Pricing policies
Transactions between the Bank and related parties have been priced as follows:
-

Interests on loan and deposit are based on market price
Rental and service income are based on rates specified in rental and services contracts
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35 Other benefits to directors and persons with managing authority
For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, benefits to key management personnel are as follows:
Consolidated

Bank

2014

2015

2014

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits
Reserve for share based payment

79,665

86,624

76,264

2,273

3,092

2,093

2,788

3,425

2,788

Total

84,726

93,141

81,145

36 Profit (losses) per share
Profit per share as presented in the consolidated and bank statements of comprehensive income are calculated by
dividing net profit for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares held by outside shareholders in issue
during the year.
There are no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015.

Consolidated

Net profit for the year (Baht’000)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
held by share holder
Basic earnings per share (Baht)

Bank

2014

2015

2014

47,401

110,688

42,073

300,000,000 350,684,932

300,000,000

0.16

0.32

0.14
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Type of Business

Type of Business
The Thai Credit Retail Bank PCL. is the financial institution
providing services under the scope of retail commercial bank
operations.
Initial Registered Capital

Registered capital 		
1,000,000,000 Baht
Paid-up capital			
1,000,000,000 Baht
Issued and paid-up common stock
100,000,000 Shares
Issued and paid-up preferred stock		
None
The par value per share			
10 Baht
Registered Capital in 2015
Registered capital 		
4,125,000,000 Baht
Paid-up capital			
4,000,000,000 Baht
Issued and paid-up common stock
400,000,000 Shares
Issued and paid-up preferred stock		
None
The par value per share			
10 Baht
The Auditors
The Audit Committee reviewed auditors’ qualifications and
performance and reported to the Board of Directors in order to

present its proposal for consideration of auditor’s appointment
and audit fee in the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.
The proposed auditors must obtain the approval from the
BOT. As the BOT had approved and issued a notification no.
For Kor Kor. (02) 123/2558 Re: Approval of Auditors for Fiscal
Year (FY) 2015 dated March 17, 2015, approving 3 auditors
from Price Waterhouse Cooper ABAS Co., Ltd:
1. Mrs. Anothai Leekitwattana (Certified Public Accountant
(Thailand) No. 3442) and/or
2. Mr. Boonlert Kamolchanokkul (Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 5339) and/or
3. Mrs. Unakorn Phruithithada (Certified Public Accountant
(Thailand) No. 3257)
The Relationship between Auditors
and the Bank
Appointed auditors do not have other relationship with
the bank.
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Branch Office

BRANCH OFFICE

Head Office

Ramindra Fashion Island Branch

123 Thai Life Insurance Bldg., Ratchadaphisek Road,

Room S15, 1st Fl., Fashion Island Department Store,

Dindaeng, Bangkok 10400

587, 589 Ramindra Road, Khannayao, Khannayao,
Bangkok 10230

Ratchadaphisek Business Office

Office hours : Everyday 11.00 hrs. - 19.30 hrs.

123 Thai Life Insurance Bldg. 1 Fl., Ratchadaphisek Road,

Tel. 0 2947 5656, 0 2947 5694-5, 0 2947 5681

Dindaeng, Bangkok 10400

Fax 0 2947 5680

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.00 hrs.

Manager Mrs. Somruedee Posuwan

st

Tel. 0 2697 5454
Fax 0 2642 3112

Bangkapi The Mall Department Store

Manager Miss. Watchara Petranong

2nd Fl., 2S-C13A-13B Room,
3522 Lat Phrao Road, Khlong Chan, Bang Kapi,

Huai Khwang Branch

Bangkok 10240

1998/4-5 Prachasongkho Road, Dindaeng, Bangkok 10400

Office hours : Everyday 11.00 hrs. - 19.30 hrs.

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.

Tel. 0 2704 7500, 0 2704 7891-3

Tel. 0 2692 9971-3

Fax 0 2704 7894

Fax 0 2692 9982

Manager Mrs. Usa Boontem

Manager Mr. Apivich Pattarathamrongvong
Nakhon Pathom Branch
Rangsit Future Park Branch

17-18 Bao Ream Road, Phra Pathom Chedi,

Room PLZ.2.SHP030, 2 Fl., Future Park Rangsit,

Amphur Mueang, Nakhon Pathom 73000

94 Phaholyothin Road, Prachathipat, Amphur Thanyaburi,

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.00 hrs.

Pathum Thani 12130

Tel. 0 3421 9695-8

Office hours : Everyday 11.00 hrs. - 19.30 hrs.

Manager Mrs. Tanida Vichaithamkhun

nd

Tel. 0 2958 5276-9
Fax 0 2958 5377

Samut Prakan Branch

Manager Mr. Akarapol Vorakitcharoenphol

66/9 Srisamut Road, Pak Nam, Amphur Mueang,
Samut Prakan 10270

Seacon Bang Khae Branch

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.00 hrs.

Room 329, 3 Fl.,Seacon Bang Khae Department Store,

Tel. 0 2730 9161-3

607 Petchkasem Road, Bangwa, Pasicharoen, Bangkok 10160

Fax 0 2730 9159

Office hours : Everyday 11.00 hrs. - 19.30 hrs.

Manager Miss. Manchusa Chatayapa

rd

Tel. 0 2458 2818-20
Fax 0 2458 2821
Manager Mrs. Paphawee Tangchan
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Chonburi Branch

Saphan Mai Yingcharoen Market

177,179, Sukhumvit Road, Saen Suk, Amphur Mueang,

651 Pahhon Yothin Road, Anusaowaree, Bangkhen,

Chonburi 20130

Bangkok 10220

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.00 hrs.

Office hours : Everyday 09.00 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 2522 7399, 0 2522 7395-7
Fax 0 2522 7398

Tel. 0 3839 4906 (Main), 0 3839 4518, 0 3839 4511,
0 3839 4867
Fax 0 3839 4572
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Manager Miss. Jitlada Sangsurarat

Manager Miss. Nathalinee Jitpittayanupap
Ngam Wong Wan The Mall Department Store
Srinakarin Paradise Park Department Store

30/39-50, 639 Moo 2, 3 S-C 4B Room, 3rd Fl.,

2nd Fl.,2C001 Room, Paradise Park Department Store,

Ngam Wong Wan Road, Bang Khen, Amphur Mueang,

61 Srinakarin Road, Nongbon, Prawet, Bangkok 10250

Nonthaburi 11000

Office hours : Everyday 10.30 hrs. - 19.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 2787 1724, 0 2787 1725-6
Fax 0 2787 1727
Manager Miss. Duangsamorn Sukkaew

Office hours : Everyday 11.00 hrs. - 19.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 2550 0690-2
Fax 0 2550 0693

Asoke PS Tower Branch

Omyai Big C Supercenter

36/11 G Fl., PS Tower, Sukhumvit 21 (ASOKE),

17/17 Moo 8, GJA 001/3 Room, Omyai,

Khlong Toei Nuea, Vadhana, Bangkok 10110

Amphur Sampran, Nakhon Pathom 73160

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. – 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 2261 9958-9
Fax 0 2261 9957
Manager Miss. Jantira Kanjanakanti

Office hours : Everyday 10.30 hrs. – 19.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 2431 2590-92
Fax 0 2431 2589
Manager Mrs. Amporn Boonchuay

Yaowarat Business Center

Bangyai Big C Supercenter (Ratanathibet) Branch

222-224 Yaowarat Road, Chakkawat, Samphanthawong,

6 Moo 6, 2CR205 Room, 2nd Fl., Saotonghin,

Bangkok 10100

Amphur Bangyai, Nonthaburi 11140

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.00 hrs.

Office hours : Everyday 10.30 hrs. - 19.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 2921 3338-9
Fax 0 2921 3337

		 Satarday 09.00 hrs. - 17.00 hrs.
Tel. 0 2222 3760-1, 0 2222 3180-1
Fax 0 2222 3120

Manager Miss. Kamonwan Khuanneam

Manager Miss. Monruetai Thongyib

Manager Mrs. Chananpha Nuamtim
Rama 2 Central Plaza Branch
G04 Room, G Fl., Central Plaza Rama 2,
160 Rama 2 Road, Samaedum, Bangkuntien, Bangkok 10150
Office hours : Everyday 11.00 hrs. - 19.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 2416 1900, 0 2416 1688, 0 2416 1689
Fax 0 2416 1901
Manager Mrs. Niyada Manatas
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Nakornratchasrima Branch

Rangsit Lending Branch

1282/13-14 Mittraphap Road, Nai Mueang,

81 Rangsit-Pathum Thani 3, Prachathipat, Amphur Thanyaburi,

Ampur Mueang, Nakhon Ratchasima 30000

Pathum Thani 12130

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.00 hrs.
Tel. 0 4434 2342, 0 4434 2688-90
Fax 0 4434 2665
Manager Miss. Oitip Theerarachataanan

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.00 hrs.
Tel. 0 2567 0060-2
Fax 0 2567 0063
Manager Mr. Roengrith Tienmun

Samut Sakhorn Branch

Bang Yai Lending Branch

920/30 Ekkachai Road, Mahachai, Amphur Mueang,

89/4 Moo 6 Soa Tong Hin, Amphur Bang Yai, Nonthaburi 11140

Samutsakhon 74000

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.00 hrs.
Tel. 0 2595 0420-2
Fax 0 2595 0423
Manager Mr. Chutidet Payoongwong

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.00 hrs.
Tel. 0 3442 4200, 0 3442 4343-4, 0 3442 4446
Fax 0 3442 4445
Manager Miss. Chawonnus Phuttaraksa

Minburi Lending Branch
The Mall Bangkhae Branch

Minburi Market Platapeantong Building 2nd fl.,

Room 3S-R2-3B, 3rd Fl.,The Mall Department Store (Bangkae),

521/7 Moo 18 Sriburanukit Road, Minburi, Bangkok 10510

275 Phet Kasem Road, Bangkhae Nuea, Bang Khae,

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.00 hrs.
Tel. 0 2540 0190-2
Fax 0 2540 0193
Manager Miss. Manee Sangphan

Bangkok 10160
Office hours : Everyday 10.30 hrs. - 19.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 2803 8488-92
Fax 0 2803 8493
Manager Mrs. Borvornrat Jayawan

Rayong Lending Branch
144/49 Sukhumvit Road, Tha Pradu,

Central Pinklao Branch

Amphur Mueang, Rayong 21000

Room 426/2, 4 Fl., Central Pinklao Branch,

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 3862 2900-2
Fax 0 3862 2904
Manager Mr. Wattana Prompreang

th

7/222 Baromrajchonnee Road, Arun-Amarin,
Bangkok-Noi, Bangkok 10700
Office hours : Everyday 11.00 hrs. - 19.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 2884 7797-8
Fax 0 2884 7890
Manager Mrs. Patcharaporn Lelajaratkul

Udon Thani Lending Branch
175-176 Prachak Silapakhom Road, Mak Khaeng,
Amphur Mueang, Udon Thani 41000
Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 4224 2555, 0 4224 1347-8
Fax 0 4224 2504
Manager Mr. Chitiphat Sathitsradu

Branch Office
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Surat Thani Lending Branch

Chon Buri Lending Branch

159/27 Sriwichai Road, Makamtia,

112/36 Moo 1 Phraya Satcha Road, Samet,

Amphur Mueang, Surat Thani 84000

Amphur Mueang, Chon Buri 20000

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 7727 5678-79
Fax 0 7727 5680
Manager Mrs. Janpen Rochana

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 3828 6986-7
Fax 0 3828 6985
Manager Mr. Phanumat Thaweekham

Bang Khen-Watcharaphon Lending Branch

Hua Hin Lending Branch

2/18 Watcharaphon Road, Tha Raeng,

11/194 Phet Kasem Road, Hua Hin,

Bang Khen, Bangkok 10230

Prachuap Khiri Khan 77110

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 2347 0242, 0 2347 0237
Fax 0 2347 0182
Manager Mr. Suraporn Sunthornhirunlerd

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 3251 1657-8
Fax 0 3251 1659
Manager Mr. Pirom Noimala

Sakon Nakon Lending Branch

Phuket Lending Branch

218/23 Rattha Phatthana Road, That Choeng Chum,

32/174 Phunphon Road, Talat Nuea,

Amphur Mueang, Sakon Nakon 47000

Amphur Mueang, Phuket 83000

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 4271 2511, 0 4271 3404
Fax 0 4271 6404
Manager Mr. Teeramate Kunnasit

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 7635 5333
Fax 0 7634 5845
Manager Miss. Wiphada Sawatdikul

Phetchaburi Lending Branch

Phuket-Thalang Lending Branch

15 Surinruechai Road, Tharap, Amphur Mueang,

187/26 Moo 1 Thep Krasattri, Thalang, Phuket 83110

Phetchaburi 76000

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 7631 3484-5
Fax 0 7631 3486
Manager Mr. Chulanon Surai

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 3240 1756-7
Fax 0 3240 1758
Manager Mr. Pheeranutt Suk-Anan

Loei Lending Branch
Nakhon Si Thammarat Lending Branch

83/2 Charoenrat Road, Kut Pong,

29/33 Phatthanakan Khu Khwang Road, Tha Wang,

Amphur Mueang, Loei 42000

Amphur Mueang, Nakhon Si Thammarat 80000

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 4281 5476-7
Fax 0 4281 5478
Manager Mr. Naret Lertnimoonchai

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 7534 3400-1
Fax 0 7534 3402
Manager Mr. Kamron Na Nakorn

144

Branch Office

The Thai Credit Retail Bank Public Company Limited

Buriram Lending Branch

Hat Yai Lending Branch

112 Jira Road, Nai Mueang, Amphur Mueang, Buriram 31000

237/5 Supphasan Rangsan Road, Hat Yai,

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 4461 3444, 0 4461 3433
Fax 0 4461 3466
Manager Mr. Watcharapong Waiyaprakon

Hat Yai, Songkhla 90110
Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 7423 5345, 0 7422 0803
Fax 0 7422 0804
Manager Miss. Kalunyoo Watcharachutimanon

Cha-am Lending Branch
388/23 Phet Kasem Road, Cha-am, Phetchaburi 76120

Surin Lending Branch

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 3247 2773-4
Fax 0 3247 2775
Manager Mr. Pattapong Boonpeng

142/4 Sanitnikhomrat Road, Nai Muang,

Khon Kaen Lending Branch

Amphur Mueang, Surin 32000
Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 4451 3232, 0 4451 3113
Fax 0 4451 3233
Manager Mr. Prasit Ratanaprasit

381/49 Moo 17 Nai Muang, Amphur Mueang,
Khon Kaen 40000

Rayong-Klaeng Lending Branch

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 4346 8808-9
Fax 0 4346 8810
Manager Mr. Paisan Nuangpakdee

99/9 Sukhumvit Road, Thangkwian, Klaeng, Rayong 21110
Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 3867 7123, 0 3867 7102
Fax 0 3867 7101
Manager Mr. Thanapon Yameklin

Pattaya Lending Branch
509/78 Moo 9 Nong Prue, Bang Lamung, Chonburi 20150

Rayong-Pluakdaeng Lending Branch

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 3841 0234-5
Fax 0 3841 0238
Manager Mr. Theeraphat Buathong

499/3 Moo 5 Pluakdaeng, Pluakdaeng, Rayong 21140
Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 3802 5979-80
Fax 0 3802 5978
Manager Mrs. Kanjana Srisuksai

Kanchanaburi Lending Branch
250/2 Saeng Chootoh Road, baan Nua,

Ayutthaya Lending Branch

Amphur Mueang, Kanchanaburi 71000

94/6 Moo 6 Phailing, Phra Nakhon Si Ayutthaya,

Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 3451 5234, 0 3451 5317
Fax 0 3451 5318
Manager Mr. Kronpapop Orrachon

Phra Nakhon Si Ayutthaya 13000
Office hours : Monday - Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 3534 5666, 0 3534 5668
Fax 0 3534 5667
Manager Mr. Suthin Potongcom
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Roi Et Lending Branch			

Bang Saphan Lending Branch

56/2 Thewaphiban Road, Nai Mueang,

87/12 Moo 1 Kamnoet Nopphakhun, Bang Saphan,

Amphur Mueang, Roi Et 45000

Prachuap Khiri Khan 77140

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 4351 6711, 0 4351 8237
Fax 0 4351 8236
Manager Mr. Chaiyanan Sitdhivonk

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 3269 1176-7
Fax 0 3269 1178
Manager Mr. Kosit Ovararin

Chiang Mai Lending Branch

Ubon Ratchathani Lending Branch

265/4 Chang Phueak Road, Chang Phueak,

234/1 Moo 18 Kham Yai, Amphur Mueang,

Amphur Mueang, Chiang Mai 50300

Ubon Ratchathani 34000

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 5321 6238-9
Fax 0 5321 6237
Manager Mr. Pipatpong Pinnoeak

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 4531 4421-2
Fax 0 4531 4423
Manager Mr. Mongkol Maschamadol

Maha Sarakham Lending Branch

Chanthaburi Lending Branch

157/2 Teenanon Road, Talat, Amphur Mueang,

87/2 Maharaj Road, Talat, Amphur Mueang,

Maha Sarakham 44000

Chanthaburi 22000

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 4371 0811, 0 4371 0813
Fax 0 4371 0812
Manager Mr. Chaiyanan Sitdhivonk

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 3932 1578-9
Fax 0 3932 0809
Manager Miss. Siriporn Wuttichai

Phitsanulok Lending Branch

Ratchaburi Lending Branch

371/8 Barommatrailokanat 2 Road, Nai Mueang,

286/34 Si Suriyawong Road, Na Mueang,

Amphur Mueang, Phitsanulok 65000

Amphur Mueang, Ratchaburi 70000

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 5525 2804-5
Fax 0 5525 2803
Manager Mrs. Nattaporn Puttaseema

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 3232 1225-6
Fax 0 3232 1227
Manager Mr. Chamni Nilphinij

Trang Lending Branch

Phatthalung Lending Branch

59/45 Huai Yot Road, Thap Thiang,

230/4 Moo 2 Khao Chiak, Amphur Mueang,

Amphur Mueang, Trang 92000

Phatthalung 93000

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 7559 0411-2
Fax 0 7559 0413
Manager Mr. Sarayuth Junbun

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 7460 6402, 0 7460 6404
Fax 0 7460 6411
Manager Mr. Yongyut Rattanachoo
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Chaiyaphum Lending Branch

Lop Buri Lending Branch

293/63 Yuttitham Road, Nai Mueang,

43/3 Moo 4 Tha Sala, Amphur Mueang,

Amphur Mueang, Chaiyaphum 36000

Lop Buri 15000

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 4481 1404, 0 4481 1406
Fax 0 4481 1405
Manager Mr. Chatree Poomkhokrak

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 3677 6642-3
Fax 0 3642 1992
Manager Mr. Banlang Mongkolpornsook

Saraburi Lending Branch

Chumphon Lending Branch

173/39 Sut Banthat Road, Pak Phriao,

64/2 Moo 11 Wang Phai, Amphur Mueang,

Amphur Mueang, Saraburi 18000

Chumphon 86190

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 3622 0861-2
Fax 0 3622 0863
Manager Mr. Sompong Munpansa

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 7751 0815-6
Fax 0 7765 8561
Manager Mr. Ponganun Seneewas

Aranyaprathet Lending Branch

Chiang Rai Lending Branch

200/5 Moo 2 Tanavitee Road, Ban Mai Nong Sai,

180/21 Moo 12 Rop Wiang, Amphur Mueang,

Aranyaprathet, Sa Kaeo 27120

Chiang Rai 57000

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 3724 7517-8
Fax 0 3723 1572
Manager Mr. Pornkiat Kittipalo

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 5371 9056-7
Fax 0 5371 9058
Manager Mr. Wirat Chaonua

Thung Song Lending Branch

Bueng Kan Lending Branch

42/3 Thung song-Huai Yot Road, Pak Phraek,

218/2 Moo 1 Bueng Kan, Amphur Mueang,

Thung Song, Nakhon Si Thammarat 80110

Bueng Kan 38000

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 7542 1085-6
Fax 0 7542 0945
Manager Mr. Kantachai Kannathaworn

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 4249 0762-3
Fax 0 4249 1545
Manager Mr. Prapanpong Pattarasiripong

Lam luk ka Lending Branch

Bang Bon Lending Branch

169/33 Moo 3 Lam Luk Ka Road, Khu Khot,

701 Ekachai Road, Bang Bon, Bangkok 10150

Lam Luk Ka, Pathum Thani 12130

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 2415 5671-2
Fax 0 2415 5673
Manager Mr. Santichai Liangpatanakul

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 2531 5012, 0 2531 5014
Fax 0 2531 5013
Manager Miss. Mukdawan Sannamwong
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Nakhon Sawan Lending Branch

Krabi Lending Branch

49/39 Moo 5 Nakhon Sawan Tok,

238/11 Maharaj Road Pak Nam,

Amphur Mueang, Nakhon Sawan 60000

Amphur Mueang, Krabi 81000

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 5688 2133-4
Fax 0 5688 2135
Manager Mr. Nattawoot Yeesoonsri

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 7562 0213-4
Fax 0 7562 0215
Manager Mr. Hanchai Boonyakiat

Mae Sot Lending Branch

Si Maha Phot Lending Branch

64/1 Prasatwithi Road, Mae Sot, Tak 63110

633/28 Moo 10 Tha Tum, Si Maha Phot,

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 5553 3673-4
Fax 0 5553 3675
Manager Mr. Suwisit Sunantawanich

Prachin Buri 25140
Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 3748 0949-50
Fax 0 3748 0948
Manager Mr. Rojanaphark Phonphunnukul

Suphan Buri Lending Branch
56/2 Nen kaeo Road, Tha Phi Liang,

Bang Khun Non Lending Branch

Amphur Mueang, Suphan Buri 72000

21/45 Bang Khun Non Road, Bang Khun Non,

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 3544 6548-9
Fax 0 3552 3200
Manager Mr. Somkiat Srisawat 			

Bangkok Noi, Bangkok 10700
Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 2434 3145-6
Fax 0 2434 3147
Manager Mr. Bunphong Therdkwanchai

Bang Phli Lending Branch
200/60 Moo 1 Thepharak Road, Bang Sao Thong,

Chachoengsao Lending Branch

Samut Prakan 10540

560/3 Bangpakong-Chachoengsao, Na Mueang,

Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 2181 7971-2
Fax 0 2181 7973
Manager Mrs. Amita Kongjaierntin

Amphur Mueang, Chachoengsao 24000
Office hours : Monday-Friday 08.30 hrs. - 17.30 hrs.
Tel. 0 3851 2090-1
Fax 0 3851 2092
Manager Mr. Suporn Rayjaroen
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